
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Jonathon Partridge 

direct line 0300 300 4634 

date  

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date & Time 

Thursday, 8 May 2014 10.00 a.m. 
 

Venue at 

Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 
 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     All Members of the Council  
 
 (The Council AGM at which the Membership of the Committee will be confirmed will take 

place on 01 May 2014.  As such all Members of the Council have been provided with a 
copy of the papers).  

 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 

MEETING 
 



 

AGENDA 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence 
  

Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members 
 

2. Members' Interests 
  

To receive from Members any declarations of interest and of any political whip 
in relation to any agenda item. 
 

3. Chairman's Announcements and Communications 
  

To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of 
communication. 
 

4. Minutes 
  

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 10 April 2014 and to 
note actions taken since that meeting.  
 

5. Petitions 
  

To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public 
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

6. Questions, Statements or Deputations 
  

To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

7. Call-In 
  

To consider any decision of the Executive referred to this Committee for 
review in accordance with Procedure Rule 10.10 of Part D2.   
 

8. Requested Items 
  

To consider any items referred to the Committee at the request of a Member 
under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the Constitution. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
REPORTS 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

9 Executive Member Update 
 
To receive a verbal update from the Executive Members 
on matters pertaining to their portfolio.  
 

*   

10 Potton Road Development Brief 
 
To consider proposals contained within the draft 
development brief for land at Potton Road, Biggleswade 
and responses to public consultation and provide 
comments to the Executive. 
 

*  11 - 92 

11 Work Programme and Executive Forward Plan 
 
To consider the currently drafted Committee work 
programme and Executive Forward Plan.  
 

*  93 - 98 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

At a meeting of the SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE held in Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford on 
Thursday, 10 April 2014. 

 
PRESENT 

 
Cllr D McVicar (Chairman) 

Cllr A R Bastable (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 
Cllrs K M Collins 

Ms A M W Graham 
R W Johnstone 
K C Matthews 
 

Cllrs T Nicols 
B Saunders 
P Williams 
 

 
 
 

Members in Attendance: Cllrs P N Aldis  
  I Dalgarno Deputy Executive 

Members for Sustainable 
Communities - Services 

  C C Gomm  
  D Jones  
  B J Spurr Executive Member for 

Sustainable 
Communities - Services 

  B  Wells Deputy Executive 
Member for Sustainable 
Communities - Services 

  J N Young Executive Member for 
Sustainable 
Communities - Strategic 
Planning and Economic 
Development 

 

Officers in Attendance: Mr M Coiffait – Community Services Director 
 Mr I Finnigan – Senior Engineer - Policy and Flood 

Risk Management 
 Mr R Fox – Head of Development Planning 

and Housing Strategy 
 Mr P Keates – Building Control Manager 
 Mr S Mooring – Environmental Policy Manager 
 Mr J Partridge – Scrutiny Policy Adviser 
 Ms S Templeman – Senior Finance Manager 
 Ms S Wileman – Service Development Manager 

 
 
 

SCOSC/13/122 
  

Members' Interests  

None 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 5



SCOSC 
-  

10.04.14 

Page 2  
 

 

SCOSC/13/123 
  

Chairman's Announcements and Communications  

The Chairman informed the Committee that we would invite the Executive 
Members to provide a verbal update on activity within their area.  This item 
needed to be considered as a matter of urgency due to the need to ensure 
that Members were aware of key relevant issue occurring within Council 
services. 

 
The Chairman also advised Members that items 11 and 12 would be 
considered before items 9 and ten and reminded Members of the Special 
OSC meeting on 12 May 2014 to consider the draft Development Strategy.  
In response Councillor Nicols commented on his disappointment regarding 
the amount of notice that had been provided to Members of the Special 
meeting and the inconvenience that this caused.  The Executive Member 
responded that a special was necessary to coincide with a meeting with 
colleagues in Luton and the Executive meeting at the end of May.  

 
SCOSC/13/124 

  
Minutes  

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 27 February 
2014 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
SCOSC/13/125 

  
Petitions  

None 
 

SCOSC/13/126 
  

Questions, Statements or Deputations  

None 
 

SCOSC/13/127 
  

Call-In  

None 
 

SCOSC/13/128 
  

Requested Items  

None 
 

SCOSC/13/129 
  

Executive Member Update  

The Executive Members provided the Committee with a verbal update on 
several issues, which were discussed as follows:-  

• Machinery that Amey proposed to use in order to fix potholes that would 
be quicker than the current methods.  The Executive Member confirmed 
that the waste material generated by the process would be cleared when 
the pothole, which would be self-sealing, was remedied.  The success 
rate of this process was beyond a year although it was a quick repair that 
would predominantly be used to fix smaller rural potholes.  

Agenda Item 4
Page 6



SCOSC 
-  

10.04.14 

Page 3  
 

 

• The public enquiry into the Woodside Link had concluded, the 
independent inspector had three months within which to consider making 
a recommendation to the Secretary of State. 

• A judicial review had been lodged by Luton Borough Council in relation to 
the decision of the Secretary of State not to call-in the decision to 
develop Land North of Houghton Regis, despite correspondence 
outlining the ways in which a judicial review would not succeed.  In 
response Members discussed the duty to co-operate between Central 
Bedfordshire and Luton Borough Councils that had been introduced in 
the Localism Act.  It was stated that the Council had gone to 
considerable lengths to engage and co-operate with Luton Borough 
Council in relation to planning proposals.  

• A programme for grass cutting and weed spraying would be confirmed by 
Cllr Spurr within the next week. 
 

SCOSC/13/130 
  

Q3 budget monitoring  

The Senior Financial Advisor presented an overview of the capital and 
revenue budget monitoring information for the Regeneration and Business 
Support and Community Services Directorates for Quarter 3 prior to a recent 
restructure.  The Committee were advised that the forecast capital variance 
should have read £1,663k (Regeneration and Business Support Services) 
and £9,383k (Community Services). 

 
Members raised concerns regarding the delay in spending the Community 
Services Capital Budget, particularly in light of the variance in leisure 
services, which was a result of delays at Saxon, Sandy and Houghton Regis 
Leisure Centres.  The Director for Community Services confirmed there was 
a comprehensive plan in place to develop leisure centre projects so that the 
directorate could bring capital spend back on budget.  In response the 
Committee commented that whilst it was understandable that other schemes 
could not always be promoted, as soon as the Council was aware of a major 
underspend it should be considered whether an alternative desirable project 
could be brought forward. 

 
NOTED the presentation 

 
SCOSC/13/131 

  
Q3 Performance Monitoring  

The Committee received the quarterly performance monitoring information 
for the Regeneration and Business Support Service and Community 
Services Directorates.  An update to the report was also circulated to 
Members in relation to E1MTP, containing information that had previously 
been omitted in error.  
 
In particular the Director for Community Services highlighted concerns in 
relation to performance on serious acquisitive crime due to an increase in 
domestic burglary and theft of and from vehicles.  As Chairman of the 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP) the Director had requested the 
development of a detailed action plan to determine the additional work that 
could be commissioned to improve performance within Central Bedfordshire.  

Agenda Item 4
Page 7



SCOSC 
-  

10.04.14 

Page 4  
 

 

 
In response Members commented on the importance of focusing on the rise 
in serious acquisitive crime within Central Bedfordshire as the overall picture 
for Bedfordshire had improved.  It was important that the profiled of the CSP 
was raised to support their role in developing a solution to resolve 
performance in this are, which included making it clear what the CSP was 
responsible for.  In addition Cllr Spurr highlighted that questions had been 
raised with the Police and Crime Commissioner asking what could be done 
to make this a priority for the police within the Central Bedfordshire area.  
 
In relation to a question from a Member it was commented that the 
Community Services directorate had officers on the Troubled Families Board 
to seek to address issues of Anti-Social Behaviour that related to particular 
families so that resources could be targeted appropriately.  
 
NOTED the report 

 
SCOSC/13/132 

  
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy  

The Senior Engineer (Flood Risk Management) introduced a report and 
presentation that set out the responsibility of the Council to develop a Local 
Flood Risk Management Strategy.  The Committee were advised of the 
objectives of the strategy, the consultation that had been undertaken to date 
and the associated action plan.  Cllr Spurr also highlighted the benefit of 
employing consultants in order to move forward with the development of the 
Strategy.  Officers were also thanked for their hard work in developing the 
proposals, which outlined solutions that would help the Council to achieve 
improved outcomes.  
 
In light of the report and presentation the Committee discussed the following 
issues in detail:-  

• Whether developers could proceed with a development if sufficient 
mitigations had not been put in place to address flood risk.  It was 
conformed that the Council could apply appropriate conditions to 
development such that the risk of flooding was mitigated and developers 
could appeal if they felt these were inappropriate.  A SuDS Approval 
Body (SAB) would be helpful in this regard although it was not envisaged 
this would be in operation before October 2014.  

• Concerns that the report needed to be more detailed and should reflect 
the positive nature and technical expertise of the local Internal Drainage 
Board (IDB) and ensure that information was shared appropriately.  
There was also a need to more appropriately define flooding to ensure 
there was a clear understanding of what actually constituted a flood. In 
response it was confirmed that close links were maintained with the IDB 
and Environment Agency and information was shared regularly.  

• The need to refer within the Strategy to statutory controls, such as the 
exclusion zone around ditches. The Committee were advised that the 
action plan referred to proposals to introduce byelaws that would provide 
statutory controls to ensure appropriate and planned maintenance of 
ditches, potentially throughout the year. 

Agenda Item 4
Page 8



SCOSC 
-  

10.04.14 

Page 5  
 

 

• Concerns that £60k capital allocation for the Strategy was not sufficient 
and that no potential funding sources had been identified in the action 
plan.  In response officers clarified that the £60k was a rolling capital 
budget that was allocated to schemes as they arose.  Grant funding had 
also been received from Defra, which had been saved over the previous 
three years in order to respond to the duties arising from the Flood and 
Water Management Act.  Defra also provided additional funding and an 
opportunity for properties to bid for property protection grants (up to £5k). 

• Whether Central Bedfordshire being a low risk flood area was likely to 
affect the level of funding that could be obtained.  In response officers 
suggested this shouldn’t be an issue, officers would consider the  
hypothetical impact of a major incident in a high risk flood area in Central 
Bedfordshire to determine the level of funding that was necessary.  

• Concerns that the views of Town and Parish Councils may have changed 
in light of the recent floods, which would have provided a different 
consultation responses.  Cllr Spurr invited Town and Parish Council to 
advise the Council of their views if they had changed following their initial 
consultation response.  

 
RECOMMENDED to Executive that the Local Flood Risk Management 
Strategy and associated action plan be approved as the Council’s 
working strategy to manage local flood risk in Central Bedfordshire 

 
SCOSC/13/133 

  
Planning Guidance on Solar Farm Development  

The Executive Member and the Environmental Policy Manager introduced a 
report that set out recommended technical guidance on the development of 
solar farms in Central Bedfordshire.  The Committee were also advised of 
the range of aspects that were proposed for consideration during the 
consideration of a planning application for any potential solar farms in 
addition to the next steps for the document following its consideration by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

 
In light of the report the Committee discussed the following issues in detail:-  

• Whether consultants had been employed to draft the technical guidance 
or if they would be used to provide advice in the future.  Officers clarified 
that consultants had not been used to draft the guidance but that the 
Council’s own expert officers had been heavily involved.  If necessary 
could be used in the future to advise on issues such as glint, glare and 
noise in relation to specific planning applications. 

• Whether it was appropriate to freeze the classification of agricultural land 
in Central Bedfordshire as due to the impact of climate change it was 
likely that land quality would change over time. In response officers 
stated that the quality of the land would be reviewed regularly 

• Whether solar farms would be precluded in areas that were deemed to 
be ‘sensitive’ and whether the document was guidance or an obligation.  
In response Cllr Young commented that the guidance would be reviewed 
alongside the draft Development Strategy so that it could become a 
supplementary planning document (SPD), which would carry more 

Agenda Item 4
Page 9



SCOSC 
-  

10.04.14 

Page 6  
 

 

weight.  If the document became an SPD it would still not outweigh a 
policy within an adopted plan, so would not be an obligation.  

• Concerns regarding specific references to Marston Vale and Cranfield.  It 
was clarified by officers that the guidance referred to appropriate 
locations, which in this context were on an elevated plateau that could be 
screened effectively.  All individual applications would be considered on 
their own merits.  

• References to the area at Whitsondoles should be reviewed as this was 
located outside of Central Bedfordshire.  

 
RECOMMENDED to Executive that the solar farm guidance be adopted 
as technical guidance for development management purposes.  

 
SCOSC/13/134 

  
Work Programme and Executive Forward Plan  

The Committee received its current draft work programme for 2014/15 and 
noted the following amendments:-  

• The addition of a Special meeting on 12 May to receive the draft 
Development Strategy and Plan Making Programme. 

• Presentation on SEMLEP to be considered on 19 June 2014 

• Report on the revised Planning Obligations Strategy to be considered on 
19 June 2014 

• Report on Local Development Order for the Woodside Industrial Estate 
to be removed 

 
In addition the Committee agreed to add a new item relating to the 
resources available to deliver enforcement in waste management so that 
Members could better understand the resources that were available to 
resolve issues relating to fly-tipping.  

 
RECOMMENDED that the work programme be approved subject to the 
amendments detailed above. 

 
(Note: The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and concluded at 11.54 

a.m.) 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 10



 
 

Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 08 May 2014  

Subject: Development Brief – Land at Potton Road, Biggleswade 

Report of: Cllr Nigel Young, Executive Member Sustainable Communities; 
Strategic Planning and Economic Development 

Summary: The report outlines the proposals contained within the draft development 
brief for land at Potton Road, Biggleswade and outlines where changes 
have been made in response to public consultation.  It further 
recommends that the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee endorse the development brief and that Executive adopt it as 
technical guidance for Development Management purposes. 

 

 

Advising Officer: Jason Longhurst, Director of Regeneration and Business 
Support 

Contact Officer: Carry Murphy, Principal Planning Officer, Local Planning and 
Housing Team 

Public/Exempt: Public  

Wards Affected: Biggleswade 

Function of: Council 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

1. The development brief will deliver against two of the Council’s key priorities: 

• Enhancing Central Bedfordshire – creating jobs, managing growth, 
protecting our countryside and enabling businesses to grow. 

• Better infrastructure – improved roads, broadband reach and transport. 

Financial: 

2. The creation of the development brief will not represent a financial burden on 
the Council.  Many of the costs for creating the development brief have been 
borne by the promoters. Furthermore, a Planning Performance Agreement 
(PPA), a collaborative project management tool, has been entered into with 
the Planning Division which has secured funding for the administration and 
supervision of the development brief and subsequent determination of any 
future planning applications.  

Legal: 

3. Once adopted as technical guidance the development brief will constitute a 
material planning consideration to be taken into account when determining 
applications made in respect of the site. 

 

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 11



Risk Management: 

4. Policy HA1 of the adopted Site Allocations DPD allocates this land for 
development and makes clear the requirement for the production of a 
development brief for the site. The policy and development brief together set 
the requirements for the development and a framework within which future 
planning decisions will be made. A failure to endorse the development brief 
and determine any subsequent planning applications in accordance with the 
agreed PPA timelines may result in the Council being forced to pay back a 
meaning proportion of the monies secured through the PPA. 

5. An adopted development brief will give more certainty to the development 
management process, although there are still risks associated with this 
separate statutory stage such as securing adequate planning obligations to 
meet the needs of the development and a failure to meet the public’s 
expectations of the development. 

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

6. Not Applicable.  

Equalities/Human Rights: 

7. Central Bedfordshire Council has a statutory duty to promote equality of 
opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination. The Equality Impact 
assessment (EIA) that was undertaken for the Site Allocations DPD 
highlighted the need for: 

• The delivery of housing and employment in towns and villages throughout 
the north of Central Bedfordshire. 

• The selection of housing sites on the basis that that future residents live in 
locations close to services and public transport routes. 

• Provision of land for community facilities. 

8. The EIA concluded that the emphasis placed on ensuring that developments 
are allocated within sustainable locations and ensuring that residents are able 
to access employment opportunities, facilities and services to meet their 
everyday needs should help to ensure a positive impact for all sections of the 
community. Sections 25-30 of this report highlights the key design principles 
development brief, many of which will address key equality issues such as 
affordable housing and Lifetime Homes. 

Public Health 

9. The Council needs to ensure that it complies with its duties to promote access 
to green space, encourage sustainable transport and ensure that the built 
environment maximises opportunities for physical activity. This in turn will help 
the Council to improve outcomes for health and wellbeing. The development 
brief requires new or improved facilities and which will allow people to use 
sustainable modes of transport as well as on-site provision of additional open 
space, which will contribute to health and wellbeing. 

Community Safety: 

10. The Council needs to ensure that it complies with its statutory duties under 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act and as such the development brief 
refers to compliance with the Central Bedfordshire Design Guide which 
includes criteria set down for community safety. 

Agenda Item 10
Page 12



Sustainability: 

11. Biggleswade is the largest town in Central Bedfordshire (North) area. Within the 
Core Strategy and Development Management Policies Development Plan 
Document (DPD) for Central Bedfordshire (North), Biggleswade has been 
identified as a major service centre with good road and rail connections capable 
of accommodating additional housing and employment provision.  The 
proposed development would also contribute toward the vitality and viability of 
local facilities thereby reducing the need to travel. The Site Allocations DPD 
has also been the subject of a Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic 
Environmental Assessment.    

Procurement: 

12. Not applicable.  

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

The Committee is asked to:- 

1. To endorse the development brief and recommend to Executive that it be 
adopted as technical guidance for Development Management purposes. 

 

Purpose of the Development Brief 

13. The draft development brief (Appendix A) provides the background and policy 
context for this site and its allocation for residential development. It also sets out 
the aims for the development identifying the particular constraints and 
opportunities of the site and confirms the range of technical work which any 
planning application must address. 

14. The brief is a high level document whose purpose is to set out general 
principles; the more concentrated and detailed work is a matter to be 
addressed at the planning application stages.  Nevertheless, it does provide a 
mechanism through which members of the public and other interested parties 
can have a greater involvement in the development of proposals for the site 
and provide some certainty as to the future development of the site.  Once 
approved, the brief will act as Development Management guidance and any 
future planning applications will be considered against the background of the 
adopted brief. 

Background 

15. Biggleswade is classified in planning terms as a ‘major service centre’. It has 
grown steadily over a number of years in terms of housing, jobs and services. 

16. In November 2009, the Council adopted the Core Strategy and Development 
Management DPD following an Examination in Public.   The Core Strategy 
required the delivery of at least 17,950 new homes between 2001 and 2026 
with 5,000 new homes required in addition to those already committed. Of 
these 5,000, the Core Strategy stated that 250-500 homes should be provided 
in Biggleswade (Policy CS5: Providing Homes).  

17. In April 2011, the Council formally adopted the Site Allocations DPD following a 
public examination. Two sites were allocated for residential development in 
Biggleswade providing for a total of 373 dwellings.  Policy HA1 allocates the land 
at Potton Road for a minimum of 330 dwellings. This is, therefore, an important 
site in helping the Council meet its future housing requirements.  

Agenda Item 10
Page 13



18. Policy HA1 states that development on the site will be subject to a number of 
requirements.  A full list of these requirements is set out on page 12 of the 
development brief and is covered in more detail below.  There is also an 
obligation for a development brief to be prepared to help inform subsequent 
planning applications and guide the development.  

19. Since late 2013 Council officers, from a wide range of service areas, have been 
working in partnership with the developers for the site, on the preparation of a 
development brief for this site.  Council Officers and the developers have also 
met with the representatives of the Biggleswade Town Council on two 
occasions.  This work has explored the local and site specific issues to inform 
the development brief. 

20. A planning performance agreement (PPA) has been entered into between the 
Council and the landowners/promoter.  The agreement identifies a shared vision 
and identifies key milestones and timescales for the delivery of a planning 
decision by both the Council and the developer.  Whilst it offers project 
management certainty, this does not mean a favourable planning application 
outcome is guaranteed. 

The Development Brief  

21. Land west of Potton Road, Biggleswade comprises of an 11 hectare site located 
on the north-western side of Potton Road (B1040), immediately north east of the 
town. Location plans and aerial photographs are shown in the draft brief.  

22. The site may be described as a trapezium shaped parcel of land which is 
generally level in topography terms. There are two existing gated vehicular 
access points from Potton Road. The site comprises a derelict plant nursery 
adjacent to the short eastern boundary with a group of greenhouses. The 
remainder of the land is in arable use with further open farmland to the north. 
There are some mature trees and hedgerows to the northern and to the south-
western section of the Potton Road frontage. The western boundary is 
predominantly open.  

23.  The site abuts some residential properties which will need careful regard when 
designing a layout scheme.  These are: 

• Along the south west boundary set centrally within the development 
site’s Potton Road frontage, but excluded from it, a small group of three 
detached bungalows; and  

• To the front of the derelict nursery but excluded from the development 
sites is a pair of semi-detached houses.  

• Immediately to the south-west of the site is a wider area of suburban 
housing estates.  

24.  Opposite the development site is an urban extension under construction for 
some 2,000 dwellings referred to as ‘land east of Biggleswade’. Edward Peake 
Middle School and Potton Hospital are also located off Potton Road (east side) 
and in close proximity to the site. 

Agenda Item 10
Page 14



25.  The brief sets out a number of design principles under Section 6 
‘Opportunities’ and Section 7 ‘Proposals and Visions For The Site’ to which 
any development proposals will need to adhere.  In particular, the amount and 
type of development envisaged as well as the mix and type of dwellings 
(including particular needs such as affordable housing), scale, massing, 
drainage, landscape and open space requirements will need to be carefully 
considered. 

26. Given the site’s location, the brief aims to ensure that quality design is 
achieved throughout the development, providing a clear sense of place that 
enhances and integrates successfully with the surrounding development to the 
south and open countryside to the north, east and west.  

27.  In response to addressing these issues any layout scheme the development 
will need to take account of the site’s constraints and opportunities associated 
with the site together with other relevant urban design principles set out in the 
Council Design Guide, for examples the street hierarchy and parking.  An 
opportunities plan has therefore been prepared and is shown in figure 6.1of 
the brief. 

28. The brief is explicit in setting out the Council’s specific requirements for access 
and connectivity both within and immediately surrounding the site in accordance 
with policy HA1. These cover the timing of the development in relation to the 
completion of the relief road to the east of Biggleswade and roundabout at 
Potton Road. An assessment will also need to be undertaken into the impact of 
additional traffic on the B1040 Potton Road and A1/A6001 roundabout and Sun 
Street, and a satisfactory resolution on the impact of additional traffic on the A1 
roundabouts and on the roads within the town.  The extent of physical mitigation 
works or financial contributions to address these impacts will need to be 
determined and considered as part of any future planning application. 

29. There are also opportunities to improve and enhance connections into, out from 
and around the site. These routes will connect to existing roads and footpaths 
including the proposed Biggleswade Green Wheel. This will promote more 
sustainable means of travel to other areas of the town and countryside. 

30. The brief sets out the Council’s likely requirements for developer contributions 
in line with the adopted Planning Obligations Strategy. These also cover 
contributions to improvements of key projects in the town such as the town 
centre redevelopment proposals and Biggleswade Common. 

Consultation and Changes in response to feedback 

31. A public consultation on the draft development brief was held from 13th March 
to 9th April 2014. The consultation exercise was advertised through a variety of 
media in accordance with established procedures. Letters to statutory 
consultees were sent as well as over 1,000 letters to residents living in the 
vicinity of the site. Copies of the document were made available to view on the 
Council’s website and at the Council’s offices, Biggleswade Library and 
Biggleswade Town Council offices.  A questionnaire was available to complete 
and submit via post or on-line.  Added to this, a public exhibition was held on 
13th March at the Town Council’s buildings. This was attended by 
representatives of the developers as wells as Council officers. Approximately 
85 people attended the exhibition.  

32. A total of 35 survey responses were received along with a further 12 written 
responses.  Formal comments have been submitted by the Town Council, 
Highways Agency, English Heritage, Environment Agency, Anglian Water, 

Agenda Item 10
Page 15



Health and Safety Executive and Natural England. The feedback in these 
responses has been analysed and a detailed response has been provided in 
the consultation statement Appendix B.  

33.  A number of comments received have been about the principle of development 
itself and in the context of Biggleswade being able to absorb further 
development.  Other responses include comments on the issues residents 
perceive to have a bearing on the development and their personal aspirations 
for the site.  Adopted planning policies will prevail and therefore comments 
which relate to dwelling numbers, mix and tenure, are not pertinent. They are 
also not salient to informing the development brief given its purpose is to 
identify key principles for the site, opportunities and constraints and are 
therefore more relevant to any subsequent planning application.   

34. A summary of other comments received of relevance to the development itself 
are as follows:  

a)  Access arrangements to and from the site. 

b)  Concerns about safety and additional traffic around the school. 

c) Impact of additional traffic on Potton Road and wider network. 

d) Amenity impact for existing neighbouring properties.  

e) Issues about open space and connectivity. 

f) Need for adequate parking and road design. 

g) Potential impacts and loss of Rights of Way and Bridleways on the site’s 
boundaries. 

h) Impacts on the natural environment – loss of trees/hedgerows, wildlife 
affected. 

i) Integration with the existing neighbourhood and rest of town. 

j) Impact on local facilities/services and need for improvements to address 
this. 

35.  A table is included in Appendix B which summarises the main comments 
received during the consultation, each with a response explaining how each 
issue will be addressed, and a column showing changes to the brief where 
necessary.  The main issues identified above were responded to as follows: 

a) The safest method of access to the site will be considered in consultation 
with the CBC Highways Officers through the Transport Assessment. This 
was already stated in the Brief so no change was proposed. 

b) Discussions are to be arranged with Edward Peake School to ensure that 
they are satisfied with the proposed arrangements for access to the 
development site. In addition to this text was added to section 2.3.1 of the 
brief to confirm that Edward Peake School would retain their crossing 
point.  

c) A full Transport Assessment to CBC’s satisfaction will be accompanying 
the planning application. The Transport Assessment is being prepared 
within a scope agreed with CBC, including consideration of contentious 
junctions within the town and assessment of impact on the Eastern Relief 
Road. Section 7.8 was added to the brief to confirm that this development 
would not come forward without completion of the Eastern Relief Road.  

d) Text was added to Section 2.3.1 to reference the need to regard 

Agenda Item 10
Page 16



relationships with existing properties.  

e) Some comments were made about the location of open spaces, 
suggesting that a more holistic approach with linked open spaces would 
be preferable as it would form a green corridor for residents and wildlife. 
This has been noted for consideration in the planning application stage.  

f) Many comments concerned the quality of design, in particular road design 
and provision of adequate parking.  The reference to the CBC Design 
Guide in the brief was updated to reflect that the Design Guide has now 
been adopted. 

g) Text was added to section 6.7 to confirm that the existing footpath and 
bridleway to the west and north respectively would be retained and 
improved. It was also confirmed that the view from the bridleway and 
footpath would be considered. 

h) Text was added to section 7.4 to confirm that existing hedgerows would 
be retained and enhanced. The brief already stated that full Ecological 
surveys would be undertaken and submitted at Planning Application 
stage, so no change was proposed. 

i) Comments were made in relation to the integration of the site in to the 
surrounding rural area and the need for high-quality design. The brief 
already stated that a full Landscape Visual Impact Assessment would be 
undertaken and that the development would take account of the Design 
Guide so no change to the brief was proposed. 

j) The brief already had a section on potential Section 106 contributions, so 
no change was proposed in response to the comments about pressure on 
facilities.  

36.  Some comments of a technical nature have also been received and are largely 
concerned with clarification being made to the brief on the requirements of the 
development.  

37. The proposed changes to the draft development brief have been highlighted in 
Appendix A. 

Conclusion and Next Steps  

38. 

 

Full consideration has been afforded to the consultation exercise and, where 
appropriate, amendments have been made to the draft brief. As a technical 
document, the development brief has followed due process and is fit for 
development management purposes.  

 

Appendices: 

Appendix A – Draft development brief incorporating proposed changes 

Appendix B – Draft Statement of Community Involvement and consultation results 

 

Background papers and their location:   

Core Strategy and Development Management Policies DPD 

Site Allocations Development Plan Document 

 

Location of papers: Priory House, Chicksands 

Agenda Item 10
Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F

P
O

T
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

B
IG

G
L
E

S
W

A
D

E

D
R

A
F

T
 E

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A

Agenda Item 10
Page 19



Agenda Item 10
Page 20



5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

C
O

N
T
E

N
T
S

1
.0

   
 IN

T
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 

 
1
.1

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E

 
1
.2

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T
IO

N

 
1
.3

 S
C

O
P

E

 
1
.4

 B
A

C
K

G
R

O
U

N
D

 
1
.5

 W
H

A
T
 IS

 A
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
?

2
.0

   
 S

IT
E

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

T
E

X
T
 A

P
P

R
A

IS
A

L
 

2
.1

.0
 L

O
C

A
T
IO

N

 
2
.2

.1
 T

H
E

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 S

IT
E

 
2
.2

.2
 U

S
E

 
2
.2

.3
 T

O
P

O
G

R
A

P
H

Y
/L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 F
E

A
T
U

R
E

S

 
2
.2

.4
 A

C
C

E
S

S

 
2
.2

.5
 R

IG
H

T
S

 O
F
 W

A
Y

 
2
.3

.1
 S

U
R

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 A

R
E

A

3
.0

   
 L

O
C

A
L 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 F

R
A

M
E

W
O

R
K

3
.1

 P
O

L
IC

Y
 H

A
1
: L

A
N

D
 A

T
 P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
, 

B
IG

G
L
E

S
W

A
D

E

4
.0

   
 S

U
P

P
L
E

M
E

N
TA

R
Y

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 G
U

ID
A

N
C

E
4
.1

.0
 T

H
E

 C
E

N
T
R

A
L 

B
E

D
F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 D
E

S
IG

N
 G

U
ID

E
 

2
0
1
4

4
.1

.1
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 O
B

L
IG

A
T
IO

N
S

4
.1

.2
 L

O
C

A
L 

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
 P

L
A

N

4
.1

.3
 M

ID
 B

E
D

F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 G
R

E
E

N
 IN

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 

P
L
A

N

4
.1

.4
 B

IG
G

L
E

S
W

A
D

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 IN
F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 P
L
A

N

4
.1

.5
  B

IG
G

L
E

S
W

A
D

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 W
H

E
E

L
: 

G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

C
E

 M
A

S
T
E

R
P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

5
.0

   
 C

O
N

S
T
R

A
IN

T
S

   
 

6
.0

   
 O

P
P

O
R

T
U

N
IT

IE
S

6
.1

 N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
S

 F
O

R
 B

IG
G

L
E

S
W

A
D

E

6
.2

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 O

F
 D

E
S

IG
N

6
.3

 C
E

N
T
R

A
L 

B
E

D
F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 D
E

S
IG

N
 G

U
ID

E

6
.4

 O
P

E
N

 S
P
A

C
E

6
.5

 P
U

B
L
IC

 A
R

T

6
.6

 P
O

S
IT

IV
E

 IN
T
E

G
R

A
T
IO

N
 W

IT
H

 E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

6
.7

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

D
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
S

ID
E

7
.0

   
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

 A
N

D
 V

IS
IO

N
S

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 S
IT

E
 

7
.1

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 O

F
 H

O
U

S
IN

G

 
7
.2

 A
F
F
O

R
D

A
B

L
E

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 
7
.3

 P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 O
B

L
IG

A
T
IO

N
S

 
7
.4

 S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

L
A

C
E

 A
N

D
 IN

T
E

G
R

A
T
IO

N

 
7
.5

 C
O

N
N

E
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 
7
.6

 E
C

O
L
O

G
Y

 
7
.7

 O
P

E
N

 S
P
A

C
E

8
.0

   
 A

P
P

L
IC

A
T
IO

N
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

9
.0

   
 A

B
B

R
E

V
IA

T
IO

N
S

B
E

E
C

H
W

O
O

D
, G

R
O

V
E

 P
A

R
K

, 

W
A

LT
H

A
M

 R
O

A
D

, 

M
A

ID
E

N
H

E
A

D
, 

S
L
6
 3

LW

D
L
A
 T

O
W

N
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 L
T
D

5
 T

H
E

 G
A
V

E
L 

C
E

N
T
R

E

P
O

R
T
E

R
S

 W
O

O
D

, S
T
 A

L
B

A
N

S
, 

H
E

R
T
S

,

A
L
3
 6

P
Q

C
E

N
T
R

A
L 

B
E

D
F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

, 

P
R

IO
R

Y
 H

O
U

S
E

M
O

N
K

S
 W

A
L
K

, C
H

IC
K

S
A

N
D

S

S
H

E
F
F
O

R
D

,

S
G

1
7
 5

T
Q

1
2
0
 O

L
D

 B
R

O
A

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T,
 

L
O

N
D

O
N

,

E
C

2
 1

A
R

Agenda Item 10
Page 21



4
5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

B
ig

g
le

sw
a

d
e

 C
o

m
m

o
n

S
it

e

Fo
o

tp
a

th
s

B
ri

d
le

w
a

y

E
a

st
e

rn
 R

e
lie

f 
R

o
a

d
  

IN
T
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
1

T
h
is

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

B
ri
e
f 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 

b
y
 

B
e
llw

a
y
 

H
o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 

B
lo

o
r 

H
o
m

e
s
, 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

 
It

 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 
to

 
g
u
id

e
 
th

e
 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 p

a
rc

e
l 

o
f 

la
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s
 l

o
c
a
te

d
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
-w

e
s
te

rn
 s

id
e
 o

f 
P

o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 (

B
1
0
4
0
),

 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 
to

 
th

e
 

n
o
rt

h
-e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

to
w

n
 

o
f 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
. 

T
h
e
 
s
it
e
 
is

 
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 
fo

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
 

m
in

im
u
m

 
o
f 

3
3
0
 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
. 

T
h
is

 b
ri
e
f 

a
im

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

is
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

a
n
 

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ts

 
th

e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

b
u
ilt

 
fo

rm
 

o
f 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 

a
n
d
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

 
T

h
e
 

s
it
e
 

is
 

s
h
o
w

n
 

in
 

1
.3

 a
n
d
 1

.4
 p

re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 n

e
a
rb

y
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
.

F
ig

. 
1
.1

F
ig

. 
1
.2

F
ig

. 
1
.3

F
ig

. 
1
.4

Agenda Item 10
Page 22



5
5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

1
.1

 
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

is
 t

o
:

• 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

a
n
 

u
rb

a
n
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 
fo

r 

th
e
 

s
it
e
, 

b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 

s
it
e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
;

• 
P

ro
v
id

e
 
d
e
s
ig

n
 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

s
it
e
 

a
n
d
 

a
s
s
is

t 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

fu
tu

re
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
;

• 
P

ro
v
id

e
 

c
le

a
r 

in
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 
to

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
;

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
to

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
n
y
 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
;

• 
P

ro
v
id

e
 

a
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

w
h
ic

h
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 

c
a
n
 

h
a
v
e
 

g
re

a
te

r 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
; 

a
n
d

• 
P

ro
v
id

e
 
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 
fo

r 
p
ro

s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 

fu
tu

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
.

It
 

is
 

in
te

n
d
e

d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

d
ra

ft
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

e
n
d
o

rs
e
d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

a
 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

in
 

g
u
id

in
g
 

a
n
d
 

in
fo

rm
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 i

n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
.

1
.2

 
C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N

T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

a
n
 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 

a
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

(S
C

I)
 w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

h
o
w

 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

th
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 S

C
I 

d
o
e
s
 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
, 

it
 i

s
 i

n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 t

h
is

 b
ri
e
f 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 
th

e
 
b
ro

a
d
 
p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 
S

C
I.

 

T
h
e
 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 
P

o
lic

y
 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
p
la

c
e
s
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 

o
n
 

e
a
rl
y
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

k
e
y
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

, 
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 
g
ro

u
p
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
th

e
r 

in
te

re
s
te

d
 

p
a
rt

ie
s
. 

T
h
e
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

e
x
p
la

in
s
 

th
a
t 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

p
re

-a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 

e
n
a
b
le

s
 

a
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y.

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 

w
it
h
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

o
f 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 

th
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
in

fo
rm

 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

h
o
w

 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 b

o
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 
T

h
is

 d
ra

ft
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
, 

ta
k
in

g
 i

n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
e
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
s
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

T
h
is

 
d
ra

ft
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

is
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

fo
r 

a
 

fo
u
r 

w
e
e
k
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

b
e
g
in

n
in

g
 

o
n
 

T
h

u
rs

d
a
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 1

3
th

 a
n
d
 e

n
d
in

g
 o

n
 W

e
d

n
e
s
d

a
y
 A

p
ri

l 
9
th

. 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
f 

th
e
 
p
u
b
lic

 
a
re

 
in

v
it
e
d
 
to

 
v
ie

w
 
p
la

n
s
 

a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 s

a
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f.

 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
a
y
s
 i

n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

o
 v

ie
w

 a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t:

1
) 

V
is

it
 t

h
e
 P

u
b

li
c
 E

x
h

ib
it

io
n

: 

A
 

p
u
b
lic

 
e
x
h
ib

it
io

n
 

is
 

ta
k
in

g
 

p
la

c
e
 

o
n
 

T
h
u
rs

d
a
y
 

1
3
th

 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4
 

(b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

2
p
m

-8
p
m

) 
a
t 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll,

 T
h
e
 O

ld
 

C
o
u
rt

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

4
 S

a
ff
ro

n
 R

o
a
d
, 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
.

2
) 

V
is

it
 t

h
e
 w

e
b

s
it

e
: 

w
w

w
.c

e
n
tr

a
lb

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v.

u
k
/c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
    

3
) 

V
ie

w
 

th
e
 

d
o

c
u

m
e
n

t 
a
t 

th
e
 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 

lo
c
a
ti

o
n

s
:

• 
B

ig
g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 

L
ib

ra
ry

, 
C

h
e
s
tn

u
t 

A
v
e
n
u
e
, 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e

C
o
u
rt

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

4
 S

a
ff
ro

n
 R

o
a
d
, 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e

H
o
u
s
e
, 

C
h
ic

k
s
a
n
d
s

4
) 

P
a
p

e
r 

c
o

p
ie

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

d
o

c
u

m
e
n

t 
a
re

 

a
v
a
il

a
b

le
 o

n
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t:

 

C
o
n
ta

c
t 

th
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

T
e
a
m

 o
n
 T

e
l.
 0

3
0
0
 3

0
0
 4

3
5
3
. 

A
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a

ir
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
u
b
lic

, 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f.

 

A
ll 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 

b
y
 

5
p
m

 
W

e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 

9
th

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
. 

W
ri
tt

e
n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 m
a
y
 b

e
 e

m
a
ile

d
 t

o
 

ld
f@

c
e
n
tr

a
lb

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v.

u
k
 

o
r 

p
o
s
te

d
 

to
 

th
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 f

re
e
p
o
s
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
:

F
R

E
E

P
O

S
T

 R
S

J
S

 G
B

B
2
 S

R
Z

T
 (

y
o

u
 d

o
 n

o
t 

n
e
e
d

 

a
 s

ta
m

p
)

P
o

tt
o

n
 R

o
a
d

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
b

ri
e
f

C
e
n

tr
a
l 

B
e
d

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

, 
P

ri
o

ry
 H

o
u

s
e

M
o

n
k
s
 W

a
lk

, 
C

h
ic

k
s
a
n

d
s

S
h

e
ff

o
rd

, 
S

G
1
7
 5

T
Q

Agenda Item 10
Page 23



6
5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
is

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 

th
e
 

d
ra

ft
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

w
ill

 b
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
, 

ta
k
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n

s
 o

r 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
.  

T
h
e
 

re
v
is

e
d

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

w
ill

 
th

e
n
 

b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

f 
C

e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

e
n
d
o
rs

e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 
s
it
e
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 

in
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 

o
f 

a
n
y
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
 

a
s
 t

h
e
y
 e

v
o
lv

e
. 

1
.3

 
S

C
O

P
E

T
h
is

 
b
ri
e
f 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 

a
n
d
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 p

o
lic

y.

T
h
is

 
b
ri
e
f 

is
 

b
ro

k
e
n
 

d
o
w

n
 

in
to

 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
: 

• 
C

h
a
p
te

r 
2
 p

re
s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 

it
s
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 c

o
n
te

x
t;

• 
C

h
a
p
te

r 
3
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 H

A
1
;

• 
C

h
a
p
te

r 
4
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 

th
e
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
;

• 
C

h
a
p
te

r 
5
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
;

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 p

re
s
e
n
ts

;

• 
C

h
a
p
te

r 
7
 
o
u
tl
in

e
s
 
th

e
 
v
is

io
n
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
d
e
v
e
l-

o
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
;

• 
C

h
a
p
te

r 
8
 
s
e
ts

 
o
u
t 

th
e
 
e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 
fo

r 
a
n
y
 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
; 

a
n
d

• 
C

h
a
p
te

r 
9
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
ta

g
e
s
.

1
.4

 
B

A
C

K
G

R
O

U
N

D

P
o
lic

y
 

H
A

1
 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

S
it
e
 

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

(N
o
rt

h
 

A
re

a
) 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 
in

 
2
0
1
1
 
a
llo

c
a
te

s
 
th

e
 
la

n
d
 
fo

r 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

3
3
0
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
. 

P
o
lic

y
 H

A
1
 s

ta
te

s
 

th
a
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

to
 g

u
id

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 
o
n
 
p
o
lic

y
 
H

A
1
 
is

 
g
iv

e
n
 
in

 
c
h
a
p
te

r 
3
. 

T
h
e
 i

n
s
e
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 m
a
p
 f

o
r 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
, 

a
s
 g

iv
-

e
n
 
in

 
C

e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 
N

o
rt

h
 
L
o
c
a
l 

T
h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rc

e
l 

o
f 

la
n
d
 c

o
v
-

e
re

d
 b

y
 P

o
lic

y
 H

A
1
.

1
.5

 
W

H
A

T
 IS

 A
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
?

T
h
is

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

is
 

a
 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 
p
u
b
lic

 
c
o
n
s
u
l-

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

w
ill

 t
h
e
n
 g

u
id

e
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 

a
 f

u
ll 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
.

Agenda Item 10
Page 24



7
5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

F
ig

. 
1
.5

 D
L
F

 P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L
S

 M
A

P
 (

N
O

R
T

H
) 

B
IG

G
L
E

S
W

A
D

E
 I

N
S

E
T

 7
 (

S
O

U
R

C
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 W

W
W

.C
E

N
T

R
A

L
B

E
D

F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

.G
O

V
.U

K
)

B
R

IE
F

 C
O

V
E

R
S

S
IT

E
 H

A
1

Agenda Item 10
Page 25



8
5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

S
IT

E
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
T
E

X
T

 

A
P

P
R

A
IS

A
L

2
2
.1

.0
 L

O
C

A
T
IO

N

T
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 

is
 

lo
c
a
te

d
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

n
o
rt

h
-

w
e
s
te

rn
 s

id
e
 o

f 
P

o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 (

B
1
0
4
0
),

 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 

to
 

th
e
 

n
o
rt

h
-e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

to
w

n
 

o
f 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
. 

F
ig

u
re

 
2
.1

 
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 
a
n
 

a
e
ri
a
l 

v
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e
 

s
it
e
, 

w
h
ils

t 
p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 

s
h
o
w

in
g
 

v
ie

w
s
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 

th
e
 

c
h
a
p
te

r.
 

2
.2

.1
 T

H
E

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 S

IT
E

T
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 

is
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
lly

 
a
 

tr
a
p
e
z
o
id

 

s
h
a
p
e
d
 p

a
rc

e
l,
 1

1
h
a
 i

n
 s

iz
e
. 

C
lo

s
e
 u

p
 a

e
ri
a
l 

v
ie

w
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
re

lic
t 

n
u
rs

e
ry

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
, 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 

b
a
c
k
in

g
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 

a
n
d
 2

.4
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.

F
ig

u
re

 2
.5

 p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 i

n
 i

ts
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 

a
n
d
 

is
 

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

2
.8

. 
F

ig
u
re

 
2
.6

 
s
h
o
w

s
 
th

e
 
d
e
re

lic
t 

n
u
rs

e
ry

 
w

h
ic

h
 

P
o
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
s
it
e
 s

id
e
 o

f 
P

o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
.

F
ig

 2
.2

 V
ie

w
 o

f 
d
e
re

lic
t 

n
u
rs

e
ry

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

s
it
e

F
ig

. 
2
.1

F
ig

 2
.3

 V
ie

w
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 b

a
c
k
 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 f

a
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

it
e

F
ig

 2
.4

 V
ie

w
 o

f 
tr

a
c
k
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

w
e
s
te

rn
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

Agenda Item 10
Page 26



9
5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

C

C

CP

B
A

L
A

N
C

IN
G

 P
O

N
D

H
E

D
G

E
S

T
R

E
E

S
 O

F
 H

IG
H

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y

T
R

A
N

S
P

A
R

E
N

T
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

P
R

IV
A

T
E

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

R
E

A
 F

A
C

IN
G

 

S
IT

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

N
E

A
R

E
S

T
 B

U
S

 S
T

O
P

V
E

H
IC

U
L
A

R
 R

O
U

T
E

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
 S

ID
E

 T
R

A
C

K
S

/F
O

O
T

P
A

T
H

S

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 V
IS

U
A

L
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

V
IE

W
S

 F
R

O
M

 S
IT

E

V
IE

W
S

 T
O

 L
A

N
D

M
A

R
K

 O
R

 O
T

H
E

R

F
E

A
T

U
R

E

S
E

N
S

IT
IV

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y
 W

IT
H

 

N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

IN
G

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IE

S

F
ig

. 
2
.7

 V
ie

w
 o

f 
b
a
la

n
c
in

g
 p

o
n
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

P
o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 f

ro
m

 s
it
e

2
.2

.2
 U

S
E

A
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 

th
e
 

s
h
o
rt

 
e
a
s
te

rn
 

s
it
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 
is

 

a
 

d
e
re

lic
t 

p
la

n
t 

n
u
rs

e
ry

 
(s

h
o
w

n
 

in
 

F
ig

u
re

 
2
.2

),
 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 a

 r
e
c
ta

n
g
u
la

r 
g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
s
. 

It
 

2
.2

.3
 T

O
P

O
G

R
A

P
H

Y
 / 

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 F

E
A

T
U

R
E

S

T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 l
e
v
e
l.
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 m

a
tu

re
 

tr
e
e
s
 /

 h
e
d
g
e

ro
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 a
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

-

w
e
s
te

rn
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

P
o
tt

o
n
 

R
o
a
d
 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
. 

T
o
 
th

e
 
n
o
rt

h
-e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
g
ro

u
p
 
o
f 

3
 
h
o
u
s
e
s
, 

th
e
 

s
it
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 
is

 
la

rg
e
ly

 
o
p
e
n
, 

o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

s
o
m

e
 

s
p
o
ra

d
ic

 g
ro

w
th

. 
T

h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 i
s
 o

p
e
n
.

2
.2

.4
 A

C
C

E
S

S

T
h
e
re

 
a
re

 
2
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

g
a
te

d
 

v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 
P

o
tt

o
n
 

R
o
a
d
. 

T
o
 

th
e
 

n
o
rt

h
-e

a
s
t 

is
 

th
e
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 
to

 
th

e
 
a
fo

re
m

e
n

ti
o
n
e
d
 
d
e
re

lic
t 

n
u
rs

e
ry

, 

w
it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 i

m
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
-e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 g

ro
u
p
 

o
f 

3
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

b
u
tt

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 

n
o
te

d
 a

t 
2
.3

.1
 b

e
lo

w
.

F
ig

 2
.6

 V
ie

w
 o

f 
d
e
re

lic
t 

n
u
rs

e
ry

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

s
it
e

F
ig

. 
2
.8

 V
ie

w
 o

f 
tr

a
c
k
 t

o
 w

e
s
te

rn
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

F
ig

. 
2
.5

 S
IT

E
 A

P
P

R
A

IS
A

L
 D

IA
G

R
A

M

Agenda Item 10
Page 27



1
0

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

2
.2

.5
 R

IG
H

T
S

 O
F
 W

A
Y

A
 
b
ri
d
le

w
a
y
 
(B

W
9
) 

ru
n
s
 
a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 
th

e
 
w

e
s
te

rn
 

s
it
e
 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
s
 
n
o
rt

h
w

a
rd

s
 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

2
.9

).
 A

 f
o
o
tp

a
th

 (
F

P
1
2
) 

ru
n
s
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 s
it
e
 

lin
k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 

s
o
u
th

, 
e
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
s
t.

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

F
ig

. 
2
.9

Agenda Item 10
Page 28



11
5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

2
.3

.1
 S

U
R

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 A

R
E

A

T
h
is

 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 l

o
c
a
lit

y
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 e

l-

e
m

e
n
ts

.

F
A

R
M

L
A

N
D

T
h
e
 s

it
e
 a

b
u
ts

 o
p
e
n
 f

a
rm

la
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 

(P
h
o
to

-

F
R

O
N

T
A

G
E

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

IE
S

S
e
t 

c
e
n
tr

a
lly

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
’s

 P
o
tt

o
n
 

R
o
a
d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
, 

b
u
t 

e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 i
t,

 o
c
c
u
p
y
in

g
 a

n
 

L
-s

h
a
p
e
d
 s

it
e
, 

is
 a

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
3
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 b

u
n
g
a
lo

w
s
 

fr
o
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
re

lic
t 

n
u
rs

e
ry

 a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
te

rn
 

s
it
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 i

s
 a

 

p
a
ir
 o

f 
s
e
m

i-
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 
n
e
e
d
 
to

 
h
a
v
e
 
re

g
a
rd

 
to

 
th

e
 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 
w

it
h
 

th
e
s
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
.

L
A

N
D

 E
A

S
T

 O
F

 B
IG

G
L
E

S
W

A
D

E

Im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 
o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 
th

e
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 
is

 
a
n
 

a
re

a
 o

f 
u
rb

a
n

 e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

2
,0

0
0
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
 t

o
 

th
e
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 s

e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 P

o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 

to
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 B

a
d
e
n
 P

o
w

e
ll 

W
a
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 

T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i

s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e

r 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 a

 c
o
n
-

s
o
rt

iu
m

 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

, 
k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 ‘

K
in

g
s
re

a
c
h
’ 

c
o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

, 
a
lb

e
it
 a

 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
9
5
 u

n
it
s
 

w
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 o

f 
th

is
 m

a
in

 

a
re

a
 o

n
 l

a
n
d

 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

P
o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 (

o
p
p
o

-

s
it
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
),

 b
y
 D

a
v
id

 W
ils

o
n
 H

o
m

e
s
 

B
IG

G
L
E

S
W

A
D

E
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

T
h
is

 
is

 
lo

c
a
te

d
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

s
o
u
th

e
rn

 
s
id

e
 

o
f 

P
o
tt

o
n
 

R
o
a
d
, 

o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
re

lic
t 

n
u
rs

e
ry

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
-

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
.

B
IG

G
L
E

S
W

A
D

E

Im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 
to

 
th

e
 

s
o
u
th

-w
e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
-

m
e
n
t 

S
it
e
 i

s
 a

 w
id

e
r 

a
re

a
 o

f 
s
u
b
u
rb

a
n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 

th
e
 
n
o
rt

h
-e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
to

w
n
 
c
e
n
tr

e
. 

T
h
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 

th
e
 

m
o
d
e
rn

 
c
u
l-
d
e
-s

a
c
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

R
o
w

le
tt

s
 

V
ie

w
, 

w
h
ic

h
 b

a
c
k
s
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

w
e
s
te

rn
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 
(P

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 -

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

-w
e
s
te

rn
m

o
s
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
lit

y
 a

re
 t

y
p
ic

a
lly

 o
f 

tr
a
d
it
io

n
a
l 

p
it
c
h
e
d
 o

r 

h
ip

p
e
d
 
ro

o
f 

c
o
m

p
a
c
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
 
a
n
d
 
a
re

 
o
f 

2
 
s
to

re
y
 

h
e
ig

h
t.

 A
 m

ix
 o

f 
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
, 

s
e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

e
r-

ra
c
e
d
 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 
a
re

 
e
v
id

e
n
t.

 
A

 
S

c
h
o
o
l 

C
ro

s
s
in

g
 

P
o
in

t 
is

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

N
u
rs

e
ry

 C
lo

s
e
, 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 

b
e
 u

n
a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
. 

      
      
      
      
    

Agenda Item 10
Page 29



1
2

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

3
L
O

C
A

L
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 

F
R

A
M

E
W

O
R

K

3
.1

 
P

O
L
IC

Y
 H

A
1
: L

A
N

D
 A

T
 P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
, 

B
IG

G
L
E

S
W

A
D

E
 

P
o
lic

y
 H

A
1
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

d
e
-

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 b

a
s
is

:

S
it
e
 A

re
a
: 

1
1
.0

0
 h

a
 

L
a
n
d
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

P
o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d

, 
B

ig
g
le

s
w

a
d
e
, 

a
s
 i

d
e
n

- -

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
.

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
:

-

th
e
 B

ig
g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 E

a
s
te

rn
 R

e
lie

f 
R

o
a
d
 L

in
e
a
r - -

Agenda Item 10
Page 30



1
3

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

4
S

U
P

P
L
E

M
E

N
TA

R
Y

 

P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 G
U

ID
A

N
C

E

A
t 

th
e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
b
ri
e
f 

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

u
p
-

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
:

4
.1

.0
 T

H
E

 C
E

N
T
R

A
L
 B

E
D

F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 D
E

S
IG

N
 G

U
ID

E
 

2
0
1
4

T
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d

 D
e
s
ig

n
 G

u
id

e
 (

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
) 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 p

o
lic

y
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 N

P
P

F
),

 t
h
e
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 D

ra
ft

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

o
lic

y
 4

3
: 

H
ig

h
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 N

P
P

F
. 

It
 b

ro
a
d
ly

 f
o
llo

w
s
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 g

u
id

e
 t

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 i

n
 2

0
0
9
. 

It
 s

e
ts

 

o
u
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 k

e
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 w

it
h
 o

n
e
 c

o
re

 

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 n

in
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

th
e
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

u
p
p
le

-

m
e
n
ts

 
th

a
t 

a
d
d
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

d
e
ta

il 
o
n
 

a
re

a
s
 

lik
e
 

h
is

to
ri
c
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 g

re
e
n
 i

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

T
h
e
 

g
u
id

e
 
a
ls

o
 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 
fo

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 

s
p
a
c
e
 

d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
 

a
n
d
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
; 

a
n
d
 

s
tr

e
s
s
e
s
 

th
e
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 
o
f 

d
e
ta

ili
n
g
, 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
, 

b
in

 
s
to

ra
g
e
 

a
n
d
 

a
 

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
 

o
f 

s
a
fe

 
a
n
d
 

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e
 

s
tr

e
e
ts

. 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

is
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

L
e
is

u
re

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
ls

o
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d

. 
In

 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

is
 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 n

o
n
-p

re
s
c
ri
p
ti
v
e
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

te
d
 

th
a
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 

v
a
ry

 d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 c

o
n
te

x
t.

 

4
.1

.1
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 O
B

L
IG

A
T
IO

N
S

T
h
is

 
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

(S
P

D
) 

s
e
ts

 
o
u
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
fo

r 
a
n
 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 
to

 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h
 

n
e
w

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
.

4
.1

.2
 L

O
C

A
L
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T
 P

L
A

N

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

n
e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

f 
th

is
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

a
 l

o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 
C

e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
. 

T
h
e
 
L
o
c
a
l 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
P

la
n
 
(L

T
P

) 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 
C

y
-

c
lin

g
 

a
n
d
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

 
a
n
y
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

m
u
s
t 

ta
k
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

y
c
le

 P
a
rk

in
g
 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
.

4
.1

.3
 M

ID
 B

E
D

F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 G
R

E
E

N
 

IN
F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 P
L
A

N
 

T
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

is
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

G
re

e
n
 I

n
fr

a
-

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 
in

 
th

e
 
a
re

a
 
p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 
c
o
v
e
re

d
 
b
y
 
M

id
 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

 I
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 f
ra

m
e
-

w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

G
re

e
n
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
i-

ti
e
s
.

4
.1

.4
 B

IG
G

L
E

S
W

A
D

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 IN
F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 

P
L
A

N

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 

h
a
s
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e
d
 

it
s
 

o
w

n
 

G
re

e
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 v

a
lu

e
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 

a
n
d
 w

h
a
t 

a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
is

 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

 

4
.1

.5
 B

IG
G

L
E

S
W

A
D

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 W
H

E
E

L
:  

   
   

   
   

   
 

G
R

E
E

N
S

P
A

C
E

 M
A

S
T
E

R
P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
3
 

T
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
im

s
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 w

ild
lif

e
 r

ic
h
 s

e
tt

in
g
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e
 

la
n
d
s
c
a

p
e
 

c
o
rr

id
o
rs

, 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

w
a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d
 u

lt
im

a
te

ly
 c

y
c
lin

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 b

o
th

 a
ro

u
n
d
 

th
e
 u

rb
a
n
 f

ri
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
to

 a
n
d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 t

o
w

n
.

Agenda Item 10
Page 31



1
4

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

C

A
T

T
E

N
T

U
A

T
IO

N
 P

O
N

D

0
.4

 H
A

H
E

D
G

E
S

T
R

E
E

S
 O

F
 H

IG
H

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
/ 

R
O

O
T

 

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N

T
R

A
N

S
P

A
R

E
N

T
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

V
E

H
IC

U
L
A

R
 R

O
U

T
E

F
O

O
T

P
A

T
H

S

B
R

ID
L
E

W
A

Y
S

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 V
IS

U
A

L
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

4
.6

 M
 R

E
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 S

T
R

IP

W
A

T
E

R
 P

IP
E

S

F
O

U
L
 P

U
M

P
IN

G
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
 W

IT
H

 

1
5
M

 N
O

-B
U

IL
D

 Z
O

N
E

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

S
IT

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

IE
S

S
E

N
S

IT
IV

E
 C

O
N

S
ID

E
R

A
T

IO
N

 T
O

 

IN
T

E
R

F
A

C
E

 W
IT

H
 N

E
IG

H
B

O
U

R
IN

G
 

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IE

S
 

C

C

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

 T
O

 B
E

 

C
L
E

A
R

E
D

IN
T

E
R

M
IT

T
E

N
T

 H
E

D
G

E
 

R
O

W
S

 A
N

D
 P

L
A

N
T

IN
G

 

W
H

IC
H

 L
E

A
V

E
S

 T
H

E
 S

IT
E

 

E
X

P
O

S
E

D
 I

N
 P

L
A

C
E

S

C
O

N
S

T
R

A
IN

T
S

5
T

h
e
 

s
it
e
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
 i

m
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 

la
y
o
u
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 
F

ig
u
re

 
5
.1

 
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 

th
e
s
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
, 

w
it
h
 p

h
o
to

-

5
.2

, 
5
.3

 a
n
d
 5

.4
.

A
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
’s

 c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

n
 

in
 t

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 5
.1

.

F
ig

. 
5
.1

 C
O

N
S

T
R

A
IN

T
S

 P
L
A

N

F
ig

 5
.2

 V
ie

w
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 P

o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 w

it
h
 

re
a
r 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
.

F
ig

 5
.3

 V
ie

w
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 P

o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

it
e

F
ig

 5
.4

 V
ie

w
 o

f 
tr

a
c
k
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

w
e
s
te

rn
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

Agenda Item 10
Page 32



1
5

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

IS
S

U
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

T

T
o

p
o

g
ra

p
h

y
T

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
lly

 l
e
v
e
l,
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 b

a
rr

ie
r 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
is

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t.

 A
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w

o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 S

U
D

s
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
s
in

g
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 n

e
w

 S
u
D

S
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
.

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts

a
 f

u
ll 

s
u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 w

it
h
 a

n
y
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

N
a
tu

ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

re
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
g
re

e
n
 l
in

k
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

L
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e
T

h
e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

h
ilt

e
rn

s
 A

O
N

B
, 

th
e
 F

o
re

s
t 

o
f 

M
a
rs

to
n
 V

a
le

, 
T

h
e
 B

e
d
fo

rd
 a

n
d
 M

ilt
o
n
 K

e
y
n
e
s
 W

a
te

rw
a
y
 o

r 
a
n
y
 

h
e
d
g
e
ro

w
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 a
n
d
 e

a
s
te

rn
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

-w
e
s
te

rn
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
. 

N
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 t

re
e
s
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 T
re

e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 h

o
w

 a
n
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 in

te
ra

c
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 d

is
ta

n
t 
v
ie

w
s
 in

to
 a

n
d
 f
ro

m
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

s
it
e
. 

H
a
rd

 u
rb

a
n
 e

d
g
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

v
o
id

e
d
. 
T

h
e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 v

is
u
a
l 
lin

k
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 e

x
p
o
s
e
d
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

 c
a
re

fu
l 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

re
la

te
s
 w

e
ll 

to
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

v
o
id

s
 h

a
rd

 u
rb

a
n
 e

x
p
o
s
e
d
 e

d
g
e
s
. 
A

 L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 V

is
u
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(L
V

IA
) 

w
ill

 b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 w

it
h
 a

n
y
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
.

H
e
ri

ta
g

e
 /

 

A
rc

h
a
e
o

lo
g

y

T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
lo

c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 o
r 

in
 c

lo
s
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 t
o
 a

 C
o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
H

is
to

ri
c
 P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 o

r 
S

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 A

n
c
ie

n
t 
M

o
n
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 l
is

te
d
 

o
r 

lo
c
a
lly

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

b
u
tt

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
. 

W
o
rk

in
g
 i

n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 A

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
is

t,
 t

ri
a
l 

tr
e
n
c
h

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 (

th
e
 t

im
in

g
 o

f 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
) 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
. 

A
c
c
e
s
s

T
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

.

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

S
it
e
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y
 H

A
1
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
s
te

rn
 R

e
lie

f 
R

o
a
d
 (

E
R

R
) 

w
it
h
 a

 r
o
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t 

o
n
 P

o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

R
R

 i
s
 h

o
w

-

e
v
e
r 

lin
k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

a
n
d
 E

a
s
t 

o
f 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
T

h
e
 S

1
0
6
 f

o
r 

th
e
 L

a
n
d
 E

a
s
t 

o
f 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

n
o
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 E

R
R

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 7

0
0
th

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
. 
A

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
o
u

ld
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 a

n
y
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 E

R
R

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 r

o
a
d
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 S

u
n
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 S
t 

J
o
h
n
’s

 S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 A

1
 r

o
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t

m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

n
y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

R
ig

h
ts

 o
f 

W
a
y

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 S

it
e
 i
s
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 r

ig
h
ts

 o
f 

w
a
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

a
n
d

 n
o
rt

h
, 

th
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 s

u
c
h
 r

o
u
te

s
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
. 
A

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 r

ig
h
ts

 o
f 

w
a
y.

 T
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 v

is
u
a
lly

 r
e
la

te
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
. 

T
h
e
 t

y
p
e

, 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
a
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 

c
ro

s
s
in

g
 o

n
 P

o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
lin

k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 b

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
.

U
ti

li
ti

e
s

- 
A

tt
e
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 P

o
n
d
 o

f 
0
.4

h
a
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
-e

a
s
te

rn
 c

o
rn

e
r;

- 
F

o
u
l 
P

u
m

p
in

g
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 1

5
m

 n
o
 b

u
ild

 z
o
n
e
, 

lo
c
a
te

d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

; 

- 
W

a
te

r 
P

ip
e
s
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

;

- 
4
.6

 m
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
ip

 a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
te

rn
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

.

U
rb

a
n

 D
e
s
ig

n
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
a
m

e
n
it
y
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

:

- 
F

ro
n
ta

g
e
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
P

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
;

- 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 2
 s

m
a
ll 

g
ro

u
p
s
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 b

u
n
g
a
lo

w
s
, 
lo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

o
tt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
, 
b
u
t 
e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
it
e
, 
o
ri
e
n
ta

te
d
 s

u
c
h
 

th
a
t 

th
e
ir
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
a
r 

g
a
rd

e
n
 a

re
a
s
 f

a
c
e
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
it
e
;

- 
O

p
e
n
 F

a
rm

la
n
d
;

- 
T

h
e
 s

it
e
 a

d
jo

in
s
 o

p
e
n
 f

a
rm

la
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 

e
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
s
t.

Agenda Item 10
Page 33



1
6

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

O
P

P
O

R
T
U

N
IT

IE
S

6

L
A

P

IN
D

IC
A

T
IV

E
 

O
P

E
N

 S
P
A

C
E

A
T

T
E

N
T

U
A

T
IO

N
 P

O
N

D

0
.4

 H
A

H
E

D
G

E
S

T
R

E
E

S
 O

F
 H

IG
H

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
/ 

R
O

O
T

 

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N

T
R

A
N

S
P

A
R

E
N

T
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

V
E

H
IC

U
L
A

R
 R

O
U

T
E

V
IE

W
S

 F
R

O
M

 S
IT

E

IN
D

IC
A

T
IV

E
 

O
P

E
N

 S
P
A

C
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
IV

E
 

O
P

E
N

 S
P
A

C
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
IV

E
 

O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
IN

D
IC

A
T

IV
E

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L
 V

IS
U

A
L
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L
 V

E
H

IC
U

L
A

R
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

A
R

E
A

 O
F

 S
P

A
T

IA
L
 I

D
E

N
T

IT
Y

C

C

C

C

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

 T
O

 B
E

 

C
L

E
A

R
E

D

C

F
O

O
T

P
A

T
H

S

B
R

ID
L
E

W
A

Y
S

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 V
IS

U
A

L
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

p
re

v
io

u
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
, 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

e
x
is

t:

• 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
q
u
a
lit

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
;

• 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
;

• 
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
;

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 a

n
d
 l

in
k
-

a
g
e
 
to

 
fo

o
tp

a
th

s
/b

ri
d
le

w
a
y
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
y
c
le

 
p
a
th

s
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
, 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p

-

in
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
;

• 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

m
u
c
h
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
;

• 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
m

u
c
h
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
;

• 
A

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
le

v
e
l 

o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

in
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
lic

y
;

• 
In

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

o
p
e
n
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

is
ta

n
t 

v
ie

w
s
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
s
;

• 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
;

• 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

c
o
lo

g
y
;

• 
O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 S

U
D

S
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

-

p
ri
a
te

 d
u
e
 t

o
 s

it
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
;

• 
T

h
e
 

la
y
o
u
t 

a
n
d
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 

w
o
u
ld

 
ta

k
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 
o
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
;

• 
O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

s
u
p
e
rf

a
s
t 

b
ro

a
d
b
a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 

b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
b
ly

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
;

 •
 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 
to

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 
P

u
b
lic

 
A

rt
 
th

a
t 

c
a
n
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
d
e
s
ig

n
 

a
n
d
 

s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
.

F
ig

. 
6
.2

 O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

a
n
 a

v
e
n
u
e

F
ig

. 
6
.3

 O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

a
 “

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
g
re

e
n
”

F
ig

. 
6
.4

 O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

“a
c
ti
v
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
s
”

F
ig

. 
6
.1

 O
P

P
O

R
T

U
N

IT
IE

S
 P

L
A

N

Agenda Item 10
Page 34



1
7

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
-

ti
a
l 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 o

r 
la

n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 a

re
 p

re
-

6
.1

. 
D

e
s
ig

n
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 o

p
-

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

a
n
 a

v
e
n
u
e
, 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 

g
re

e
n
 

a
n
d
 6

.4
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.

6
.1

 
N

E
W

 H
O

M
E

S
 F

O
R

 B
IG

G
L
E

S
W

A
D

E

T
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

th
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

to
 
d
e
liv

e
r 

a
t 

le
a
s
t 

3
3
0
 
n
e
w

 
h
o
m

e
s
 
to

 
h
e
lp

 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 

lo
c
a
l 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

n
e
e
d
 

fo
r 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
. 

T
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

te
n
u
re

s
 

a
n
d
 

s
iz

e
s
, 

in
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 

o
f 

a
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 
a
n
d
 
to

 
p
ro

m
o
te

 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

6
.2

 
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 O

F
 D

E
S

IG
N

T
h
is

 
is

 
a
n
 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 
to

 
c
re

a
te

 
a
n
 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 
to

 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 

th
a
t 

w
ill

 
fa

v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 
re

s
p
o
n
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

o
p
e
n
 

c
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 

w
it
h
 

a
n
 

a
p
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

b
y
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

a
 

v
a
ri
e
ty

 
o
f 

s
c
a
le

 
a
n
d
 

e
n
c
lo

s
u
re

 
o
f 

s
p
a
c
e
. 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
w

ill
 
s
e
e
k
 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 

a
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 
in

 
h
e
ig

h
t 

(m
a
x
im

u
m

 
3
 

d
e
n
s
it
y,

 b
u
ild

in
g
 t

y
p
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

o
o
fs

c
a
p
e
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
n
 

a
re

a
 w

it
h
 a

 s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
.

6
.3

 
C

E
N

T
R

A
L
 B

E
D

F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 D
E

S
IG

N
 G

U
ID

E

-

e
d

- - -

- -

 
to

 -

Agenda Item 10
Page 35



1
8

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

6
.4

 
O

P
E

N
 S

P
A

C
E

A
 

p
u
b
lic

 
o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

w
ill

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 

th
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

fo
r 

fo
rm

a
l 

s
p
o
rt

in
g
 

o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
, 

in
fo

rm
a
l 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 s

p
a
c
e
, 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

p
la

y,
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 

p
a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 

A
 
v
a
ri
e
ty

 
o
f 

s
a
fe

, 
o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
e
d
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
d
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
 
w

ill
 
a
ls

o
 
b
e
 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 
a
ro

u
n
d
 

th
e
 
s
it
e
 
to

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 
e
a
s
y
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
 
fo

r 
 
a
ll.

 
A

re
a
s
 

a
n
d
 
ty

p
e
 
o
f 

a
m

e
n
it
y
 
s
p
a
c
e
 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

L
e
is

u
re

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
, 

c
o
n
te

n
t 

a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
p
la

y
 

s
p
a
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

fo
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 

a
c
c
o
rd

 w
it
h
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 p

o
lic

y.

6
.5

 
P

U
B

L
IC

 R
E

A
L
M

A
 P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 P
la

n
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 P

u
b
lic

 

A
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 c

o
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
.

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 P

u
b
lic

 

A
rt

 
in

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 
is

 
th

a
t 

P
u
b
lic

 A
rt

 
is

 

‘in
te

g
ra

te
d
’ 

in
to

 a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 

T
h
is

 

m
e
a
n
s
 P

u
b
lic

 A
rt

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
th

e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 

s
ta

g
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w

o
v
e
n
 
in

to
 
th

e
 
d
e
s
ig

n
 
o
f 

a
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
-

m
e
n
ts

 s
h
a
re

d
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 p

a
rk

s
, 

s
q
u
a
re

s
, 

p
la

y
 

a
re

a
s
, 

to
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

.

P
u
b
lic

 A
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 s

h
a
re

d
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 d

ra
w

 o
n
 l

o
c
a
l 

d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e

-

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 c
re

a
te

 a
 u

n
iq

u
e
 s

e
n
s
e
 

o
f 

p
la

c
e
. 

A
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

P
u
b
lic

 A
rt

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
s
 

fo
r 

in
v
o
lv

in
g
 a

rt
is

ts
 i
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 

6
.6

 
P

O
S

IT
IV

E
 IN

T
E

G
R

A
T
IO

N
 W

IT
H

 E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

T
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 

fo
o
tp

a
th

s
 

a
n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
y
c
lin

g
 i

n
to

, 
o
u
t 

fr
o
m

 a
n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

th
e
 
s
it
e
 
w

h
ic

h
 
w

ill
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 
ro

a
d
s
 
a
n
d
 

fo
o
tp

a
th

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
in

k
a
g
e
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
y
c
le

 

ro
u
te

. 
T

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 
s
e
c
u
re

 
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 
o
f 

a
m

e
n
it
y
 
w

it
h
 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 
d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 
a
n
d
 

w
ill

 
re

la
te

 
p
ro

p
e
rl
y
 

to
 

th
e
 

s
c
a
le

 
a
n
d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 

o
f 

th
e
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 

to
 

th
e
 

s
o
u
th

e
rn

 
s
id

e
 

o
f 

P
o
tt

o
n
 

R
o
a
d
. 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

1
0
6
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
.

6
.7

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 T
O

 T
H

E
 C

O
U

N
T
R

Y
S

ID
E

 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 m

a
k
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

p
e
d
e
s
-

tr
ia

n
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 t

o
  

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 r
ig

h
ts

 

o
f 

w
a
y
 

b
o
u
n

d
in

g
 

th
e
 

s
it
e
. 

T
h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

fo
o
tp

a
th

 

a
n
d
 b

ri
d
le

w
a

y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

a
n
d
 n

o
rt

h
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
d
, 

w
it
h
 n

e
w

 l
in

k
s
 f

ro
m

 

th
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

m
o
te

d
 
a
t 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
.  

C
a
re

fu
l 

c
o
n
s
id

-

e
ra

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 

in
te

g
ra

te
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i

m
m

e
d
ia

te
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 a

n
d
 l

a
n
d
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
. 

V
ie

w
s
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

b
ri
d
le

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 f

o
o
tp

a
th

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

A
 

fu
ll 

L
V

IA
 w

o
u
ld

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
is

 a
n
d
 g

u
id

e
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

.

Agenda Item 10
Page 36



1
9

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l r
o

u
te

H
o

u
si

n
g

E
xi

st
in

g
 h

e
d

g
e

ro
w

s 
a

n
d

 t
re

e
s

P
u

b
lic

 a
rt

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

S
e

co
n

d
a

ry
 r

o
u

te

Te
rt

ia
ry

 li
n

ks
 +

 la
n

e
s

L
in

ks
 t

o
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
 /

 b
ri

d
le

w
a

y

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 la
n

d
sc

a
p

e
d

 a
re

a
s 

a
t 

si
te

 e
d

g
e

s 
a

ct
 a

s 
a

n
 in

te
rf

a
ce

 

w
it

h
 f

o
o

tl
in

ks
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

co
n

te
x

t

P
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

 c
ro

ss
in

g
 

D
ev

o
n

 D
ri

ve

W
ill

ia
m

s 
C

o
u

rt

B
ig

g
le

sw
a

d
e

 
H

o
sp

it
a

l

FO
O

TP
A

TH

Potto
n Road

R
o

w
le

tt
s 

V
ie

w

A
C

C
E

S
S

A
C

C
E

S
S

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 

G
R

E
E

N

G
R

E
E

N

G
R

E
E

N

L
E

A
P

N
E

A
P

L
E

A
P

L
E

A
P

A
T

T
E

N
U

A
T

IO
N

A
R

E
A

S
Q

U
A

R
E

*

*

P
u

m
p

in
g

 s
ta

ti
o

n

P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L
S

 A
N

D
 V

IS
IO

N
S

 

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 S
IT

E
7

7
.1

 
D

E
L
IV

E
R

Y
 O

F
 H

O
U

S
IN

G

T
h
is

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 m

in
-

im
u
m

 o
f 

3
3
0
 n

e
w

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
, 

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 P

o
lic

y
 

H
A

1
 o

f 
th

e
 S

it
e
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

s
 D

P
D

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

y
p
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

iz
e
s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 
u
p
o
n
 
a
n
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
in

 
th

is
 

a
re

a
 i

n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 P

o
lic

y
 D

M
1
0
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y.

7
.2

 
A

F
F
O

R
D

A
B

L
E

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i

n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

P
o
lic

y
 

C
S

7
 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
re

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

(w
it
h
 

a
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

3
5
%

 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
u
n
it
s
) ,

 
u
n
le

s
s
 

v
ia

b
ili

ty
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 d

ic
ta

te
 o

th
e
rw

is
e
. 

A
 m

ix
 o

f 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
re

n
t 

a
n
d
 
in

te
rm

e
d
ia

te
 
te

n
u
re

s
 
(s

h
a
re

d
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
s
h
a
re

d
 e

q
u
it
y,

 l
o
w

 c
o
s
t 

h
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

s
a
le

 

in
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

N
P

P
F

) 
w

ill
 

b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

o
n
 

s
it
e
. 

T
h
e
 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

th
e
 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 
a
n
d
 

e
x
a
c
t 

m
ix

 
o
f 

te
n
u
re

 
w

ill
 

b
e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 
w

it
h
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 
th

e
 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
r.

 
T

h
e
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 e

x
a
c
t 

m
ix

 o
f 

te
n
u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 
w

it
h
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 
th

e
 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
r.

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l r
o

u
te

H
o

u
si

n
g

E
xi

st
in

g
 h

e
d

g
e

r

P
u

b
lic

 a
rt

 p
ro

v
is

i

S
e

co
n

d
a

ry
 r

o
u

te

Te
rt

ia
ry

 li
n

ks
 +

 l

L
in

ks
 t

o
 f

o
o

tp
a

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 la
n

d
sc

a
p

e

si
te

 e
d

g
e

s 
a

ct
 a

s 

w
it

h
 f

o
o

tl
in

ks
 a

n
d

co
n

te
x

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

 s
ta

t

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l r
o

u
te

H
o

u
si

n
g

E
xi

st
in

g
 h

e
d

g
e

ro
w

s 
a

n
d

 t
re

e
s

P
u

b
lic

 a
rt

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

S
e

co
n

d
a

ry
 r

o
u

te

Te
rt

ia
ry

 li
n

ks
 +

 la
n

e
s

L
in

ks
 t

o
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
 /

 b
ri

d
le

w
a

y

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 la
n

d
sc

a
p

e
d

 a
re

a
s 

a
t 

si
te

 e
d

g
e

s 
a

ct
 a

s 
a

n
 in

te
rf

a
ce

 

w
it

h
 f

o
o

tl
in

ks
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

co
n

te
x

t

*

P
u

m
p

in
g

 s
ta

ti
o

n

F
ig

. 
7
.1

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

IV
E

 L
A

Y
O

U
T

 (
fo

r 
ill

u
s
tr

a
ti
v
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

n
ly

)

Agenda Item 10
Page 37



2
0

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

7
.3

 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 O
B

L
IG

A
T
IO

N
S

T
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 

b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

to
 

e
n
te

r 
in

to
 

a
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
.  

P
ro

s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 
a
re

 
a
d
v
is

e
d
 
to

 
e
n
te

r 
in

to
 

e
a
rl
y
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
d
ra

ft
 

H
e
a
d
s
 

o
f 

T
e
rm

s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

it
 

is
 

a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d

g
e
d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

p
re

c
is

e
 

te
rm

s
 

o
f 

a
n
y
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 
n
o
t 

b
e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 

a
 

re
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 

to
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
a
d
e
. 

T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

O
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
0
9
) 

s
e
ts

 

o
u
t 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
s
 
th

a
t 

a
n
y
 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
 
s
o
u
g
h
t 

w
ill

 
n
e
e
d
 
to

 
c
o
m

p
ly

 
w

it
h
 
th

e
 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 
te

s
ts

 
la

id
 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 L

e
v
y
 R

e
g
u
la

-

ti
o
n
s
 

2
0
1
0
.T

h
e
s
e
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 
e
n
te

ri
n
g
 
in

to
 
a
 
S

.1
0
6
 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

a
n
y
 

fu
tu

re
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

le
v
y
 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

. 
 

In
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 p

o
lic

y
 H

A
1
, 

th
is

 

w
ill

 b
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

:

• 
O

ff
s
it
e
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
 w

o
rk

s
;

• 
A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 
to

 
m

e
e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 
p
o
lic

y
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

;

• 
A

 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 
to

 
m

e
e
t 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t;

• 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

;

• 
L
e
is

u
re

, 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 G

re
e
n
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
;

• 
W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t;

• 
E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
;

• 
H

e
a
lt
h
c
a
re

;

• 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
h
e
s
io

n
.

7
.4

 
S

E
N

S
E

 O
F
 P

L
A

C
E

 / 
IN

T
E

G
R

A
T
IO

N
 W

IT
H

 

S
U

R
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 O
P

E
N

 

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
S

ID
E

F
ig

u
re

 7
.1

 s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 l

a
y
o
u
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
, -

e
d
 o

n
 s

it
e
. 

In
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 a

re
 g

iv
e
n
 i

n
 

w
o
u
ld

 l
o
o
k
 o

n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
.

In
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

a
 

c
le

a
r 

s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
s
p
a
c
e
 b

u
t 

w
h
ic

h
 a

ls
o
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
ig

h
-

b
o
u
ri
n
g
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 
th

e
 
s
o
u
th

 
a
n
d
 
th

e
 
o
p
e
n
 

fa
rm

la
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 

e
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
s
t,

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
-

m
e
n
t 

w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

:

• 
T

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

c
ti
v
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 t

o
 P

o
tt

o
n
 

R
o
a
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
la

te
s
 w

e
ll 

to
 t

h
e
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 

th
e
 e

x
is

t-

in
g
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 
th

a
t 

o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
l-

lo
w

in
g
 a

 v
is

u
a
l 
lin

k
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 p

o
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 C
a
re

fu
l 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
 t

h
e
 a

m
e
n
it
ie

s
 o

f 
a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

• 
A

 
c
le

a
r 

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
 

o
f 

ro
a
d
s
, 

b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 

a
 

p
e
ri
m

e
te

r 
b
lo

c
k
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

w
it
h
 j

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
te

d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

la
n
d

m
a
rk

 
h
o
u
s
e
s
, 

s
q
u
a
re

s
 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
s
 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
u
ti
lis

e
d
 
w

h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
w

it
h
in

 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

c
lu

s
te

rs
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
id

 

• 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 
n
e
e
d
 

to
 

ta
k
e
n
 

in
to

 
a
c
-

c
o
u
n
t 

th
e
 i

m
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

ro
a
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
A

 f
u
ll 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 d

e
te

r-

m
in

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
in

ts
, 
ro

a
d
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
a
n
d
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 t
y
p
e
s
.

• 
O

p
e
n
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
 
to

 
b
e
 
d
is

p
e
rs

e
d
 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 
s
it
e
, 

to
 
in

c
lu

d
e
 
a
 
c
e
n
tr

a
l 

g
re

e
n
 
s
p
a
c
e

, 
in

c
o
r-

p
o
ra

ti
n
g
 a

 L
E

A
P

 a
n
d
 a

 L
A

P
 a

s
 a

 f
o
c
a
l 

p
o
in

t,
 w

it
h
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

p
la

y
 

a
re

a
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 

s
it
e
, 

m
a
k
in

g
 a

 f
e
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

tt
e
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 p

o
n
d
 t

o
 

b
e
 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 
o
n
 
th

e
 
n
o
rt

h
-e

a
s
te

rn
 
c
o
rn

e
r,

 
a
n
d
 
a
n
 

e
le

m
e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 s

o
ft

e
n
s
 t

h
e
 v

is
u
a
l 

lin
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
n
 

c
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 b

e
y
o
n
d
.

• 
T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

v
ie

w
s
 f

ro
m

 o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

lo
o
k
-

in
g
 i

n
to

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
, 

w
it
h
 h

ig
h

 q
u
a
lit

y
 l

a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 t

o
 

b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
 a

 v
is

u
a
l 

b
u
ff
e
r.

 A
 f

u
ll 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
 L

V
IA

, 
tr

e
e
 a

n
d
 

h
e
d
g
e
ro

w
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
. 

A
n
y
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 p

la
n
.

• 
P

u
b
lic

 
A

rt
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 

in
to

 
p
u
b
lic

 

s
p
a
c
e
 
a
re

a
s
 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

s
h
a
re

d
 
s
p
a
c
e
 
a
re

a
s
 
o
n
 

th
e
 
s
it
e
 
a
n
d
 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d

 
to

 
a
id

 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 
a
n
d
 

le
g
ib

ili
ty

. 
T

h
e
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

P
u
b
ic

 A
rt

 w
ill

 d
ra

w
 o

n
 l

o
c
a
l 

h
is

to
ry

, 
e
c
o
lo

g
y
 
a
n
d
 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

. 
T

h
e
m

e
s
 
c
a
n
 
h
e
lp

 

to
 

lin
k
 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

v
is

u
a
lly

 
w

it
h
 

it
s
 

w
id

e
r 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u

ri
n
g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 f

a
rm

la
n
d
.

• 
E

x
is

ti
n
g
 

h
e
d
g
e
ro

w
s
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

re
ta

in
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 n
e
w

 p
la

n
ti
n
g
.

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 38



2
1

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

T
Y

P
E

 O
F
 O

P
E

N
 S

P
A

C
E

C
E

N
T
R

A
L 

B
E

D
F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 S
P
A

C
E

  F
O

R
 3

0
0
 

H
O

U
S

E
S

 (7
2
0
 P

E
O

P
L
E

)

In
fo

rm
a
l 

R
e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

 

S
p

a
c
e

1
.8

 h
e
c
ta

re
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

In
 a

 M
a
jo

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
: 
E

v
e
ry

 h
o
m

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 w

it
h
in

 

4
0
0
m

 o
f 

a
n
 i

n
fo

rm
a
l 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 o

f 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

2
.5

 

h
e
c
ta

re
s

1
.3

0
 h

e
c
ta

re
s

A
ll

o
tm

e
n

ts
F

o
r 

th
e
 E

a
s
t 

S
u
b
a
re

a
: 

0
.3

4
 h

e
c
ta

re
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

-

ti
o
n

0
.2

5
 h

e
c
ta

re
s

A
m

e
n

it
y
 G

re
e
n

s
p

a
c
e

0
.6

 h
e
c
ta

re
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

0
.4

3
 h

e
c
ta

re
s

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 P

la
y
in

g
 

S
p

a
c
e

0
.4

 
h
e
c
ta

re
s
 
o
f 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 
e
q
u
ip

p
e
d
 
p
la

y
 
s
p
a
c
e
 
p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

0
.2

9
 h

e
c
ta

re
s

N
a
tu

ra
l 

a
n

d
 S

e
m

i 

N
a
tu

ra
l 

G
re

e
n

s
p

a
c
e

5
.4

 h
e
c
ta

re
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 g

re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p
u

-

la
ti
o
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
ti
e
rs

 i
n
to

 w
h
ic

h
 s

it
e
s
 o

f 

• 
N

o
 p

e
rs

o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 l
iv

e
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

0
0
 m

e
te

rs
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
ir
 n

e
a
re

s
t 

a
re

a
 o

f 
n
a
tu

ra
l 
g
re

e
n
s
p
a
c
e

• 
T

h
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

o
n
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

it
e
 

o
f 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

0
 a

n
d
 2

0
 h

e
c
ta

re
s
 w

it
h
in

 o
n
e
 k

ilo
m

e
tr

e
 o

f 

h
o
m

e

• 
T

h
e
re

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

o
n
e
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 
2
0
 

h
e
c
ta

re
 s

it
e
 w

it
h
in

 2
 k

ilo
m

e
tr

e
s
 o

f 
h
o
m

e

• 
T

h
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 o

n
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 1

0
0
 h

e
c
ta

re
 

s
it
e
 w

it
h
in

 5
 k

ilo
m

e
tr

e
s

• 
T

h
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 o

n
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 5

0
0
 h

e
c
ta

re
 

s
it
e
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 k

ilo
m

e
tr

e
s
.

3
.8

9
 h

e
c
ta

re
s

O
u

td
o

o
r 

S
p

o
rt

T
h
e
 q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

p
la

y
in

g
 p

it
c
h
e
s
 is

 1
.8

 h
e
c
ta

re
s
 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

1
.3

0
 h

e
c
ta

re
s

7
.5

 
C

O
N

N
E

C
T
IV

IT
Y

 A
C

R
O

S
S

 T
H

E
 S

IT
E

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t-

e
d
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p

e
ri
m

-

e
te

r 
a
re

a
s
 
o
f 

o
p
e
n
 
s
p
a
c
e
 
to

 
th

e
 
a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

tr
a
c
k
s
 

a
n
d
 
fo

o
tp

a
th

s
 
w

h
ic

h
 
b
o
u
n
d
 
th

e
 
s
it
e
 
to

 
th

e
 
w

e
s
t 

a
n
d
 
n
o
rt

h
 
a
n
d
 
w

h
ic

h
 
fo

rm
 
p
a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

B
ig

g
le

s
w

a
d
e
 G

re
e
n
 W

h
e
e
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

d
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 u

rb
a
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 i

n
to

 t
h
e
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 
c
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 
fo

r 
w

a
lk

e
rs

 
a
n
d
 
c
y
c
lis

ts
. 

A
n
y
 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

m
u
s
t 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 
to

 
a
d
-

ja
c
e
n
t 

fo
o
tp

a
th

s
 
c
re

a
ti
n
g
 
in

te
re

s
t 

a
n
d
 
in

tr
ig

u
e
 
fo

r 

a
ll 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 v

is
u
a
l 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
re

a
s
.

7
.6

 
E

C
O

L
O

G
Y

T
h
e
 

P
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 

w
ill

 
a
ls

o
 

b
e
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 

b
y
 

h
a
b
it
a
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 
w

it
h
 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m

p
e
n

-

s
a
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 a

n
d
 i

n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 

in
to

 
th

e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 

a
n
d
 

la
y
o
u
t.

 
A

n
 

in
it
ia

l 
e
c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 

re
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

7
.7

 
O

P
E

N
 S

P
A

C
E

T
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 

o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 

in
 

lin
e
 

w
it
h
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 

T
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

a
re

 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 

in
 

T
a
b
le

 
7
.1

 
a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 

th
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
m

in
g
 t

h
a
t 

3
0
0
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

re
 b

u
ilt

.

7
.8

 
E

A
S

T
E

R
N

 R
E

L
IE

F
 R

O
A

D

P
o
lic

y
 

H
A

1
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

th
a
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

s
it
e
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

c
o
m

e
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 
o
f 

th
e
 
E

a
s
te

rn
 
R

e
lie

f 
R

o
a
d
. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
lie

f 
ro

a
d
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

ti
m

e
d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

.

T
a
b
le

 7
.1

: 
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 R

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

F
ig

. 
7
.2

 I
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 v

ie
w

s
F

ig
. 

7
.3

 I
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 v

ie
w

s
F

ig
. 

7
.4

 I
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 v

ie
w

s

Agenda Item 10
Page 39



2
2

5
6
1
5
7
-P

O
T
T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
-D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 B

R
IE

F
-D

R
A

F
T
 E

-A
P

R
 2

0
1
4
:C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 M

C
B

A
IN

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R

A
P

P
L
IC

A
T
IO

N
 

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T
S

8
8
.1

G
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

g
u
id

a
n

c
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
x
p
e
c
t 

p
ro

s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 f
u
ll 

a
p
p
li-

c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
 H

A
1
.

A
n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
  

b
y
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
te

c
h
n
ic

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
:

T
re

e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 A

rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t;

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 V

a
lu

e
 I

m
p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t;

L
a
n
d
 C

o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

;

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
;

F
lo

o
d
 R

is
k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 D

ra
in

a
g
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
;

H
a
b
it
a
t 

a
n
d
 P

ro
te

c
te

d
 S

p
e
c
ie

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
;

N
o
is

e
 I

m
p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t;

A
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t;

P
la

n
n
in

g
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t;

D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t;

D
ra

ft
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 H

e
a
d
s
 o

f 
T
e
rm

s
.

A
B

B
R

E
V

IA
T
IO

N
S

9
A

O
N

B
 –

 A
re

a
 o

f 
O

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 N

a
tu

ra
l 
B

e
a
u
ty

B
W

 –
 B

ri
d
le

w
a
y

D
P

D
 –

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t

E
R

R
 –

 E
a
s
te

rn
 R

e
lie

f 
R

o
a
d

F
P

 –
 F

o
o
tp

a
th

N
P

P
F

 –
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

L
A

P
 –

 L
o
c
a
l A

re
a
 f

o
r 

P
la

y

L
E

A
P

 –
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

q
u
ip

p
e
d
 A

re
a
 f

o
r 

P
la

y

L
T

P
 –

 L
o
c
a
l 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n

L
V

IA
 –

 L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 V

is
u
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

S
C

I 
–

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t

S
P

D
 –

 S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t

S
u
D

S
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 U
rb

a
n
 D

ra
in

a
g
e
 S

y
s
te

m
s

Agenda Item 10
Page 40



Agenda Item 10
Page 41



Agenda Item 10
Page 42



Statement of Community

Involvement

Development Brief for Potton Road,

Biggleswade

April 2014

AppendixB
Agenda Item 10

Page 43



1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

1.1.1 This document is a Statement of Community Involvement. It has been written in accordance with

Central Bedfordshire Council’s guidelines, these guidelines are provided in Central Bedfordshire

Council’s Statement of Community Involvement, adopted in October 2012.

1.1.2 This statement details the public consultation undertaken during the production of the draft

development brief for the land north of Potton Road in Biggleswade.

1.1.3 The developers for the site are proposed to be Bellway Homes and Bloor Homes. The development

brief has been written by these developers in conjunction with Central Bedfordshire Council.

1.2 Policy Background

1.2.1 Policy HA1 in the Site allocations and Development Plan Document designated the Potton Road site

for residential development. One of the requirements of this policy was that a development brief be

produced to guide the development of the site. This policy allocated the 11 hectare site for

residential development providing a minimum of 330 dwellings.

1.2.2 Paragraph 155 of the National Planning Policy Framework states:

‘Early and meaningful engagement and collaboration with neighbours, local organisations and

businesses is essential. A wide section of the community should be proactively engaged, so that local

plans, as far as possible, reflect a collective vision a set of agreed priorities for the sustainable

development of the area ….’.

1.2.3 Paragraphs 188-191 also note the participation of other consenting bodies in pre-application

discussions should enable early consideration of all the fundamental issues relating to whether a

particular development will be acceptable in principle and the guidance notes Local Planning

Authorities have a key role to play in encouraging other parties to take maximum advantage of the

pre-application stage, which can improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the planning application

system for all parties.

1.2.4 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires Local Authorities to prepare a Statement of

Community Involvement. Central Bedfordshire Council (CBC) adopted their Statement of Community

Involvement (SCI) in October 2012. This SCI sets out four key ways the Council would wish to see the

Community engaged on major applications (para 6.11):

“Developers or landowners take a key role in this [public consultation] as part of their

obligation to the local community;

Consultation carried out at the earliest stage of the application process with local people to

explore their reactions and optimise potential community benefits as part of the development;

Extra effort made to engage with hard to reach groups;

Exhibitions and/or workshops being held to involve people in a non confrontational way, if

appropriate.”

Agenda Item 10
Page 44



2. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

2.1 Outline

2.1.1 Bellway Homes and Bloor Homes prepared the draft development brief whilst working alongside

Central Bedfordshire Council. The consultation which took place during the production of this brief is

detailed in the following sections.

2.2 Early Engagement with Biggleswade Town Council

2.2.1 Two meetings were held with Biggleswade Town Council prior to the production of the development

brief, these were attended by representatives from the developer’s side and also Central

Bedfordshire Council Officers. The first meeting was held on Tuesday 14th January and the second on

Wednesday 26
th
February.

2.2.2 These meetings were arranged to give the Town Council the opportunity to highlight any issues which

they thought should be picked up by the brief. At the first meeting representatives from Bellway and

Bloor Homes gave a short presentation on their proposals for both the development brief and for the

planning application. This presentation was followed by a short discussion and a question and answer

session. The second meeting was a follow up to this. As the Town Council has responded this might

provide a succinct summary of the issues raised/discussed.

2.2.3 Following the public consultation another meeting was held between the developers, CBC Officers

and the Town Council. This was held on Thursday 24
th
April with the purpose of briefing the Town

Council on the results of the public consultation and discussing the proposed steps moving forward.

2.3 Formal Period of Consultation:

2.3.1 Once the brief had been agreed with Central Bedfordshire Council officers and gained delegated

approval via Members and the Assistant Director, it was put forward for public consultation. A four

week public consultation was arranged; it began on Thursday 13
th
March and concluded on

Wednesday 9th April.

2.3.2 The activities that this consultation involved are detailed below; however copies of the document and

questionnaires were made available to the public online and in hard copy at selected locations

throughout this consultation period.

Letters to statutory consultees and residents

2.3.3 Statutory consultees, local Town and Parish Councils and the local ward members were sent letters

and emails prior to the formal period of public consultation. The letters informed them of the

upcoming public consultation and included details on the planned public exhibition.

2.3.4 A total of 1,996 letters were sent to residents to inform them of the consultation on the draft

development brief and invite them to the public exhibition.

2.3.5 Letters also provided contact details for the Local Planning team and gave details on where

documents could be viewed both online and in hard copy.

Questionnaire

2.3.6 A questionnaire was set up to allow the public to respond to the draft development brief. This

questionnaire could be completed online, or if it was completed as a hard copy it could be posted to a

freepost address or left at either Biggleswade Town Council or Biggleswade Library.

Agenda Item 10
Page 45



2.3.7 The questionnaire was set out with questions on different sections of the brief to ensure that the

brief was being read in conjunction with the questionnaire. A copy of the questionnaire is provided in

Appendix A at the end of this report. Questions were asked on:

Constraints identified in the brief;

Opportunities identified in the brief;

Housing, including integration with the countryside and range of types and sizes;

Open space;

Access to the site;

Planning contributions.

Media

2.3.8 The Biggleswade Advertiser included a piece on the consultation in its 12th March edition. A reporter

from the paper then attended the exhibition and produced a follow up piece in the 19th March

edition. Copies of these are provided in Appendix B at the end of this report.

2.3.9 Biggleswade Town Council included a piece on the consultation in the news section of their website

(Appendix C). This was supported by the exhibition material which was left at the Town Council

following the exhibition. The exhibition boards were left on display at Biggleswade Town Council’s

offices for a period of two weeks following the public consultation event and were then displayed at

Central Bedfordshire Council’s Chicksands offices. The exhibition boards are displayed in Appendix D.

2.3.10 The consultation and public exhibition were advertised by Central Bedfordshire Council using their

website and Twitter and Facebook social media platforms. In addition to this emails were sent to

residents who had signed up to receive alerts from the Council on these matters. Appendix E provides

examples of these.

2.3.11 Throughout the exhibition Central Bedfordshire Council had links to the draft Development Brief and

questionnaire on their consultation and planning pages. This website was publicised in all the letters

and emails sent out, social media announcements and posters displayed around the site.

Posters

2.3.12 Prior to the public consultation, posters were put up around the development site. The posters

advertised the public exhibition, provided a web address for the online consultation page and stated

that material could also be viewed at Biggleswade Town Council, Biggleswade Library and Central

Bedfordshire Council’s Chicksands offices.

2.3.13 These posters were displayed in prominent public locations including; Biggleswade Library,

Biggleswade Town Council offices, the Post Office, ASDA, Sainsbury’s and three newsagents around

the town. On the day of the exhibition additional posters were put up in the streets around the Town

Council offices where the exhibition was being held. A copy of the poster is provided in Appendix F.

Public consultation event

2.3.14 On Thursday March 13th a public consultation event was held at Biggleswade Town Council’s offices.

This event was held between the hours of 14:00 and 20:00 to allow people to stop by if they were

visiting the town centre around lunchtime, or later on their way home from school and work. The

event set up half an hour early to give local ward members the opportunity to stop by beforehand.

Agenda Item 10
Page 46



2.3.15 Throughout the exhibition representatives from the developer’s side and from Central Bedfordshire

Council were available to take questions and talk to the public, a transport consultant was also

present to address anticipated concerns over traffic.

2.3.16 Boards were set up to display the proposals and copies of the development brief and questionnaires

were available to either fill in at the event or take home. Tables and chairs were provided to allow

people to fill out their questionnaires at the event if they wished.

2.3.17 A total of 85 people were checked in, but it is thought that more people may have entered the

exhibition and chosen not to sign in. Prior to the public consultation event, some members of the

public had complained that not enough notice was given. Central Bedfordshire Council resolved to

monitor attendance and then put on another consultation event if deemed necessary. Since

attendance was high and all documents were available online, another event was not deemed

necessary.

2.3.18 The exhibition boards were displayed at the Town Council offices until 21
st
March when the space was

no longer available. They were then moved to Central Bedfordshire Council’s Chicksands offices and

displayed in the reception area for the remainder of the consultation. In addition to this an electronic

copy of the exhibition boards were loaded onto the consultation section of Central Bedfordshire

Council’s website. Therefore there was adequate opportunity to see the exhibition boards for those

not able to attend the event.

3. RESULTS OF CONSULTATION

3.1 Responses received

3.1.1 During the four week consultation period, a total of 35 questionnaires were completed. There was a

fairly even split between those completed online and those completed in hard copies. The hard

copies were picked up from Biggleswade Town Council (some on the day of the exhibition) and

received via the freepost address. Of the 35 respondents to the questionnaire, the vast majority

identified as residents of Biggleswade.

3.1.2 During analysis of the results it became clear that on the questions which were open to comments,

the comments made did not necessarily respond to the question asked. Therefore is was decided that

all comments should be considered against the brief as a whole, rather than considering each

comment in relation to the question it was written under.

3.1.3 An additional 12 representations were received by email or letter, including those from Statutory

Consultees.

3.2 Issues identified

3.2.1 All comments and questionnaire responses received have been summarised in table 1. This table

identifies the issues raised and includes a response to the query alongside any changes made to the

brief as a result.

3.2.2 In general the main issues raised within the questionnaire and written responses were:

Facilities: Concern was raised over increased pressure on Biggleswade’s services and facilities,

particularly the doctor’s surgery and schools.

Highways: Though the document did state that the development would not go ahead until the

Eastern Relief Road was completed, many people commented that it the development should not be

Agenda Item 10
Page 47



allowed to go ahead until the Eastern Relief Road and associated roundabout was fully complete and

in use. A number of comments were also received concerning the impact of additional traffic on the

local road network including Potton Road, St John’s Street, Sun Street, Drove Road and London Road.

Access: A number of comments on access were received though there did not seem to be one

preferred method of access.

Pedestrian and cycle links: The development will retain and enhance the existing bridle path and

footpath which border the site. Some questionnaire respondents did not understand this and

commented about their loss or maintenance. Comments were made in favour of the proposed

pedestrian crossing point on Potton Road, though some were cautious about the impact that this

would have upon the school.

Wildlife: Particular reference was made to the potential presence of a Badger sett and Skylarks on site

by some respondents. The development brief did state that full ecological surveys would be

undertaken.

Rural nature of the area: The comments made on the site’s rural location in general disagreed with

the allocation of the site as a whole, something which is outside of the context of this brief. Some

respondents felt that the rural landscape would be negatively affected by the development, some of

these comments suggested that the respondents did not realise that existing hedgerows would be

retained and enhanced.

Impact on Edward Peake School: Some respondents were concerned that provision of a pedestrian

crossing on Potton Road would mean that Edward Peake School would loose the school crossing

patrol currently in place. One respondent suggested that the parking associated with the school drop-

off and pick-up periods should be considered within the context of the development.

Design: A large number of comments on design were received, especially in relation to parking

provision and road design. Repeatedly reference was made to the other new developments nearby

which respondents felt were poorly designed and ruined by on-street parking. Other comments

about design included concerns over density and comments about sizes and locations of play areas

and open space.

Housing type: A number of respondents felt that the number of homes on site should be reduced and

questions were also raised as to the proportions and locations of affordable housing.

Drainage: A small number of comments were received on drainage, with residents of bordering

estates concerned that their recent issues drainage and odour would return or be increased as a

result of the development.

3.2.3 Many comments were also received on issues outside of the scope of this brief including; provision of

litter bins in town, potential to ban HGVs from the town centre, signage for the Eastern Relief Road

and specific parking, taxi or road issues in the town centre.

3.2.4 More technical comments were made about the document itself, some of which did lead to changes

including the addition of a glossary, improved definition of public art and expansion of Figure 5.1.

3.2.5 A full breakdown of comments received is given alongside responses in table 1.

Agenda Item 10
Page 48



3.3 Resulting changes to brief

3.3.1 The draft development brief was updated in response to the comments received during public

consultation. No major changes were made to the context but a list of abbreviations was added to the

end of the document and some points were clarified.

3.3.2 The tracked change document gives a detailed account of all changes made, however the main

changes were:

Addition of a list of abbreviations – this was in response to comments received regarding the

readability of the document and over-use of technical terms.

Small changes for consistency – this included ensuring that all figures given in the document were

given in metric measurements.

Integration with existing properties – text was added to the brief to confirm that the development

would need to have regard to relationships with existing properties on Potton Road. (Section 2.3.1)

Crossing point – reference was added to the school crossing point adjacent to Nursery Close,

confirming that this would unaffected by the development site. (Section 2.3.1)

Changes in policy – the policy section was updated to reflect the recent adoption of the Design Guide

and approval of the Leisure Strategy. (Section 4.1.0)

Traffic issues – Although the document already stated that a full Transport Assessment would

accompany any planning application, text was added to the document to state that this Transport

Assessment would include an assessment of impacts on the surrounding road network including Sun

Street, St John’s Street and the A1 roundabout. (Section 5) (Reference to Construction Traffic

Management Plan and Noise Assessment also added to Section 8.1)

Access – text added to clarify requirements. (Section 7.4)

Infrastructure and facilities– text was added to confirm that the infrastructure needs of the

community would be met through discussions on the Section 106 package. (Section 6.6)

Existing bridle paths and footpaths – the opportunities section was updated to clarify that the existing

bridle path and footpath would be retained and improved and that views from them would also be

considered. (Section 6.7)

Affordable Housing – text was updated to state that the required percentage of affordable housing

was 35%. (Section 7.2)

Eastern Relief Road – an individual section on the Eastern Relief Road was added to make it clear that

the development would not come forward until the Eastern Relief Road had been completed. (Section

7.8)

Public Art – a definition of public art was added to the document in response to a comment asking

what it was. (Section 6.5)

4. CONCLUSION

4.1.1 This report has shown that considerable effort was made to engage with residents on this

development brief. The public consultation event was well advertised through media and posters

around the town, this led to a high attendance rate at the exhibition.

Agenda Item 10
Page 49



4.1.2 As shown by Table 1 the Development Brief has been updated where required, reflecting comments

made during consultation. There were many comments made which were either outside of the scope

of the brief, or will need to be instead picked up at Planning Application stage.

4.1.3 Moving forward, it is proposed that Edward Peake School be consulted on the proposals to address

the concerns raised by residents during the public consultation.

Tables and Appendices:

Table 1: Summary of Consultation Responses

Appendix A: Questionnaire

Appendix B: Articles from Biggleswade Advertiser

Appendix C: Biggleswade Town Council news page publicising event

Appendix D: Exhibition Boards

Appendix E: Central Bedfordshire Council publicity of event: (1) Consultations Page, (2) Planning Page, (3)

Online Survey, (4) Letter, (5) Reminder Email, (6) Twitter announcement, (7) Facebook announcement.

Appendix F: Poster displayed around town to advertise event

Agenda Item 10
Page 50



S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
m
a
in
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
d
u
ri
n
g
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

C
h
a
n
g
e
m
a
d
e
(i
f

re
q
u
ir
e
d
)

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
p
ro
c
e
s
s

1
.

A
c
ro
n
y
m
s
n
o
t
d
e
fi
n
e
d
a
n
d
n
o
g
lo
s
s
a
ry
o
f
te
rm
s
in

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.

2
.

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
v
e
ry
te
c
h
n
ic
a
l
a
n
d
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
fo
r
re
s
id
e
n
ts
to

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
.

A
c
c
e
p
te
d
.
L
is
t
o
f
a
b
b
re
v
ia
ti
o
n
s
to
b
e
a
d
d
e
d
to
th
e
B
ri
e
f.

L
is
t
o
f
A
b
b
re
v
ia
ti
o
n
s

a
d
d
e
d
to
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t

(S
e
c
ti
o
n
9
).

3
.

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
is
v
a
g
u
e
.

T
h
is
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
is
a
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
B
ri
e
f,
a
n
d
th
e
re
fo
re
o
n
ly
in
te
n
d
e
d
to

p
ro
v
id
e
a
g
u
id
e
to
in
fo
rm
a
la
te
r
a
n
d
m
o
re
d
e
ta
ile
d
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

4
.

M
e
tr
ic
a
n
d
im
p
e
ri
a
l
m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
ts
b
o
th
u
s
e
d
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.

A
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
–
a
m
e
n
d
to
m
e
tr
ic
.

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
to
1
5
ft

re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
s
tr
ip

a
m
e
n
d
e
d
to
m
e
tr
ic

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t.

5
.

N
o
m
a
x
im
u
m
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
h
o
m
e
s
m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
.

6
.

H
o
w
m
a
n
y
m
o
re
th
a
n
3
3
0
a
re
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
?

7
.

W
h
a
t
is
th
e
u
p
p
e
r
lim
it
o
f
h
o
u
s
in
g
o
n
th
e
s
it
e
?

P
o
lic
y
H
A
1
s
ti
p
u
la
te
s
a
m
in
im
u
m
o
f
3
3
0
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
a
t
th
e
s
it
e
.
It
d
o
e
s
n
o
t

s
ta
te
a
m
a
x
im
u
m
a
m
o
u
n
t,
a
n
d
th
e
re
fo
re
n
o
re
fe
re
n
c
e
to
a
m
a
x
im
u
m
is

m
a
d
e
in
th
e
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.
T
h
e
fi
n
a
l
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
u
n
it
s
w
ill
h
o
w
e
v
e
r
b
e

d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
th
ro
u
g
h
p
re
-a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
,
h
a
v
in
g
re
g
a
rd
to
C
o
u
n
c
il

p
o
lic
y
,
in
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r
th
e
n
e
w
ly
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
D
e
s
ig
n
G
u
id
e
.

N
/A

8
.

E
x
is
ti
n
g
h
e
d
g
e
s
n
o
t
s
h
o
w
n
o
n
p
la
n
.

P
la
n
s
w
it
h
in
th
e
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
a
re
in
d
ic
a
ti
v
e
.

N
/A

9
.

B
ri
e
f
w
ill
n
e
e
d
to
a
d
d
re
s
s
h
e
a
lt
h
c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
.

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
to
w
a
rd
s
h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
w
ill
b
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
S
e
c
ti
o
n

1
0
6
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t
a
t
th
e
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
g
e
.

N
/A

1
0
.

W
h
a
t
is
a
2
.5
s
to
re
y
h
o
u
s
e
?

T
h
e
s
e
a
re
2
-s
to
re
y
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
w
it
h
ro
o
m
s
in
th
e
ro
o
f
s
p
a
c
e
s
.

P
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
6
.2
a
m
e
n
d
e
d

to
c
la
ri
fy
.

1
1
.

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
d
o
e
s
n
o
t
s
h
o
w
im
p
a
c
t
o
n
v
ie
w
s
fr
o
m
B
ri
d
le

W
a
y
.

M
a
tt
e
r
to
b
e
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
a
t
th
e
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
g
e
,
th
ro
u
g
h
a
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

V
is
u
a
l
Im
p
a
c
t
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.

A
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
–
a
d
d
to

te
x
t
(r
e
fe
r
to
P
a
ra
g
ra
p
h

6
.7
)

1
2
.

N
o
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
o
r
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
re
s
id
e
n
ts
.

T
h
e
s
it
e
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
a
llo
c
a
te
d
s
in
c
e
2
0
1
1
in
th
e
S
it
e
A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
D
P
D
.
It
s

a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
w
a
s
p
ro
m
o
te
d
th
ro
u
g
h
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
p
ri
o
r

to
it
s
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
.
In
re
s
p
e
c
t
o
f
th
e
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
B
ri
e
f,
th
e
T
o
w
n
C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
s
in
c
e
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
o
n
th
e
s
it
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
w
it
h
th
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
.
S
im
ila
rl
y
,
re
s
id
e
n
ts
in
th
e
a
d
ja
c
e
n
t
b
u
n
g
a
lo
w
s
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
a
n
d
th
e
ir
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
ta
k
e
n
o
n
b
o
a
rd
b
y
th
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
in
th
e
ir
e
m
e
rg
in
g
p
la
n
s
.

N
/A

1
3
.

M
o
re
n
o
ti
c
e
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
g
iv
e
n
o
f
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
.

A
c
c
e
p
te
d
,
d
u
e
to
th
e
la
te
n
o
ti
c
e
o
f
th
e
e
x
h
ib
it
io
n
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
d
e
c
id
e
d
to
m
o
n
it
o
r
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
a
t
th
e
e
x
h
ib
it
io
n
a
n
d
c
a
rr
y
o
u
t

a
n
o
th
e
r
if
d
e
e
m
e
d
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
,
h
o
w
e
v
e
r
d
u
e
to
a
h
ig
h
tu
rn
o
u
t
th
is
w
a
s

n
o
t
d
e
e
m
e
d
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
.
In
a
d
d
it
io
n
to
th
is
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
a
v
a
ila
b
le
to
a
n
s
w
e
r
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t
th
e
4
w
e
e
k

N
/A

T
ab
le
1
:
S
u
m
m
ar
y
o
f
C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
R
es
p
o
n
se
s

Agenda Item 10
Page 51



S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
m
a
in
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
d
u
ri
n
g
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
.

1
4
.

O
n
ly
a
s
m
a
ll
s
e
c
ti
o
n
d
e
ta
ils
w
a
te
r
p
ip
e
s
?

T
h
is
d
e
ta
il
w
ill
b
e
p
ic
k
e
d
u
p
in
th
e
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

1
5
.

F
ig
u
re
5
.1
to
o
s
m
a
ll
to
re
a
d
.
C
a
n
n
o
t
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
th
e

v
e
h
ic
le
ro
u
te
in
to
N
u
rs
e
ry
C
lo
s
e
.
S
u
g
g
e
s
t
a
b
ig
g
e
r
m
a
p

w
it
h
th
e
th
re
e
p
h
o
to
s
a
t
th
e
s
id
e
.

N
o
te
d
.

F
ig
u
re
w
ill
b
e
e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
.

C
h
a
n
g
e
‘v
e
h
ic
u
la
r
ro
u
te
’

to
s
a
y
‘e
x
is
ti
n
g
v
e
h
ic
u
la
r

ro
u
te
’.

1
6
.

P
re
s
u
m
e
re
d
d
o
tt
e
d
lin
e
is
p
e
ri
m
e
te
r
o
f
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
n
o
t
in
d
ic
a
te
d
.

N
o
te
d
.

T
h
is
w
ill
b
e
a
d
d
e
d
to
th
e

k
e
y
in
F
ig
u
re
5
.1
.

1
7
.

P
u
m
p
in
g
S
ta
ti
o
n
n
o
t
s
h
o
w
n
o
n
m
a
p
.

N
o
te
d
.

T
h
is
w
ill
b
e
a
d
d
e
d
to

F
ig
u
re
5
.1
.

1
8
.

W
h
a
t
is
p
u
b
lic
a
rt
p
ro
v
is
io
n
?

N
o
te
d
.

E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
w
ill
b
e

a
d
d
e
d
to
S
e
c
ti
o
n
6
.5
.

F
a
c
il
it
ie
s

1
9
.

T
h
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
w
ill
n
o
t
p
ro
v
id
e
a
n
y
p
u
b
lic
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
o
r

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
.
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
p
re
s
s
u
re
w
ill
b
e
p
u
t
o
n
e
x
is
ti
n
g

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
a
n
d
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
in
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
w
h
ic
h
a
re
a
lr
e
a
d
y

s
tr
e
tc
h
e
d
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
s
c
h
o
o
ls
a
n
d
h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
).

2
0
.

N
o
m
e
n
ti
o
n
o
f
im
p
ro
v
e
d
h
e
a
lt
h
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
.

2
1
.

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
n
e
e
d
s
s
h
o
p
/
d
o
c
to
rs
e
tc
.

2
2
.

P
e
rh
a
p
s
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
H
o
s
p
it
a
l
c
o
u
ld
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
a

d
o
c
to
rs
a
n
d
d
e
n
ti
s
ts
fo
r
re
s
id
e
n
ts
o
f
th
is
s
it
e
a
n
d
K
in
g
’s

R
e
a
c
h
?

2
3
.

Im
p
a
c
ts
o
n
d
o
c
to
rs
a
n
d
s
c
h
o
o
ls
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
b
y

re
le
v
a
n
t
p
a
ri
ti
e
s
n
o
t
ju
s
t
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
.

2
4
.

Im
p
a
c
ts
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
s
o
o
n
e
r
ra
th
e
r
th
a
n
la
te
r.

T
h
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
a
re
in
ta
lk
s
w
it
h
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
o
n
th
e
h
e
a
d
s
o
f
te
rm
s
fo
r
a

S
1
0
6
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t
to
a
d
d
re
s
s
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
is
s
u
e
s
.
T
h
is
m
a
tt
e
r

w
ill
b
e
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
a
n
d
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
a
g
re
e
d
p
ri
o
r
to
th
e
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
o
f
th
e

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s

2
5
.

C
o
n
c
e
rn
o
v
e
r
th
e
im
p
a
c
t
th
a
t
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
tr
a
ff
ic
c
o
u
ld
h
a
v
e

o
n
th
e
lo
c
a
l
ro
a
d
s
a
n
d
th
e
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
.
P
a
rt
ic
u
la
r
c
o
n
c
e
rn

fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
D
ro
v
e
R
o
a
d
,
S
u
n
S
tr
e
e
t,
L
o
n
d
o
n
R
o
a
d

a
n
d
S
t
J
o
h
n
’s
R
o
a
d
.

2
6
.

H
o
w
w
ill
e
x
is
ti
n
g
tr
a
ff
ic
b
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?

2
7
.

W
ill
tr
a
v
e
l
s
u
rv
e
y
s
b
e
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
to
m
a
p
th
e
im
p
a
c
t
o
f

e
x
tr
a
tr
a
ff
ic
u
s
in
g
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
a
n
d
h
o
w
m
u
c
h
w
ill
tr
a
ff
ic

re
d
u
c
e
b
y
w
h
e
n
th
e
n
e
w
re
lie
f
ro
a
d
is
b
u
ilt
?

A
fu
ll
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
to
C
B
C
’s
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
w
ill
b
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d
a
t

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
g
e
.
A
d
ra
ft
o
f
th
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
fo
r
th
e

s
it
e
is
w
it
h
o
u
r
H
ig
h
w
a
y
O
ff
ic
e
rs
fo
r
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.
T
h
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
w
it
h
in
a
n
a
g
re
e
d
s
c
o
p
e
,
in
c
lu
d
in
g

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
c
o
n
te
n
ti
o
u
s
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
s
w
it
h
in
th
e
to
w
n
.
T
h
is
in
c
lu
d
e
s
a
n

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
o
f
th
e
E
a
s
te
rn
R
e
lie
f
R
o
a
d
.

A
d
d
to
te
x
t
to
re
fe
r
to

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r
ro
a
d
s
(T
a
b
le

5
.1
).

2
8
.

Im
p
a
c
ts
o
f
K
in
g
’s
R
e
a
c
h
,
th
e
E
a
s
te
rn
R
e
lie
f
R
o
a
d
a
n
d

o
th
e
r
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
p
ro
p
e
rl
y

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
b
e
fo
re
th
is
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
is
a
llo
w
e
d
.
In

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r
th
e
tr
a
ff
ic
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
th
a
t
is
lik
e
ly
to
re
s
u
lt
fr
o
m

A
fu
ll
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
to
C
B
C
’s
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
w
ill
b
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d
a
t

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
g
e
.
T
h
is
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
w
ill
ta
k
e
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

o
f
c
o
m
m
it
te
d
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
in
it
s
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
.

N
/A

Agenda Item 10
Page 52



S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
m
a
in
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
d
u
ri
n
g
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e

K
in
g
’s
R
e
a
c
h
.

2
9
.

S
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
o
f
a
n
o
rt
h
e
rn
re
lie
f
ro
a
d
.

T
h
e
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
E
R
R
w
ill
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
a
d
d
re
s
s
th
e
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
o
f
th
is

s
it
e
.

N
/A

3
0
.

E
a
s
te
rn
R
e
lie
f
R
o
a
d
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
b
u
ilt
b
e
fo
re
th
is

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

P
o
lic
y
H
A
1
s
ti
p
u
la
te
s
th
a
t
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
n
th
is
s
it
e
w
ill
b
e
s
u
b
je
c
t
to
th
e

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
E
R
R
.
T
h
is
is
a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
b
y
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
.

A
lr
e
a
d
y
re
fe
re
n
c
e
d
in

S
e
c
ti
o
n
3
,
b
u
t
S
e
c
ti
o
n

7
.8
a
d
d
e
d
to
e
n
s
u
re

c
la
ri
ty
.

3
1
.

A
c
c
e
s
s
to
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
fr
o
m
E
a
s
te
rn
R
e
lie
f

R
o
a
d
,
n
o
t
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
.

T
h
is
is
n
o
t
p
o
s
s
ib
le
a
s
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
s
it
e
w
ill
n
o
t
b
o
rd
e
r
th
e
n
e
w

ro
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t
a
n
d
th
a
t
la
n
d
is
in
s
e
p
a
ra
te
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
.

N
/A

3
2
.

R
o
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
ts
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
to
a
c
c
e
s
s
th
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

3
3
.

A
c
c
e
s
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
v
ia
s
ta
g
g
e
re
d
m
in
i-
ro
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
ts
in
lin
e

w
it
h
e
x
is
ti
n
g
a
c
c
e
s
s
ro
a
d
s
,
n
o
t
s
ta
g
g
e
re
d
a
s
th
e
p
la
n

s
h
o
w
s
.

3
4
.

A
c
c
e
s
s
ro
a
d
s
s
it
u
a
te
d
v
e
ry
c
lo
s
e
to
e
x
is
ti
n
g
ro
a
d
s
.

3
5
.

A
c
c
e
s
s
s
h
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
o
p
p
o
s
it
e
th
e
M
a
y
th
o
rn
s
,
to
re
d
u
c
e

c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
.

3
6
.

W
h
y
s
h
o
u
ld
th
e
re
b
e
tw
o
v
e
h
ic
u
la
r
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
w
h
e
n
th
e

D
a
v
id
W
ils
o
n
H
o
m
e
s
(K
in
g
’s
R
e
a
c
h
)
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
h
a
s

o
n
ly
o
n
e
.

3
7
.

A
c
c
e
s
s
o
p
p
o
s
it
e
th
e
W
ill
ia
m
s
C
o
u
rt
w
o
u
ld
b
e
p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c

a
s
it
is
ju
s
t
p
a
s
t
a
v
e
ry
b
u
s
y
s
c
h
o
o
l
c
ro
s
s
in
g
p
a
tr
o
l
a
n
d

a
ls
o
a
b
lin
d
-b
e
n
d
in
th
e
ro
a
d
.

3
8
.

O
n
e
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
e
x
it
/e
n
tr
a
n
c
e
o
p
p
o
s
it
e
o
r
s
ta
g
g
e
re
d
to

D
e
v
o
n
D
ri
v
e
w
o
u
ld
b
e
m
o
re
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
a
s
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d

is
a
lr
e
a
d
y
e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
b
u
s
y
.

T
h
e
s
a
fe
s
t
m
e
th
o
d
o
f
a
c
c
e
s
s
to
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
s
it
e
w
ill
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d

in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
C
B
C
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
O
ff
ic
e
rs
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
A
t
p
re
s
e
n
t,
p
ri
o
ri
ty
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
s
a
re
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
a
n
d
d
e
e
m
e
d

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
s
u
b
je
c
t
to
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
fi
n
a
l
T
A
.

T
e
x
t
a
d
d
e
d
a
t
7
.4
to

c
la
ri
fy
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
.

3
9
.

D
o
n
’t
w
a
n
t
to
o
m
a
n
y
tr
a
ff
ic
c
a
lm
in
g
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
.

4
0
.

A
2
0
m
p
h
s
p
e
e
d
lim
it
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
a
w
a
y
fr
o
m

m
a
in
d
is
tr
ib
u
to
r
ro
a
d
s
.

4
1
.

T
ra
ff
ic
c
a
lm
in
g
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
re
q
u
ir
e
d

D
e
s
ig
n
a
n
d
ty
p
e
s
o
f
ro
a
d
s
w
ill
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
C
B
C

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
O
ff
ic
e
rs
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
T
h
is
w
ill
b
e
in

p
a
rt
in
fo
rm
e
d
b
y
th
e
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
b
y
th
e
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e

D
e
s
ig
n
G
u
id
e
.

N
/A

4
2
.

H
a
v
e
th
e
im
p
a
c
ts
o
f
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
tr
a
ff
ic
b
e
e
n
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
,

in
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r
th
e
in
c
re
a
s
e
in
tr
a
ff
ic
a
n
d
th
e
n
o
is
e

g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
?

S
e
e
a
b
o
v
e
re
g
a
rd
in
g
th
e
in
c
re
a
s
e
in
tr
a
ff
ic
.
A
fu
ll
N
o
is
e
Im
p
a
c
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
w
ill
s
u
p
p
o
rt
th
e
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
in
ti
m
e
.
It
w
ill
c
o
n
s
id
e
r

th
e
n
o
is
e
im
p
a
c
ts
fr
o
m
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
a
s
w
e
ll
a
s
fr
o
m
th
e
ra
ilw
a
y
lin
e

fu
rt
h
e
r
w
e
s
t.
A
C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
T
ra
ff
ic
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
P
la
n
w
ill
a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
y

th
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
a
ls
o
.

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
to
a
N
o
is
e

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
a
n
d

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
T
ra
ff
ic

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
P
la
n

a
d
d
e
d
to
th
e
lis
t
o
f

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
re
q
u
ir
e
d
w
it
h

th
e
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
(r
e
fe
r
to

Agenda Item 10
Page 53



S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
m
a
in
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
d
u
ri
n
g
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e

P
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
8
.1
).

4
3
.

A
c
c
e
s
s
to
th
e
A
1
(n
o
rt
h
a
n
d
s
o
u
th
)
w
o
u
ld
n
e
e
d

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.

T
h
e
im
p
a
c
t
o
n
h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
w
ill
b
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
in
th
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.

N
/A

4
4
.

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
is
w
it
h
in
a
4
0
m
p
h
,
w
it
h
th
e

in
c
re
a
s
e
in
tr
a
ff
ic
a
n
d
E
a
s
te
rn
R
e
lie
f
R
o
a
d
,
is
th
e
re
s
c
o
p
e

to
e
x
te
n
d
th
e
3
0
m
p
h
to
in
c
lu
d
e
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
s
it
e
.

T
h
is
is
n
o
t
w
it
h
in
th
e
s
c
o
p
e
o
f
th
e
b
ri
e
f,
h
o
w
e
v
e
r
w
e
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
th
a
t
it

th
e
p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
o
f
m
a
k
in
g
th
e
s
tr
e
tc
h
o
f
ro
a
d
b
e
tw
e
e
n
th
e
R
o
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t

a
n
d
E
a
s
te
rn
R
e
lie
f
R
o
a
d
3
0
m
p
h
is
b
e
in
g
e
x
p
lo
re
d
.

N
/A

4
5
.

W
h
e
n
th
e
E
a
s
te
rn
R
e
lie
f
R
o
a
d
is
c
o
m
p
le
te
,
a

h
e
ig
h
t/
w
e
ig
h
t
lim
it
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
fo
r
o
th
e
r
ro
a
d
s
to

re
d
u
c
e
H
G
V
s
in
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
.

4
6
.

S
h
o
u
ld
s
to
p
H
G
V
s
fr
o
m
a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
th
e
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
,

p
e
rh
a
p
s
b
y
m
o
v
in
g
in
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
o
u
t
o
f
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
.

4
7
.

G
o
o
d
s
ig
n
a
g
e
a
t
E
a
s
te
rn
R
e
lie
f
R
o
a
d
n
e
e
d
e
d
to
d
ir
e
c
t
a
ll

n
o
n
-B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
tr
a
ff
ic
o
n
to
th
e
R
e
lie
f
R
o
a
d
.

4
8
.

C
u
rr
e
n
t
s
p
e
e
d
re
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
ig
n
o
re
d
.

4
9
.

T
h
e
re
is
a
lr
e
a
d
y
a
g
re
a
t
d
e
a
l
o
f
p
re
s
s
u
re
o
n
p
a
rk
in
g
in

B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
T
o
w
n
C
e
n
tr
e
.

5
0
.

P
a
rk
in
g
s
tu
d
y
re
q
u
ir
e
d
to
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
th
e
im
p
a
c
t
o
f
th
e

n
e
w
ro
a
d
la
y
o
u
t
o
n
p
a
rk
in
g
a
t
th
e
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
o
f
P
o
tt
o
n

R
o
a
d
/
D
ro
v
e
R
o
a
d
n
e
a
r
w
h
e
re
th
e
S
p
re
a
d
E
a
g
le
p
u
b

w
a
s
.

5
1
.

R
e
v
ie
w
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
o
f
y
e
llo
w
lin
e
s
o
n
m
a
in

ro
u
te
s
in
to
to
w
n
to
e
n
s
u
re
fr
e
e
-f
lo
w
e
n
fo
rc
e
d
.

5
2
.

O
n
c
e
n
e
w
ro
a
d
o
p
e
n
e
d
,
w
ill
th
e
re
b
e
a
p
ro
h
ib
it
io
n
o
n

fo
re
ig
n
a
n
d
U
K
H
G
V
’s
?

5
3
.

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
g
iv
e
n
to
th
e
in
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
o
f
tr
a
ff
ic

c
a
lm
in
g
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
o
n
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
in
th
e
n
e
a
r
fu
tu
re
;
th
is

w
ill
re
d
u
c
e
th
e
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
o
f
th
e
ro
a
d
.

5
4
.

Is
th
e
re
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
to
e
x
te
n
d
th
e
4
0
m
p
h
to
in
c
lu
d
e
th
e

B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
G
ro
w
e
rs
a
n
d
P
ly
m
o
u
th
B
re
th
re
n
S
c
h
o
o
l,
if

n
o
t
4
0
m
p
h
th
e
n
5
0
m
p
h
?

5
5
.

O
n
S
u
n
S
tr
e
e
t
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
is
p
o
o
r,
la
rg
e
v
e
h
ic
le
s
o
ft
e
n

g
o
o
n
th
e
p
a
v
e
m
e
n
t.

5
6
.

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
o
f
D
ro
v
e
R
o
a
d
a
n
d
L
o
n
d
o
n
R
o
a
d
n
e
e
d
s

re
d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
fo
r
h
e
a
v
y
tr
a
ff
ic
.

T
h
e
s
e
a
re
m
a
tt
e
rs
fo
r
C
B
C
H
ig
h
w
a
y
O
ff
ic
e
rs
to
c
o
n
s
id
e
r
a
n
d
b
e
y
o
n
d
th
e

s
c
o
p
e
o
f
th
e
B
ri
e
f.

N
/A

O
th
e
r
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

5
7
.

L
o
s
s
o
f
B
ri
d
le
P
a
th
fo
r
ru
ra
l
w
a
lk
s
.

5
8
.

N
o
m
e
n
ti
o
n
o
f
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
to
B
ri
d
le
P
a
th
s
o
r
fo
o
tp
a
th
s

o
n
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
.
N
o
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
g
iv
e
n
o
n
th
e
ir
fu
tu
re

T
h
e
re
w
ill
b
e
n
o
lo
s
s
o
f
e
x
is
ti
n
g
b
ri
d
le
w
a
y
o
r
fo
o
t
p
a
th
a
d
ja
c
e
n
t
th
e
s
it
e

a
s
a
re
s
u
lt
o
f
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
T
h
e
s
e
ri
g
h
ts
o
f
w
a
y
d
o
n
o
t
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y

e
n
te
r
th
e
s
it
e
,
in
s
te
a
d
fo
llo
w
in
g
th
e
fi
e
ld
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
.
T
h
e
s
e
w
ill
b
e

T
e
x
t
u
p
d
a
te
d
to
re
fl
e
c
t

re
te
n
ti
o
n
a
n
d

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
e
x
is
ti
n
g

Agenda Item 10
Page 54



S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
m
a
in
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
d
u
ri
n
g
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
e
it
h
e
r.

5
9
.

T
h
e
ro
u
te
to
th
e
C
o
m
m
o
n
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
a
k
e
y
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
.

6
0
.

H
o
w
w
ill
a
c
c
e
s
s
to
w
a
lk
in
g
a
re
a
s
b
e
p
re
s
e
rv
e
d
fo
r
a
ll

lo
c
a
l
p
e
o
p
le
?

6
1
.

H
o
w
w
ill
th
e
C
o
m
m
o
n
a
n
d
a
c
c
e
s
s
to
it
fo
r
a
ll
lo
c
a
l
p
e
o
p
le

b
e
p
re
s
e
rv
e
d
?

6
2
.

T
h
e
re
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
to
e
x
is
ti
n
g
R
ig
h
ts
o
f
W
a
y
.

6
3
.

M
a
n
y
p
e
o
p
le
e
x
e
rc
is
e
a
lo
n
g
th
e
s
e
R
ig
h
ts
o
f
W
a
y
,
a
n
d

m
a
n
y
a
ls
o
u
s
e
th
e
m
to
c
y
c
le
to
th
e
R
S
P
B
.

p
ro
te
c
te
d
a
n
d
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
w
it
h
lin
k
a
g
e
s
fr
o
m
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
in
ti
m
e
.

ri
g
h
ts
o
f
w
a
y
(r
e
fe
r
to

P
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
6
.7
).

6
4
.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
R
ig
h
ts
o
f
W
a
y
w
ill
n
o
t
b
e
re
s
tr
ic
te
d
,
n
o
t
m
a
n
y

p
e
o
p
le
w
ill
w
a
n
t
to
ru
n
/c
y
c
le
/w
a
lk
a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
h
o
u
s
e
s
.

T
h
e
R
ig
h
ts
o
f
W
a
y
w
ill
b
e
re
ta
in
e
d
a
n
d
im
p
ro
v
e
d
,
th
e
re
fo
re
im
p
ro
v
in
g

lin
k
s
to
g
re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
s
u
c
h
a
s
th
e
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
C
o
m
m
o
n
.

N
/A

6
5
.

D
e
fi
n
it
e
n
e
e
d
fo
r
p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
c
ro
s
s
in
g
o
n
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
.

6
6
.

T
w
o
p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
c
ro
s
s
in
g
s
n
e
e
d
e
d
o
n
e
n
e
a
r
E
d
w
a
rd
P
e
a
k

S
c
h
o
o
l
/
D
ro
v
e
R
o
a
d
a
n
d
o
n
e
n
e
a
r
D
ro
v
e
R
o
a
d
/

M
o
u
n
tb
a
tt
e
n
D
ri
v
e
.

A
g
re
e
d
.
T
h
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
o
f
a
n
e
w
c
ro
s
s
in
g
p
o
in
t
(a
n
d
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
tw
o

c
ro
s
s
in
g
s
)
is
b
e
in
g
d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
w
it
h
C
B
C
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
a
n
d
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
,

a
n
d
w
ill
b
e
c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
in
th
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
th
e

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
o
n
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
.

N
/A

6
7
.

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
n
e
e
d
s
to
p
ro
v
id
e
g
o
o
d
q
u
a
lit
y
p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n

a
n
d
c
y
c
le
p
a
th
s
to
re
d
u
c
e
c
a
r
re
lia
n
c
e
.

P
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
a
n
d
c
y
c
le
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
w
ill
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
in
lin
e
w
it
h
th
e
g
u
id
a
n
c
e

g
iv
e
n
in
th
e
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
D
e
s
ig
n
G
u
id
e
.

N
/A

6
8
.

F
o
o
tp
a
th
/p
a
v
e
m
e
n
t
fr
o
m
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
to
th
e
s
it
e
w
o
u
ld

n
e
e
d
h
u
g
e
u
p
g
ra
d
in
g
;
it
is
n
o
t
e
v
e
n
s
a
fe
to
w
a
lk
a
lo
n
g

th
e
re
.
It
n
e
e
d
s
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
to
s
to
p
w
e
e
d
s
g
ro
w
in
g
o
v
e
r

it
.

T
h
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
w
ill
a
s
s
e
s
s
a
c
c
e
s
s
b
y
a
ll
m
o
d
e
s
a
n
d
id
e
n
ti
fy

a
n
y
is
s
u
e
s
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
n
e
e
d
to
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
fo
r
o
ff
-s
it
e
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
.

N
/A

6
9
.

N
o
fi
rm
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
fo
r
im
p
ro
v
e
d
p
u
b
lic
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
.

T
h
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
w
ill
a
s
s
e
s
s
th
e
im
p
a
c
ts
th
a
t
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

w
ill
h
a
v
e
o
n
p
u
b
lic
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
.
A
n
y
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
w
h
ic
h

a
re
re
q
u
ir
e
d
w
ill
b
e
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
fo
llo
w
in
g
th
is
.

N
/A

7
0
.

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
ra
il
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
.

T
h
is
is
n
o
t
d
e
e
m
e
d
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
fo
r
th
e
s
c
a
le
o
f
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
a
t
th
e
s
it
e
.

N
/A

7
1
.

M
o
re
ta
x
is
a
n
d
ta
x
i
ra
n
k
n
e
e
d
e
d
in
th
e
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
.

T
h
is
is
n
o
t
a
m
a
tt
e
r
fo
r
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
w
it
h
in
th
e
s
c
o
p
e
o
f
th
e
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.

N
/A

W
il
d
li
fe

7
2
.

Im
p
a
c
t
o
n
w
ild
lif
e
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
p
ro
p
e
rl
y
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
.

7
3
.

W
ild
lif
e
w
ill
b
e
p
u
s
h
e
d
o
u
t
o
f
th
e
a
re
a
.

7
4
.

H
o
w
w
ill
e
c
o
lo
g
y
b
e
p
ro
te
c
te
d
?
H
a
v
e
a
n
y
s
u
rv
e
y
s
b
e
e
n

d
o
n
e
?

A
g
re
e
d
.
F
u
ll
e
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l
s
u
rv
e
y
s
w
ill
b
e
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
a
n
d
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
a
t

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
g
e
.

N
/A

7
5
.

A
re
a
is
w
it
h
in
c
lo
s
e
p
ro
x
im
it
y
to
la
n
d
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
a
s
a

lo
c
a
l
w
ild
lif
e
s
it
e
.
A
d
v
is
e
d
to
c
o
n
s
u
lt
w
it
h
th
e
L
o
c
a
l

W
ild
lif
e
T
ru
s
t
o
n
th
is
m
a
tt
e
r.

C
B
C
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l
P
o
lic
y
te
a
m
s
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
o
n
th
is
b
ri
e
f
a
n
d

th
e
W
ild
lif
e
T
ru
s
t
w
ill
b
e
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
o
n
th
e
fu
ll
P
la
n
n
in
g
A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

7
6
.

T
h
e
re
is
a
n
a
c
ti
v
e
B
a
d
g
e
r
S
e
tt
to
th
e
n
o
rt
h
e
rn
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
;

th
is
c
o
n
fl
ic
ts
w
it
h
th
e
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
th
e
p
u
m
p
in
g

s
ta
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
p
re
s
e
n
c
e
o
f
a
b
a
d
g
e
r
s
e
tt
w
ill
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
in
th
e
fu
rt
h
e
r
s
u
rv
e
y
s

to
b
e
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
b
y
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
.
If
lo
c
a
te
d
,
s
u
it
a
b
le
a
n
d
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
w
ill
b
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d
,
to
th
e
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
o
f
C
B
C
.

N
/A

7
7
.

A
re
a
is
a
b
re
e
d
in
g
s
it
e
fo
r
e
n
d
a
n
g
e
re
d
S
k
y
la
rk
s
a
n
d
c
o
rn

T
h
e
s
u
it
a
b
ili
ty
o
f
th
e
s
it
e
a
s
b
re
e
d
in
g
h
a
b
it
a
ts
fo
r
s
k
y
la
rk
s
a
n
d
c
o
rn

N
/A

Agenda Item 10
Page 55



S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
m
a
in
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
d
u
ri
n
g
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e

b
u
n
ti
n
g
.

b
u
n
ti
n
g
w
ill
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
in
th
e
fu
rt
h
e
r
s
u
rv
e
y
s
to
b
e
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
b
y
th
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
.
If
lo
c
a
te
d
,
s
u
it
a
b
le
a
n
d
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
w
ill
b
e

re
q
u
ir
e
d
,
to
th
e
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
o
f
C
B
C
.

R
u
ra
l
n
a
tu
re
o
f
th
e
a
re
a

7
8
.

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
w
ill
re
m
o
v
e
ru
ra
l
a
n
d
o
p
e
n
n
a
tu
re
o
f
th
e

a
re
a
.

7
9
.

P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
is
a
n
a
tu
ra
l
b
re
a
k
to
K
in
g
’s
R
e
a
c
h
a
n
d

e
n
a
b
le
s
a
v
is
u
a
l
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
w
it
h
th
e
C
o
m
m
o
n
.

8
0
.

H
o
u
s
e
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
b
u
ilt
o
n
w
a
s
te
la
n
d
,
n
o
t
o
n
fa
rm
la
n
d
.

8
1
.

L
o
s
s
o
f
ru
ra
l
v
ie
w
s
.

8
2
.

W
ill
b
e
h
a
rd
ly
a
n
y
a
g
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l
la
n
d
le
ft
.
T
h
is
la
n
d
is
u
s
e
d

to
fa
rm
c
ro
p
s
;
lo
s
s
o
f
it
w
ill
re
d
u
c
e
a
v
a
ila
b
le
fo
o
d
.

T
h
e
s
it
e
is
a
llo
c
a
te
d
fo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
u
n
d
e
r
P
o
lic
y
H
A
1
a
n
d
w
ill
c
o
m
e

fo
rw
a
rd
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
C
B
C
’s
5
y
e
a
r
h
o
u
s
in
g
la
n
d
s
u
p
p
ly
.
C
h
a
n
g
e
to
th
e

o
p
e
n
n
a
tu
re
o
f
th
e
s
it
e
is
in
e
v
it
a
b
le
a
s
a
re
s
u
lt
.
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
th
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
f
th
e
s
it
e
w
ill
b
e
s
u
b
je
c
t
to
d
e
s
ig
n
a
n
d
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
,
a
s
w
e
ll
a
s
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
v
is
u
a
l
im
p
a
c
t
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
to

e
n
s
u
re
d
e
liv
e
ry
o
f
a
h
ig
h
q
u
a
lit
y
s
c
h
e
m
e
.

N
/A

8
3
.

S
it
e
is
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
in
a
n
a
re
a
o
f
O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
N
a
tu
ra
l

A
m
e
n
it
y
w
it
h
s
w
e
e
p
in
g
p
a
n
o
ra
m
ic
v
ie
w
s
.

T
h
e
a
re
a
d
o
e
s
n
o
t
lie
w
it
h
in
a
n
A
re
a
o
f
O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
N
a
tu
ra
l
B
e
a
u
ty
.

N
/A

8
4
.

H
e
d
g
e
ro
w
s
a
n
d
p
la
n
ti
n
g
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
re
p
la
c
e
d
b
y

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
s
c
re
e
n
in
g
to
m
a
in
ta
in
a
ru
ra
l
w
a
lk
.

8
5
.

F
ig
u
re
7
.1
in
d
ic
a
te
d
th
e
e
x
is
ti
n
g
h
e
d
g
e
ro
w
s
a
n
d
tr
e
e
s
,
w
ill

th
e
s
e
re
m
a
in
in
p
la
c
e
o
r
w
ill
th
e
y
b
e
c
u
t
d
o
w
n
a
n
d
n
o
t

re
p
la
c
e
d
?

E
x
is
ti
n
g
h
e
d
g
e
ro
w
s
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e
s
it
e
w
ill
b
e
re
ta
in
e
d
a
n
d
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
w
it
h

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
n
e
w
p
la
n
ti
n
g

T
e
x
t
a
d
d
e
d
to
S
e
c
ti
o
n

7
.4
.

8
6
.

S
it
e
s
h
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
a
s
it
is
G
re
e
n
fi
e
ld
,

c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
a
n
d
p
o
s
s
ib
ly
g
re
e
n
b
e
lt
.

T
h
e
s
it
e
d
o
e
s
n
o
t
lie
w
it
h
in
th
e
G
re
e
n
B
e
lt
.

N
/A

8
7
.

E
x
is
ti
n
g
tr
e
e
s
a
lr
e
a
d
y
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
a
re
o
f
h
ig
h
q
u
a
lit
y
a
n
d

n
e
e
d
to
b
e
re
ta
in
e
d
.

8
8
.

I
a
s
s
u
m
e
tr
e
e
s
o
f
h
ig
h
q
u
a
lit
y
fo
o
t
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
w
ill
n
o
t
b
e

re
ta
in
e
d

A
d
e
ta
ile
d
tr
e
e
s
u
rv
e
y
w
ill
b
e
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
a
n
d
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
a
t
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n

s
ta
g
e
.
E
x
is
ti
n
g
tr
e
e
s
a
re
to
b
e
re
ta
in
e
d
.

N
/A

8
9
.

O
p
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
re
fe
rr
e
d
to
a
s
a
‘v
ill
a
g
e
g
re
e
n
’,
w
ill
th
is
b
e
a

v
ill
a
g
e
?

T
h
e
te
rm
is
in
d
ic
a
ti
v
e
a
n
d
re
la
te
d
to
th
e
c
o
n
c
e
p
t
o
f
a
c
e
n
tr
a
ll
y
lo
c
a
te
d
,

o
p
e
n
g
re
e
n
fo
r
u
s
e
a
n
d
e
n
jo
y
m
e
n
t
b
y
a
ll.

A
m
e
n
d
te
x
t
to
re
m
o
v
e

re
fe
re
n
c
e
to
‘v
ill
a
g
e

g
re
e
n
’
(r
e
fe
r
to

P
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
7
.4
,
3
rd
b
u
lle
t

p
o
in
t)
.

9
0
.

W
ill
ta
k
e
a
w
a
y
o
p
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
w
h
ic
h
is
p
o
p
u
la
r
w
it
h

w
a
lk
e
rs
/c
y
c
lis
ts
.

T
h
e
s
it
e
is
p
ri
v
a
te
a
n
d
n
o
t
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
b
y
w
a
lk
e
rs
.
T
h
e
e
x
is
ti
n
g

fo
o
tp
a
th
a
n
d
b
ri
d
le
w
a
y
b
o
rd
e
ri
n
g
th
e
s
it
e
w
ill
b
e
re
ta
in
e
d
a
n
d
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
.

N
/A

9
1
.

M
a
tu
re
tr
e
e
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
p
la
n
te
d
to
s
c
re
e
n
th
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
fr
o
m
b
ri
d
le
w
a
y
s
a
n
d
fo
o
tp
a
th
s
.

9
2
.

W
ill
e
x
is
ti
n
g
h
e
d
g
e
ro
w
s
a
n
d
tr
e
e
s
re
m
a
in
in
p
la
c
e
?

T
h
e
e
x
is
ti
n
g
h
e
d
g
e
ro
w
p
la
n
ti
n
g
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e
s
it
e
w
ill
b
e
s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
te
d

w
it
h
n
e
w
p
la
n
ti
n
g
to
re
in
fo
rc
e
th
e
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
.

N
/A

9
3
.

G
re
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
is
n
o
t
a
s
u
b
s
ti
tu
te
fo
r
c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
.

A
g
re
e
d
.
T
h
e
o
p
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
w
it
h
in
th
e
s
it
e
w
ill
h
o
w
e
v
e
r
p
ro
v
id
e
u
s
e
a
b
le

s
p
a
c
e
fo
r
p
la
y
a
n
d
e
n
jo
y
m
e
n
t.
P
la
y
s
p
a
c
e
s
w
ill
b
e
b
e
in
g
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
in

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
w
it
h
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
re
c
e
n
t
L
e
is
u
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
.

N
/A

Agenda Item 10
Page 56



S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
m
a
in
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
d
u
ri
n
g
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e

Im
p
a
c
t
o
n
E
d
w
a
rd
P
e
a
k
S
c
h
o
o
l

9
4
.

S
a
fe
ty
im
p
a
c
ts
fo
r
p
u
p
ils
a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
E
d
w
a
rd
P
e
a
k
e

S
c
h
o
o
l,
in
c
lu
d
in
g
th
e
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
fo
r
th
e
s
c
h
o
o
l
to
lo
o
s
e
th
e
ir

c
ro
s
s
in
g
p
a
tr
o
l
a
s
a
re
s
u
lt
o
f
th
e
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
c
ro
s
s
in
g
p
o
in
t.

T
h
e
e
x
is
ti
n
g
s
c
h
o
o
l
c
ro
s
s
in
g
p
o
in
t
fu
rt
h
e
r
w
e
s
t
o
n
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
w
ill
n
o
t

b
e
a
ff
e
c
te
d
.
A
t
le
a
s
t
o
n
e
n
e
w
c
ro
s
s
in
g
p
o
in
t
fr
o
m
th
e
s
it
e
w
ill
a
ls
o
b
e

d
e
liv
e
re
d
w
h
ic
h
w
ill
fa
c
ili
ta
te
s
a
fe
a
c
c
e
s
s
to
th
e
s
c
h
o
o
l.

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
to
th
e

re
te
n
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
S
c
h
o
o
l

C
ro
s
s
in
g
P
o
in
t
o
n

P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
to
b
e

a
d
d
e
d
(r
e
fe
r
to

P
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
2
.3
.1
,
u
n
d
e
r

B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
).

9
5
.

C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
o
v
e
r
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
tr
a
ff
ic
n
e
a
r
s
c
h
o
o
l,
tr
a
ff
ic

c
a
lm
in
g
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

9
6
.

S
p
e
e
d
c
a
m
e
ra
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
o
u
ts
id
e
E
d
w
a
rd

P
e
a
k
a
s
m
a
n
y
d
ri
v
e
rs
e
x
c
e
e
d
th
e
s
p
e
e
d
lim
it
.

9
7
.

In
c
re
a
s
e
in
tr
a
ff
ic
w
ill
e
n
d
a
n
g
e
r
p
u
p
ils
a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
th
e

s
c
h
o
o
l.

D
e
s
ig
n
a
n
d
ty
p
e
s
o
f
ro
a
d
s
w
ill
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
C
B
C

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
O
ff
ic
e
rs
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
T
h
is
w
ill
b
e
in

p
a
rt
in
fo
rm
e
d
b
y
th
e
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
b
y
th
e
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e

D
e
s
ig
n
G
u
id
e
.

N
/A

9
8
.

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
p
a
re
n
ts
a
re
u
n
a
b
le
to
c
o
lle
c
t
th
e
ir
c
h
ild
re
n

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
fr
o
m
s
c
h
o
o
l
b
y
c
a
r
s
o
w
a
it
fo
r
th
e
ir
c
h
ild
re
n
in

a
d
jo
in
in
g
ro
a
d
s
.
T
h
is
is
d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s
a
n
d
in
c
re
a
s
e
s

c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
.

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
w
ill
b
e
h
a
d
to
d
e
te
rm
in
e
a
n
y
im
p
a
c
ts
th
a
t
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

w
o
u
ld
h
a
v
e
o
n
E
d
w
a
rd
P
e
a
k
S
c
h
o
o
l.
T
h
is
w
ill
in
c
lu
d
e
is
s
u
e
s
o
f
p
a
rk
in
g

a
n
d
s
a
fe
a
c
c
e
s
s
fo
r
p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
s
.

N
/A

D
e
s
ig
n

9
9
.

S
c
re
e
n
in
g
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
to
e
n
s
u
re
th
e
s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g

a
re
a
a
n
d
b
ri
d
le
p
a
th
s
p
re
s
e
rv
e
s
th
e
ir
ru
ra
l
n
a
tu
re
.

1
0
0
.
S
o
m
e
g
re
e
n
e
ry
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
n
e
a
r
b
o
rd
e
r
w
it
h

e
x
is
ti
n
g
h
o
u
s
in
g
to
e
n
s
u
re
re
s
id
e
n
ts
a
re
n
’t
b
o
x
e
d
in
.

E
x
is
ti
n
g
h
e
d
g
e
ro
w
s
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e
s
it
e
w
ill
b
e
re
ta
in
e
d
a
n
d
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
w
it
h

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
n
e
w
p
la
n
ti
n
g
.

N
/A

1
0
1
.
N
o
m
e
n
ti
o
n
o
f
k
e
e
p
in
g
h
o
m
e
s
a
g
o
o
d
d
is
ta
n
c
e
a
p
a
rt
.

1
0
2
.
S
h
o
u
ld
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
is
o
f
h
ig
h
q
u
a
lit
y
a
n
d

u
n
iq
u
e
a
n
d
d
if
fe
re
n
t
to
a
ll
o
th
e
r
n
e
w
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
.

1
0
3
.
P
ro
v
id
e
s
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
w
it
h
a
n
o
p
e
n
b
o
o
k
.

1
0
4
.
R
o
a
d
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
b
u
ilt
to
h
ig
h
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

1
0
5
.
N
e
w
b
u
ild
s
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
fo
llo
w
e
d
th
is
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
,
h
o
w
w
ill
it
b
e

e
n
fo
rc
e
d
?

A
n
y
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
w
ill
b
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
a
g
a
in
s
t
th
e
C
e
n
tr
a
l

B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
D
e
s
ig
n
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
to
e
n
s
u
re
h
ig
h
q
u
a
lit
y
d
e
s
ig
n
.

N
/A

1
0
6
.
H
o
w
w
ill
it
b
e
e
n
s
u
re
d
th
a
t
a
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t
a
m
o
u
n
t
o
f
p
a
rk
in
g

is
p
ro
v
id
e
d
a
n
d
th
a
t
th
is
p
a
rk
in
g
is
w
e
ll
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
to
a
v
o
id

th
e
p
ro
b
le
m
s
w
h
ic
h
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
s
e
e
n
o
n
th
e
K
in
g
s
R
e
a
c
h

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
w
h
e
re
c
a
rs
a
re
p
a
rk
e
d
o
n
v
e
rg
e
s
a
n
d

b
lo
c
k
in
g
p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
.

1
0
7
.
If
th
e
ro
a
d
s
a
re
n
a
rr
o
w
a
n
d
c
a
rs
a
tt
e
m
p
t
to
p
a
rk
o
n
b
o
th

s
id
e
s
,
it
c
a
n
b
e
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
fo
r
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
v
e
h
ic
le
s
to
a
c
c
e
s
s

th
e
s
it
e
o
r
fo
r
c
a
rs
to
g
e
t
o
ff
d
ri
v
e
w
a
y
s
.

W
ill
b
e
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
a
t
th
e
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
g
e
,
w
it
h
re
g
a
rd
to
th
e
n
e
w

p
a
rk
in
g
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
w
it
h
in
th
e
D
e
s
ig
n
G
u
id
e
.

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
to
th
e

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l
o
f
th
e
D
e
s
ig
n

G
u
id
e
to
b
e
a
d
d
e
d
(r
e
fe
r

to
P
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
4
.1
.0
).

Agenda Item 10
Page 57



S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
m
a
in
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
d
u
ri
n
g
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e

1
0
8
.
C
o
n
c
e
rn
o
v
e
r
g
a
ra
g
e
s
iz
e
s
.

1
0
9
.
H
o
w
w
ill
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
b
le
n
d
in
w
it
h
s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
a
re
a
s
?

A
n
y
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
w
ill
b
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
a
g
a
in
s
t
th
e
C
e
n
tr
a
l

B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
D
e
s
ig
n
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
to
e
n
s
u
re
h
ig
h
q
u
a
lit
y
d
e
s
ig
n
.
T
h
is

in
c
lu
d
e
s
h
a
v
in
g
re
g
a
rd
to
th
e
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r
o
f
th
e
lo
c
a
l
a
re
a
.

N
/A

1
1
0
.
H
o
w
d
o
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
a
c
c
e
s
s
th
e
s
it
e
,
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly

h
o
u
s
e
s
o
n
th
e
p
e
ri
m
e
te
r?

T
h
is
is
a
m
a
tt
e
r
fo
r
th
e
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
to
c
o
n
s
id
e
r,
w
it
h
a
n
e
e
d
fo
r

th
e
s
c
h
e
m
e
to
b
e
tr
a
c
k
e
d
to
e
n
s
u
re
s
a
fe
a
n
d
e
a
s
y
a
c
c
e
s
s
fo
r

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.
T
h
e
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
w
ill
n
e
e
d
to
s
a
ti
s
fy
C
B
C
o
ff
ic
e
rs

in
th
is
re
g
a
rd
.

N
/A

1
1
1
.
D
o
n
o
t
re
q
u
ir
e
4
L
E
A
P
s
.

L
E
A
P
s
p
a
c
e
s
a
re
b
e
in
g
p
ro
v
id
e
d
in
lin
e
w
it
h
C
B
C
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
,
a
s
s
e
t

o
u
t
in
th
e
L
e
is
u
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
.

N
/A

1
1
2
.
T
h
e
In
d
ic
a
ti
v
e
O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
s
s
e
e
m
ra
n
d
o
m
;
a
m
o
re

h
o
lis
ti
c
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
is
re
q
u
ir
e
d
w
it
h
lin
k
e
d
o
p
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
s

fo
rm
in
g
a
m
e
a
n
d
e
ri
n
g
g
re
e
n
c
o
rr
id
o
r
fo
r
re
s
id
e
n
ts
a
n
d

w
ild
lif
e
.

N
o
te
d
.
T
h
is
w
ill
b
e
p
ic
k
e
d
u
p
a
s
a
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
fo
r
th
e
P
la
n
n
in
g

A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

1
1
3
.
M
o
re
o
p
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
ra
th
e
r
th
a
n
ju
s
t

o
n
e
la
rg
e
o
n
e
.

A
g
re
e
d
.
T
h
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
w
ill
n
e
e
d
to
p
ro
v
id
e
fo
r
th
e
o
p
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
n
e
e
d
s

o
f
a
ll
n
e
w
re
s
id
e
n
ts
to
th
e
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
o
f
C
B
C
’s
L
e
is
u
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
.

N
/A

1
1
4
.
R
e
g
a
rd
le
s
s
o
f
m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
,
e
x
is
ti
n
g
re
s
id
e
n
ts
w
ill
b
e

o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
e
d
.

1
1
5
.
T
w
o
s
to
re
y
h
o
u
s
e
s
o
n
b
o
rd
e
r
w
it
h
e
x
is
ti
n
g
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
w
ill

b
o
x
-i
n
e
x
is
ti
n
g
b
u
n
g
a
lo
w
s
.

1
1
6
.
E
x
c
e
lle
n
t
p
ro
v
is
io
n
m
u
s
t
b
e
m
a
d
e
fo
r
b
u
n
g
a
lo
w
s
b
a
c
k
in
g

o
n
to
th
e
s
it
e
.

T
h
e
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
to
e
x
is
ti
n
g
h
o
u
s
in
g
is
a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
.
T
h
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

a
rc
h
it
e
c
ts
w
ill
n
e
e
d
to
c
a
re
fu
lly
c
o
n
s
id
e
r
th
e
s
e
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
.

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
to
th
e
n
e
e
d

to
re
g
a
rd
e
x
is
ti
n
g

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
a
d
d
e
d
a
t

P
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
2
.3
.1
.

1
1
7
.
C
a
re
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
g
iv
e
n
to
h
o
w
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
h
o
u
s
in
g
is

in
te
g
ra
te
d
in
to
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
h
o
u
s
in
g
w
ill
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
in
c
lu
s
te
rs
a
c
ro
s
s
th
e
s
it
e
.

N
/A

1
1
8
.
T
o
o
d
e
n
s
e
-
H
ig
h
d
e
n
s
it
y
h
o
u
s
in
g
c
a
u
s
e
s
n
a
rr
o
w
ro
a
d
s

w
it
h
c
a
rs
p
a
rk
e
d
o
n
v
e
rg
e
s
/
o
b
s
tr
u
c
ti
n
g
p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
.

1
1
9
.
H
o
u
s
in
g
to
o
d
e
n
s
e
a
n
d
to
o
in
te
n
s
iv
e
.

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
f
3
3
0
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
a
t
th
e
s
it
e
w
ill
y
ie
ld
u
n
it
s
a
t
3
0
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s

p
e
r
h
e
c
ta
re
,
w
h
ic
h
is
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
fo
r
th
is
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
.
A
n
y
p
la
n
n
in
g

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
w
ill
b
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
a
g
a
in
s
t
th
e
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
D
e
s
ig
n

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
to
e
n
s
u
re
h
ig
h
q
u
a
lit
y
d
e
s
ig
n
.

N
/A

1
2
0
.
H
o
u
s
e
s
m
u
s
t
h
a
v
e
th
e
ir
o
w
n
g
a
rd
e
n
s
.

G
a
rd
e
n
s
w
ill
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
in
a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
w
it
h
th
e
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
s
e
t
o
u
t
in

C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
D
e
s
ig
n
G
u
id
e
.

N
/A

1
2
1
.
H
o
u
s
in
g
lo
c
a
te
d
c
lo
s
e
to
fo
u
l
p
u
m
p
.

A
1
5
m
n
o
b
u
ild
z
o
n
e
is
to
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e
e
x
is
ti
n
g
fo
u
l
p
u
m
p
in
g

s
ta
ti
o
n
,
a
s
re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

N
/A

1
2
2
.
N
o
fo
o
tp
a
th
s
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
p
ro
v
id
e
d
o
n
K
in
g
’s
R
e
a
c
h
,
n
o

c
o
n
fi
rm
a
ti
o
n
th
a
t
th
is
w
ill
n
o
t
b
e
th
e
c
a
s
e
h
e
re
.

E
s
ta
te
ro
a
d
s
w
ill
n
e
e
d
to
b
e
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
to
th
e
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
o
f
C
B
C
’s

H
ig
h
w
a
y
O
ff
ic
e
rs
.
L
im
it
e
d
s
h
a
re
d
s
u
rf
a
c
e
s
tr
e
e
ts
m
a
y
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
fo
o
tp
a
th
s

o
n
b
o
th
s
id
e
s
b
u
t
w
ill
b
e
a
s
h
a
re
d
s
p
a
c
e
.

N
/A

1
2
3
.
R
o
a
d
s
s
h
o
u
ld
n
’t
b
e
to
o
n
a
rr
o
w
.

E
s
ta
te
ro
a
d
s
w
ill
n
e
e
d
to
b
e
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
to
th
e
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
o
f
C
B
C
’s

H
ig
h
w
a
y
O
ff
ic
e
rs
.

N
/A

1
2
4
.
P
a
rk
in
g
a
n
d
s
to
ra
g
e
a
re
a
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
v
is
ib
le
fr
o
m
h
o
m
e
s

A
g
re
e
d
.

N
/A

Agenda Item 10
Page 58



S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
m
a
in
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
d
u
ri
n
g
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e

to
re
d
u
c
e
th
e
ft
.

1
2
5
.
M
u
s
t
e
n
s
u
re
h
ig
h
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
lo
c
k
s
a
re
fi
tt
e
d
o
n
d
o
o
rs

a
n
d
w
in
d
o
w
s
.

N
o
te
d
.

N
/A

1
2
6
.
P
a
rk
in
g
a
re
a
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
p
e
rm
e
a
b
le
to
re
d
u
c
e
fl
o
o
d
ri
s
k
.

A
fu
ll
F
lo
o
d
R
is
k
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
w
ill
b
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d
a
t
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
g
e
to

d
e
te
rm
in
e
th
e
fl
o
o
d
ri
s
k
s
tr
a
te
g
y
fo
r
th
e
s
it
e
.

N
/A

H
o
u
s
in
g
ty
p
e

1
2
7
.
N
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
h
o
m
e
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
re
d
u
c
e
d
.

P
o
lic
y
H
A
1
re
q
u
ir
e
d
a
n
in
d
ic
a
ti
v
e
m
in
im
u
m
o
f
3
3
0
h
o
m
e
s
.

N
/A

1
2
8
.
H
o
w
fa
r
a
w
a
y
a
re
h
o
u
s
e
s
fr
o
m
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
?

S
e
tb
a
c
k
fr
o
m
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
is
a
ro
u
n
d
1
0
m
(T
o
b
e
c
h
e
c
k
e
d
)

N
/A

1
2
9
.
N
o
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
g
iv
e
n
to
e
ld
e
rl
y
/d
is
a
b
le
d

h
o
u
s
in
g
.

N
o
te
d
.
T
h
e
m
ix
o
f
u
n
it
s
w
ill
b
e
a
g
re
e
d
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
p
re
-a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
.

N
/A

1
3
0
.
P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
o
f
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
h
o
u
s
in
g
n
o
t
c
le
a
r.
W
h
a
t
is
P
o
lic
y

C
S
7
?

1
3
1
.
W
h
a
t
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
is
s
o
c
ia
l
h
o
u
s
in
g
a
n
d
is
it
a
ll
in
o
n
e

a
re
a
?

3
5
%
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
h
o
u
s
in
g
w
ill
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
.
T
h
is
w
ill
b
e
p
e
p
p
e
r-
p
o
tt
e
d

a
c
ro
s
s
th
e
s
it
e
in
s
m
a
ll-
m
e
d
iu
m
s
iz
e
d
c
lu
s
te
rs
.

A
d
d
e
d
to
te
x
t
(r
e
fe
r
to

P
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
7
.2
).

1
3
2
.
W
o
u
ld
lik
e
to
s
e
e
5
0
%
s
o
c
ia
l
h
o
u
s
in
g
.

N
o
te
d
,
b
u
t
n
o
t
a
p
o
lic
y
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t.

N
/A

1
3
3
.
A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
h
o
u
s
in
g
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
re
d
u
c
e
d
;
it
lo
o
k
s
o
u
t
o
f

p
la
c
e
o
n
a
n
y
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

N
o
te
d
,
b
u
t
3
5
%
is
th
e
p
o
lic
y
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t,
s
u
b
je
c
t
to
v
ia
b
ili
ty

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.

N
/A

1
3
4
.
H
o
u
s
in
g
ty
p
e
u
n
s
u
it
a
b
le
.

1
3
5
.
K
in
g
’s
R
e
a
c
h
p
ro
v
id
e
s
th
is
ty
p
e
/s
iz
e
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
n
e
e
d
s

m
o
re
la
rg
e
r
h
o
u
s
e
s

T
h
e
m
ix
o
f
u
n
it
s
w
ill
b
e
a
g
re
e
d
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
p
re
-a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
.
N
/A

1
3
6
.
Y
o
u
n
g
p
e
o
p
le
c
a
n
n
o
t
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
a
ff
o
rd
to
p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
in
th
e

a
re
a
.

C
B
C
p
o
lic
ie
s
w
ill
re
q
u
ir
e
a
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
m
ix
o
f
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
s
iz
e
s
a
n
d
ty
p
e
s
.

N
/A

1
3
7
.
D
o
n
’t
w
a
n
t
p
e
o
p
le
fr
o
m
o
u
ts
id
e
th
e
a
re
a
to
liv
e
in
th
e

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
h
o
u
s
in
g
.

N
o
te
d
.
T
h
is
w
ill
b
e
a
m
a
tt
e
r
fo
r
C
B
C
H
o
u
s
in
g
O
ff
ic
e
rs
a
n
d
th
e
H
o
u
s
in
g

A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
to
b
e
lin
k
e
d
to
th
e
s
it
e
.

N
/A

S
1
0
6
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

1
3
8
.
S
h
o
u
ld
b
e
m
o
re
e
n
te
rt
a
in
m
e
n
t/
le
is
u
re
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
,
in
c
lu
d
in
g

fo
r
y
o
u
n
g
p
e
o
p
le
.

T
h
e
H
e
a
d
s
o
f
T
e
rm
s
fo
r
th
e
S
1
0
6
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t
a
re
s
u
b
je
c
t
to
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
,

a
n
d
fo
r
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t
p
ri
o
r
to
th
e
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
o
f
th
e
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

1
3
9
.
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
in
th
e
fo
rm
o
f
ju
n
c
ti
o
n

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
a
n
d
b
e
tt
e
r
q
u
a
lit
y
ro
a
d
s
,
w
h
ic
h
w
ill
b
e
n
e
fi
t

m
o
re
p
e
o
p
le
th
a
n
ju
s
t
c
y
c
lin
g
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
.

T
h
e
a
m
o
u
n
t
o
f
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
to
w
a
rd
s
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

re
m
a
in
s
to
b
e
a
g
re
e
d
,
s
u
b
je
c
t
to
th
e
fi
n
d
in
g
s
o
f
th
e
fi
n
a
l
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.

N
/A

1
4
0
.
A
t
ti
m
e
o
f
w
ri
ti
n
g
,
N
H
S
E
n
g
la
n
d
re
q
u
ir
e
d
a
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
o
f

£
6
2
1
p
e
r
d
w
e
lli
n
g
fo
r
P
ri
m
a
ry
C
a
re
.

N
o
te
d
.

N
/A

1
4
1
.
S
1
0
6
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
to
o
h
ig
h
,
c
o
u
ld
b
e
o
m
it
te
d
c
o
m
p
le
te
ly

a
n
d
m
o
n
e
y
s
p
e
n
t
o
n
b
u
ild
in
g
fo
r
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
o
r
ri
n
g

fe
n
c
e
d
fo
r
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
.

1
4
2
.
M
a
k
e
s
u
re
th
e
fu
ll
a
m
o
u
n
t
is
c
h
a
rg
e
d
.

1
4
3
.
N
o
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
o
r
d
e
ta
il
to
s
h
o
w
h
o
w
th
e
s
e
c
a
n
b
e
m
e
t.

S
e
c
ti
o
n
1
0
6
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
w
ill
b
e
s
o
u
g
h
t
in
lin
e
w
it
h
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
P
la
n
n
in
g
O
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
S
tr
a
te
g
y
,
th
is
is
s
e
t
o
u
t
in
S
e
c
ti
o
n
7
.3

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
if
th
e
re
a
re
s
p
e
c
if
ic
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
th
e
n
th
e
s
e
w
ill
b
e
ta
k
e
n
in
to

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
t
th
e
P
la
n
n
in
g
A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
g
e
.

N
/A

M
is
c
e
ll
a
n
e
o
u
s

Agenda Item 10
Page 59



S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
m
a
in
is
s
u
e
s
ra
is
e
d
d
u
ri
n
g
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
P
o
tt
o
n
R
o
a
d
,
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e

1
4
4
.
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
h
a
s
d
e
s
tr
o
y
e
d
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
’s
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r

w
it
h
o
u
t
im
p
ro
v
in
g
th
e
to
w
n
.

T
h
is
s
it
e
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
a
llo
c
a
te
d
u
n
d
e
r
P
o
lic
y
H
A
1
.

N
/A

1
4
5
.
T
h
e
re
is
n
o
n
e
e
d
fo
r
a
n
y
m
o
re
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
in
th
is
a
re
a
;

K
in
g
’s
R
e
a
c
h
fu
lf
ils
a
ll
n
e
e
d
fo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
h
e
re
.

T
h
e
s
it
e
is
a
llo
c
a
te
d
fo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
u
n
d
e
r
P
o
lic
y
H
A
1
a
n
d
w
ill
c
o
m
e

fo
rw
a
rd
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
C
B
C
’s
5
y
e
a
r
h
o
u
s
in
g
la
n
d
s
u
p
p
ly
.

N
/A

1
4
6
.
E
x
is
ti
n
g
h
o
u
s
e
s
o
n
to
th
e
s
it
e
w
ill
b
e
c
o
m
e
o
v
e
rl
o
o
k
e
d
,

b
o
x
e
d
-i
n
a
n
d
n
a
tu
ra
l
lig
h
t
to
th
e
s
it
e
w
ill
b
e
re
s
tr
ic
te
d
.

T
h
e
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
to
e
x
is
ti
n
g
h
o
u
s
in
g
is
a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
.
T
h
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

a
rc
h
it
e
c
ts
w
ill
n
e
e
d
to
c
a
re
fu
lly
c
o
n
s
id
e
r
th
e
s
e
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
.

N
/A

1
4
7
.
Im
p
a
c
t
o
n
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
fo
r
e
x
is
ti
n
g
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
b
o
rd
e
ri
n
g
th
e

s
it
e
th
a
t
s
im
p
ly
h
a
v
e
fe
n
c
e
s
a
t
p
re
s
e
n
t.

T
h
e
n
e
w
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
w
ill
h
a
v
e
to
p
ro
v
id
e
n
e
w
a
n
d
ro
b
u
s
t
fe
n
c
in
g
to

e
x
is
ti
n
g
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
.

N
/A

1
4
8
.
T
h
is
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
w
a
s
p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
tu
rn
e
d
d
o
w
n
,
w
h
a
t
h
a
s

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
s
in
c
e
th
e
n
?

T
h
e
s
it
e
w
a
s
a
llo
c
a
te
d
in
2
0
1
1
to
m
e
e
t
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s

h
o
u
s
in
g
ta
rg
e
ts
.
T
h
is
is
a
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
B
ri
e
f
to
g
u
id
e
fu
tu
re
p
la
n
n
in
g

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
.

N
/A

1
4
9
.
M
a
y
s
e
t
p
re
c
e
d
e
n
t
fo
r
b
u
ild
in
g
fr
o
m
s
it
e
u
p
to
ra
ilw
a
y

(i
n
fi
lli
n
g
).

T
h
e
s
it
e
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
o
n
ly
in
c
lu
d
e
s
th
e
s
u
b
je
c
t
s
it
e
,
w
it
h
n
o
la
n
d
b
e
y
o
n
d
th
e

s
it
e
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
fo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
r
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

1
5
0
.
P
re
s
s
u
re
fo
r
fu
rt
h
e
r
h
o
u
s
in
g
w
ill
c
a
u
s
e
s
p
re
a
d
b
e
y
o
n
d

n
o
m
in
a
te
d
s
it
e
s
.

T
h
e
s
it
e
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
o
n
ly
in
c
lu
d
e
s
th
e
s
u
b
je
c
t
s
it
e
,
w
it
h
n
o
la
n
d
b
e
y
o
n
d
th
e

s
it
e
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
fo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
r
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

1
5
1
.
E
x
is
ti
n
g
d
ra
in
a
g
e
o
d
o
u
r
p
ro
b
le
m
s
m
a
y
b
e
w
o
rs
e
n
e
d
.

1
5
2
.
W
ill
w
a
te
r
p
u
m
p
b
e
a
b
le
to
c
o
p
e
;
e
x
is
ti
n
g
re
s
id
e
n
ts
h
a
v
e

h
a
d
p
ro
b
le
m
s
w
it
h
th
is
in
th
e
p
a
s
t.

1
5
3
.
E
x
is
ti
n
g
re
s
id
e
n
ts
h
a
v
e
p
ro
b
le
m
s
w
it
h
s
e
w
a
g
e
,
th
is
w
ill

w
o
rs
e
n
it
.

A
fu
ll
F
lo
o
d
R
is
k
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
w
ill
b
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d
a
t
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
ta
g
e
to

d
e
te
rm
in
e
th
e
s
u
rf
a
c
e
w
a
te
r
fl
o
o
d
ri
s
k
a
n
d
fo
u
l
w
a
te
r
d
ra
in
a
g
e
s
tr
a
te
g
y

fo
r
th
e
s
it
e
.

N
/A

1
5
4
.
Im
p
a
c
t
o
n
h
o
u
s
e
p
ri
c
e
s
fo
r
e
x
is
ti
n
g
re
s
id
e
n
ts
.

N
o
t
a
p
la
n
n
in
g
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

1
5
5
.
D
is
a
g
re
e
w
it
h
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
o
f
e
x
p
a
n
d
in
g
B
ig
g
le
s
w
a
d
e
(e
it
h
e
r

in
th
is
p
a
rt
o
r
in
g
e
n
e
ra
l)
.
W
o
u
ld
b
e
m
o
re
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
to

b
u
ild
a
c
o
m
p
le
te
ly
n
e
w
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t/
e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
.

1
5
6
.
S
h
o
u
ld
b
u
ild
n
e
a
r
th
e
A
1
s
o
u
th
ro
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t
in
s
te
a
d
.

T
h
e
s
it
e
is
a
llo
c
a
te
d
fo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
u
n
d
e
r
P
o
lic
y
H
A
1
a
n
d
w
ill
c
o
m
e

fo
rw
a
rd
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
C
B
C
’s
5
y
e
a
r
h
o
u
s
in
g
la
n
d
s
u
p
p
ly
.

N
/A

1
5
7
.
W
h
a
t
a
re
th
e
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
?

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l
o
f
th
e
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
a
t
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
in
M
a
y
2
0
1
4
,
w
it
h
a
p
la
n
n
in
g

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
to
fo
llo
w
.
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
n
s
it
e
c
a
n
n
o
t
s
ta
rt
u
n
ti
l

th
e
E
a
s
te
rn
R
e
lie
f
R
o
a
d
is
c
o
m
p
le
te
.

N
/A

1
5
8
.
N
o
m
o
re
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
u
n
ti
l
th
e
e
ff
e
c
ts
o
f

th
e
e
x
is
ti
n
g
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
/
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
a
re
k
n
o
w
n
.

T
h
e
s
it
e
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
o
n
ly
in
c
lu
d
e
s
th
e
s
u
b
je
c
t
s
it
e
,
w
it
h
n
o
la
n
d
b
e
y
o
n
d
th
e

s
it
e
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
fo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
r
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
.

N
/A

1
5
9
.
N
e
e
d
s
to
b
e
m
o
re
lit
te
r
b
in
s
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e
to
w
n
.

T
h
is
is
o
u
ts
id
e
o
f
th
e
s
c
o
p
e
o
f
th
is
b
ri
e
f.

N
/A

1
6
0
.
H
o
w
d
o
y
o
u
k
n
o
w
w
h
a
t
is
n
o
t
a
n
a
re
a
o
f
h
is
to
ri
c
in
te
re
s
t

b
e
a
ri
n
g
in
m
in
d
o
ld
h
ill
fo
rt
n
o
t
fa
r
a
w
a
y
.

H
is
to
ri
c
/
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
R
e
c
o
rd
s
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
a
n
d
C
B
C
h
a
v
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
th
e
ir
in
-h
o
u
s
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t
a
rc
h
a
e
o
lo
g
is
t.

N
/A

Agenda Item 10
Page 60



Appendix A: Questionnaire

Agenda Item 10
Page 61



The draft Potton Road Development Brief will become planning guidance for residential
development on the site in the future. The site has been allocated for a minimum of 330

dwellings. We would like to hear your views on the draft Development Brief.

Please review the draft Development Brief and provide your feedback by completing this
questionnaire by Wednesday 9th April 2014.

You can also complete this online at http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/consultations

1. Are you responding as a:

nmlkj Resident of Biggleswade

nmlkj Resident of Central Bedfordshire

nmlkj Local Business

nmlkj Community/Voluntary Organisation

nmlkj Town/Parish Council

nmlkj Landowner/Developer/Agent

nmlkj Other

Please specify

Constraints
To answer the following question, please refer to section 5 of the draft Development Brief.

2. The document identifies the constraints for developing the site. How far do you agree or disagree with
these constraints?

nmlkj Strongly agree nmlkj Agree nmlkj Neither agree or
disagree

nmlkj Disagree nmlkj Strongly
disagree

3. Do you have any comments to make about the constraints we have identified?

Agenda Item 10
Page 62



4. Are there any other constraints you think we have missed?

Opportunities
To answer the following question, please refer to section 6 of the draft Development Brief.

5. The document identifies the opportunities for developing the site. How far do you agree or disagree with
these opportunities?

nmlkj Strongly agree nmlkj Agree nmlkj Neither agree or
disagree

nmlkj Disagree nmlkj Strongly
disagree

6. Do you have any comments to make about the opportunities we have identified?

7. Are there any other opportunities you think we have missed?

Housing
To answer the following question, please refer to section 7 of the draft Development Brief.

8. We recognise that this development is on the edge of the existing town and it will therefore impact on
the countryside as well as expanding the size of the town. We have proposed a range or actions to
reduce this impact as far as possible. This includes landscaping, incorporating green open space within
the development and attractive frontages to houses in keeping with the town. How far do you agree or
disagree with these actions?

nmlkj Strongly agree nmlkj Agree nmlkj Neither agree or
disagree

nmlkj Disagree nmlkj Strongly
disagree

9. Do you have any comments to make about this?

Agenda Item 10
Page 63



10. The draft Development Brief seeks to provide a range of both house types and house sizes including a
range of affordable housing. How far do you agree or disagree with this approach?

nmlkj Strongly agree nmlkj Agree nmlkj Neither agree or
disagree

nmlkj Disagree nmlkj Strongly
disagree

11. Do you have any comments to make about the housing on the development?

Open space
To answer the following question, please refer to section 7 of the draft Development Brief.

12. The brief proposes to provide green open space within the development, including a Village Green with
play space as well as connections to open space outside of the site, including the Biggleswade Green
Wheel and Biggleswade Common. How far do you agree or disagree with these proposals?

nmlkj Strongly agree nmlkj Agree nmlkj Neither agree or
disagree

nmlkj Disagree nmlkj Strongly
disagree

13. Do you have any suggestions or comments to make in relation to the proposed open space provision
and connections?

Accessing the site
To answer the following question, please refer to section 6 and 7 of the draft Development Brief.

14. The draft Development Brief proposes to link the site to existing surrounding pedestrian and cycle
networks. In addition to this it proposes that a pedestrian crossing will be provided on Potton Road.
How far do you agree or disagree with these proposals?

nmlkj Strongly agree nmlkj Agree nmlkj Neither agree or
disagree

nmlkj Disagree nmlkj Strongly
disagree

15. We recognise that this development may increase the volume of traffic on the key routes through the
town centre. Do you have any comments or suggestions to make in relation to access and movement
to/from/within the site?

Agenda Item 10
Page 64



Planning Contributions
To answer the following question, please refer to section 7 of the draft Development Brief.
Planning obligations aim to mitigiate the impact of the development on the local area and enable a council
to secure financial contributions to services, infrastructure and amenities in order to support a proposed
development. These are often referred to as Section 106 agreements. The draft Development Brief lists
where potential contributions could be made in Section 7.3.0.

16. How far do you agree or disagree with the areas identified for potential Section 106 contributions?

Affordable housing nmlkj

Strongly
agree

nmlkj

Agree

nmlkj

Neither
agree or
disagree

nmlkj

Disagree

nmlkj

Strongly
disagree

Education nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Sustainable transport measures nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj
Associated highways
improvements in the local area

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Leisure, recreational space and
green infrastructure provision (e.g.
high quality green spaces and
other environmental features)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Waste management provision nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Emergency services provision nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Healthcare provision nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Community cohesion measures nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

17. Do you have any specific comments on the proposed areas for Section 106 contributions?

18. Do you have any other comments to make on the draft Development Brief?

Agenda Item 10
Page 65



About you
The last few questions are about you. The information you give us will help us to make sure that we're
getting the views of all members of the community. The answers will not be used to identify any individual.

19. Your postcode:

20. Are you?

nmlkj Male nmlkj Female

21. What is your age?

nmlkj Under 16

nmlkj 16-19

nmlkj 20-29

nmlkj 30-44

nmlkj 45-59

nmlkj 60-64

nmlkj 65-74

nmlkj 75+

22. Do you consider yourself to be disabled? Under the Equality Act 2010 a person is considered to have a
disability if he/she has a physical or mental impairment which has a sustained and long-term adverse effect on
his/her ability to carry out normal day to day activities.

nmlkj Yes nmlkj No

23. To which of these groups do you consider you belong?

nmlkj Asian or Asian British

nmlkj Black or Black British

nmlkj Chinese

nmlkj Mixed

nmlkj White British

nmlkj Other Ethnic group

Please specify:

Thank you for your views.

Please return your completed questionnaire by Wednesday 9th April 2014 to:
FREEPOST RSJS GBB2 SRZT (you do not need a stamp)

Potton Road development brief
Central Bedfordshire Council, Priory House

Monks Walk, Chicksands
Shefford, SG17 5TQ

Data Protection Act 1998
Please note that your personal details supplied on this form will be held and/or computerised by Central Bedfordshire Council for the purpose of
creating planning guidance for the land off of Potton Road. The information collected may be disclosed to officers and members of the Council and
its partners involved in this consultation. Summarised information from the forms may be published, but no individual details will be disclosed under
these circumstances.
Your personal details will be safeguarded and will not be divulged to any other individual or organisation for any other purposes.
Information classification: Protected when complete

Agenda Item 10
Page 66



Appendix B: Articles from Biggleswade Advertiser

Agenda Item 10
Page 67



öøòúëîäíäçþ ïìýôõ ýýìïõï ñ úøäîèëäöæ ïìýôõ ýõýìóï ûü÷ óöÿ÷øûþù÷ø úøôýõ û îÿúöøòúëîäíúëþëèðêü÷èüðå û éöë÷ÿ ìõù õïìý û ÿ

æ×ôÛ êâ çóûùèð óöì×ôù í×èÿ ðàêå çâêöç
êúö ÎÊÍûÇù ÝÈÑÍ
éöòÎÈÇÎ ÿòÍüöÐ ûÎ
ÐòüûÇù Êþòôö ûÇ
çÈÐÐÈÇ ÈÇ éòÐÑÍõòØ
ãòÍôú ÚÚý
éúÈÊÊöÍÎ òþÎÈ úòÒö
Ðúö ôúòÇôö ÐÈ Êûôü ÑÊ
ÎÈÿö ÐûÊÎ ÈÇ úÈÓ ÐÈ
ÎÐòØ Îòøöì òÎ Ðúö
ÐÈÓÇðÎ ôÈÿÿÑÇûÐØ

ÎòøöÐØ ÍÈòõÎúÈÓì
ÓúöÍö Ðúö øûÍö ÎöÍâ
Òûôöì ÊÈþûôöì ôÈÿÿÑâ
ÇûÐØ ÈøøûôöÍÎ òÇõ
ôÈÑÇôûþþÈÍÎ Óûþþ òþþ óö
ÈÇ úòÇõý
êúö ÎÐòþþÎ Óûþþ ÈøøöÍ
óÍöòõÎì ôúööÎöì ÓûÇöì
øòÇôØ ùÈÈõÎì ÊþòÇÐÎì
ùòÍõöÇ ÊÍÈõÑôö òÇõ

úÈÐ þÈôòþþØâÊÍÈõÑôöõ
òÇõ øÍöÎúþØâÊÍöÊòÍöõ
øÈÈõý
êúö øûÍö ÎöÍÒûôö Óûþþ
òõÒûÎö ÈÇ Ðúö ÎÑÊÊþØ
òÇõ øûÐ Èø øÍöö ÎÿÈüö
õöÐöôÐÈÍÎì Óúûþö
ÊÈþûôö ÈøøûôöÍÎ Óûþþ
ÎöôÑÍûÐØ öÐôú ØÈÑÍ
óûüö ÈÍ øûÐ ÎöôÑÍûÐØ

ÎôÍöÓÎ ÐÈ ØÈÑÍ ÇÑÿâ
óöÍ ÊþòÐöý
êòþü ÐÈ ôÈþõ ôòþþûÇù
ÈøøûôöÍÎ òÇõ øûÇõ ÈÑÐ
úÈÓ ÐÈ ÊÍöÒöÇÐ ÍÈùÑö
ÐÍòõöÍÎ øÍÈÿ ôÈÇÇûÇù
ØÈÑ ÈÑÐ Èø ÿÈÇöØ òÇõ
õûÎôÈÒöÍ úÈÓ
å ö û ù ú ó È Ñ Í ú È È õ
íòÐôú ôòÇ úöþÊ ØÈÑý

òõô÷ùñúøðõô õûýö

ñúôü þõö ÿõóý÷
ñçþ ûðîðìú ëû õ íåîú êúõì
ùåýýèúíóõøú íúî õíåøú ûëì õî
èúõíî òòï ÿëéúí åí îÿú íðöæú÷î
ëû õê úôÿåöåîåëê îëéëììëóü
áòÇõ þÈôòÐöõ ÈÇ Ðúö ÇÈÍÐúâ
ÓöÎÐ Îûõö Èø çÈÐÐÈÇ èÈòõì ÐÈ
Ðúö ÇÈÍÐúâöòÎÐ Èø ÖûùùþöÎÓòõö
úòÎ óööÇ òþþÈôòÐöõ øÈÍ úÈÑÎâ
ûÇù óØ ÙöÇÐÍòþ ÖöõøÈÍõÎúûÍö
ÙÈÑÇôûþ ëÙÖÙäý
ÝÍÈÿ ÚÊÿ ÐÈ ÏÊÿì òÇ öÕúûâ
óûÐûÈÇ Óûþþ óö úöþõ òÐ Ðúö
ÖûùùþöÎÓòõö êÈÓÇ ÙÈÑÇôûþ
ÈøøûôöÎ ûÇ éòøøÍÈÇ èÈòõì öÇòâ
óþûÇù ÍöÎûõöÇÐÎ ÐÈ ÒûöÓ òÇõ
úòÒö ÐúöûÍ ÎòØ ÈÇ öÿöÍùûÇù
ÊþòÇÎ øÈÍ Ðúö ÎûÐöý
Ô ÊÑóþûô ôÈÇÎÑþÐòÐûÈÇ ÈÒöÍ
Ðúö õöÒöþÈÊÿöÇÐ óÍûöøì ÊÍÈâ
õÑôöõ óØ ÖöþþÓòØ ÞÈÿöÎ òÇõ
ÖþÈÈÍ ÞÈÿöÎ ûÇ ôÈþþòóÈÍòÐûÈÇ
ÓûÐú ÙÖÙì òþÎÈ üûôüÎ Èøø
ÐÈÿÈÍÍÈÓ òÇõ Óûþþ ôÈÇÐûÇÑö
ÑÇÐûþ ÔÊÍûþ ÷ý
ÙþþÍ åûùöþ îÈÑÇùì ÜÕöôÑÐûÒö
ãöÿóöÍ øÈÍ éÐÍòÐöùûô

çþòÇÇûÇù òÇõ ÜôÈÇÈÿûô
ÛöÒöþÈÊÿöÇÐì Îòûõ× Åêúö ÎûÐö
úòÎ óööÇ òþþÈôòÐöõ ò ÿûÇûâ
ÿÑÿ Èø ææÉ õÓöþþûÇùÎ òÇõ Óö
ÓòÇÐ ÐÈ ÿòüö ÎÑÍö ò ÎÈþûõ
õöÒöþÈÊÿöÇÐ óÍûöø ûÎ ûÇ Êþòôöý
ÅêúûÎ óÍûöø ôòÇ ÐúöÇ óö
òõÈÊÐöõ óØ Ðúö ôÈÑÇôûþ òÎ
ÐöôúÇûôòþ ùÑûõòÇôö øÈÍ ÐúòÐ
ÎûÐö òÇõ ÎÈ Óö ÓòÇÐ ÐÈ ÿòüö
ÎÑÍö ÐúòÐ þÈôòþ ÍöÎûõöÇÐÎ ôòÇ
úòÒö ÐúöûÍ ÎòØ ÈÇ Ðúö ûÇûÐûòþ
ÊÍÈÊÈÎòþÎý
Åíö ÓÈÑþõ öÇôÈÑÍòùö ÊöÈâ
Êþö ÐÈ ùÈ òþÈÇù ÐÈ Ðúö öÕúûóûâ
ÐûÈÇ òÇõ úòÒö ÐúöûÍ ÎòØ õÑÍûÇù
Ðúö ôÈÇÎÑþÐòÐûÈÇý
ÅßÐ ûÎ ûÿÊÈÍÐòÇÐ ÐúòÐ Óö úòÒö
ò ùÈÈõ õöÒöþÈÊÿöÇÐ óÍûöø ûÇ
Êþòôö øÈÍ ÓúöÇ ÊþòÇÇûÇù
òÊÊþûôòÐûÈÇÎ ôÈÿö ûÇ ÐÈ
öÇÎÑÍö òÇØ òÊÊþûôòÐûÈÇÎ øÈþâ
þÈÓ ò ÌÑòþûÐØ õöÎûùÇ ÐúòÐ
óÑûþõÎ ÈÇ Ðúö öÕûÎÐûÇù ôúòÍòôâ
ÐöÍ Èø ÖûùùþöÎÓòõöýÆ
ÙþþÍ îÈÑÇù òõõöõ× Åêúö ôÈÇâ
ÎÑþÐòÐûÈÇ ÿöòÇÎ ÐúòÐ Ðúö þÈôòþ
ôÈÿÿÑÇûÐØ ôòÇ ôÈÿÿöÇÐ ÈÇ
Ðúö óÍÈòõ ÒûöÓ Èø Ðúö õöÒöþâ

ÈÊÿöÇÐ ÇÈÓ ûÇ ÈÍõöÍ ÐÈ úòÒö
ÿÈÍö ôÈÇÐÍÈþ ÈÒöÍ Ðúö ÊþòÇÎ ûÇ
Ðúö øÑÐÑÍöýÆ
êúö þòÇõ ÓòÎ ÎöÐ òÎûõö øÈÍ
úÈÑÎûÇù ÑÇõöÍ ÊÈþûôØ ÞÔï Èø
Ðúö ÙÖÙ éûÐö ÔþþÈôòÐûÈÇÎ
ÛöÒöþÈÊÿöÇÐ çþòÇ ÛÈôÑÿöÇÐ
ëåÈÍÐúäý
ÙÈÊûöÎ Èø Ðúö ÊþòÇÎì òÎ Óöþþ
òÎ Ðúö ôÈÇÎÑþÐòÐûÈÇ ÌÑöÎÐûÈÇâ
ÇòûÍöì Óûþþ óö òÒòûþòóþö øÍÈÿ
ÐÈÿÈÍÍÈÓ òÐ ÓÓÓýôöÇÐÍòþóöâ
õøÈÍõÎúûÍöýùÈÒýÑüñôÈÇÎÑþÐòâ
ÐûÈÇÎý
ÔþÐöÍÇòÐûÒöþØì ÊòÊöÍ ôÈÊûöÎ
ôòÇ óö ÒûöÓöõ òÐ ÖûùùþöÎÓòõö
áûóÍòÍØ ûÇ ÙúöÎÐÇÑÐ ÔÒöÇÑöì
ÖûùùþöÎÓòõö êÈÓÇ ÙÈÑÇôûþ
ÈøøûôöÎ ûÇ éòøøÍÈÇ èÈòõ ÈÍ Ðúö
ÙÖÙ ÈøøûôöÎ òÐ çÍûÈÍØ ÞÈÑÎöì
ÙúûôüÎòÇõÎý
áòÎÐ Óööü òÐ Ðúö àûÇùðÎ
èöòôú õöÒöþÈÊÿöÇÐ Ä òþÎÈ ûÇ
çÈÐÐÈÇ èÈòõ Ä ò ÇöÓ ËÐÈÓÇ
ÎÌÑòÍöð ÓûÐú ÎÊòôö øÈÍ ÍöÐòûþâ
öÍÎ òÇõ ÍöÎÐòÑÍòÇÐÎì òÎ Óöþþ òÎ
ò ôòÍö úÈÿöì ÍöÎûõöÇÐûòþ ÑÇûÐÎ
òÇõ ò ôÈÿÿÑÇûÐØ óÑûþõûÇùì
ÓÈÇ ôÈÑÇôûþ òÊÊÍÈÒòþý

÷ñ áÜúÚõþß ÚõïÜë
ðíùÿ÷ûïüÿ÷øíôþõÿû÷úøûóõíôûóýóñöòüùñüöî

êàÝ êùúÍü ÖÑ ïÎÓ éùÎÏ öÔöÍÒ
ÒÎÎü Ïþòôö ÎÍ éòÒÓÐõòÙ ÒÎ ÐòúÑö
òÕòÐöÍöÑÑ Î÷ ÷òúÐÒÐòõö òÍõ
þÎôòþ ÏÐÎõÓôÒÑ Õùúôù òÐö ÒÐòôöâ
òóþö òÍõ ÑÓÑÒòúÍòóþöý
ÝõÕòÐõ çöòüö éôùÎÎþ ùöþõ
ôÎÿÏöÒúÒúÎÍÑ úÍôþÓõúÍø óòÍòÍò
óòþòÍôúÍøý
æÒùöÐ ÑÒòþþÑ ÷öòÒÓÐöõ ßÎÎõ
éÒÎÐö ÚÓÏóÎòÐõ ëáÓþúòÍ
çöÍÍòÍÒä ÞòúÐ Üöòþ îÎÐþõ ëáòÍö

çòÐüöÐäí èöóöôôò ÞÓøúþþ ëôÐò÷ÒÑñ
ûöÕöþþöÐÙäí àÎÍöÙÿòÍ ëùÎÍöÙä
òÍõ ßòÐõöÍ ÞÐúöÍõÑ ëÔöøöÒòóþö
óÎ×öÑä òÍõ åöúþðÑ ïòÐõ ÎÐøòÍúô
ôÎÑÿöÒúôÑý
ìöÐúÒÙ æðéùòÓøùÍöÑÑÙ Î÷
ÞòúÐÒÐòõö ÞÎÓÍõòÒúÎÍ øòÔö
ÏÐöÑöÍÒòÒúÎÍÑ òóÎÓÒ Òùö Ëãòüö
óòÍòÍòÑ ÷òúÐÌ ôòÿÏòúøÍ òÍõ
Òùö ôÎÿÿöÐôúòþ òÍõ öÒùúôòþ
óöÍö÷úÒÑ Î÷ ÑÓÏÏÎÐÒúÍø ÷òúÐâ

ÒÐòõöý
ßÓöÑÒÑ úÍôþÓõöõ ÖþúÑÒòúÐ ØÓÐÒ
ãç òÍõ ØúøøþöÑÕòõö ãòÙÎÐ
àòÛöþ èòÿÑòÙý
êùö öÔöÍÒ ÕòÑ ÑÒòøöõ óÙ ÞÖØ
ëÞòúÐÒÐòõö ÖÑÑÎôúòÒúÎÍ
ØúøøþöÑÕòõöä ÕùÎ òÐö ò øÐÎÓÏ
Î÷ ÔÎþÓÍÒööÐÑ òÍõ ùòÔö ò õúÑâ
ÏþòÙ úÍ Òùö þúóÐòÐÙ ÷ÎÐ ÞòúÐÒÐòõö
ÞÎÐÒÍúøùÒý ïÎÓ ôòÍ ÷úÍõ ÎÓÒ
ÿÎÐö òÒ ÕÕÕý÷òóÕöóýÎÐøýÓü

ÖõÜé þãäîØÚÙ ïùå×èð äòëÿóêýÿÞùççð àû Öó×åèåóöù ÖàêÞöóè×àÞ í×èÿ õÝ×çèó×å ÷êåè áæø ôùÞèåùü

þô ùõ÷öý òÿ ü÷òû ÷ÿ ÷øøñ÷õ úóúøÿ

Agenda Item 10
Page 68



÷ùóûìïäîäçþ ðíýõö ýýíðöð ò ûùäïèìä÷æ ðíýõö ýöýíôð ûü÷ óöÿ÷øûþù÷ø úøôýõ ü ïÿû÷ùóûìïäîûìþìèñêëøèëñå ü é÷ìøÿ íôú öðíý ü ÿ

åþïïêèï åþ÷íèþýß ýúõõÞú àÞöáë æü þñôã íúôøÞäúëë ðÞìÿ ô ëìîøúäìé

øü÷ òùÿüìü îýýüñò üúõì ÿüëð óî ÿõñû ôð ðôðéëò
ìíîàáçíì øÒÎÿ þÎ×
ûÍôÎÿö øòÿûþûöÓ ÓÔÕõÜ
ÝûÍù ÓÎôûÎþÎùÝï ÐÎþûÔûôÓ
ÎÒ ÓÎôûòþ ÓôûöÍôöÓ ôòÍ
ÍÎ× òÐÐþÝ øÎÒ ÒöÖûÓûÎÍ
úöþÐ òÓ ÐòÒÔ Îø ò Íö×
Óôúöÿöè
íúö ÔÕûÔûÎÍ ÓöÒÖûôöï
áÙòÿ ëöòõûÍöÓÓï ûÓ òÍ
ûÍÔöÍÓûÖö ÒöÖûÓûÎÍ
ôÎÕÒÓö ÓöÒÖûôö øÎÒ
âÞìáï Ø åöÖöþ òÍõ

ÕÍõöÒùÒòõÕòÔö ÓÔÕÜ
õöÍÔÓ ûÍ ÚöõøÎÒõÓúûÒöè
äÔ ÎøøöÒÓ éÏ ÐöÒ ôöÍÔ
Îø ûÔÓ ÐþòôöÓ øÎÒ øÒöö
ÎÍ ÎÍö ÎÒ Ô×Î õòÝï ÎÒ
Ô×Î ÍûùúÔï ûÍÔöÍÓûÖö
ôÎÕÒÓöÓ øÎÒ ÓÔÕõöÍÔÓ
òôÒÎÓÓ Ôúö ôÎÕÍÔÝ òÍõ
ÎøøöÒÓ øÒöö ÷Ï ÿûÍÕÔö
öÙòÿ ×ÎÒýÓúÎÐÓ ÔÎ
ÓûÙÔú øÎÒÿÓï ôÎþþöùöÓ
òÍõ ÕÍûÖöÒÓûÔûöÓè

æòÍòùûÍù õûÒöôÔÎÒ
àöóóûö ãûôýÓ ÓòûõÛ
ËØøÔöÒ ðÏ ÝöòÒÓ ûÍ
ÿòûÍÓÔÒöòÿ ÔöòôúûÍù ä
ÓÔòÒÔöõ ×ÎÒýûÍù òÓ ò
ÐÒûÖòÔö ÔÕÔÎÒ ûÍ ßÏðê
òÍõ ×òÓ ÓúÎôýöõ òÔ
Ôúö ùÒÎ×ûÍù õöÿòÍõ
øÎÒ ÑÕòþûÔÝï ÐÒûÖòÔö ÔÕûÜ
ÔûÎÍ øÒÎÿ ÓÔÕõöÍÔÓ ûÍ
þÎ× ûÍôÎÿö úÎÿöÓè
ä õöôûõöõ ä ôÎÕþõÍñÔ

Ôöòôú ÓÎôûòþ òÍõ ÐÎþûÔÜ
ûôòþ ÓôûöÍôö ÓÕóüöôÔÓ
×ûÔúÎÕÔ ÐÒÎÖûõûÍù
ÓÎÿö öÔúûôòþ øÎÒÿ Îø
øÒöö ÐÒÎÖûÓûÎÍ ÔÎ ÐÎÎÒÜ
öÒ ÓÔÕõöÍÔÓèÌ
íúö øÒöö ôÎÕÒÓöÓ òÒö
òÖòûþòóþö ÓöÖöÍ õòÝÓ ò
×ööý øÒÎÿ ÍÎ× òÍõ
ôòÍ óö óÎÎýöõ ÎÍþûÍö
òÔ ×××èòþöÖöþÜ
ÒöÖûÓûÎÍÜôÎÕÒÓöÓèôÎèÕý

ê óî÷í îý þîìõí ùîéíò õíû ùôùôìöüñòï
æ×é×ç ÝññõÉÉê Â÷ æÂÉÉÂÁ ÚûÇÉÂÆÓ èÂòûõÉÓ ùðËõ ð
÷ðÇòûÁðÉûÁù Éðþý ÂÁ ÜèðÁôÓ çõòÂÆôÇ úõþô ñÓ Éúõ
æÂÉÉÂÁÚûÇÉÂÆÓ èÂòûõÉÓï ÉÂ Éúõ èðÁôÓÚûÇÉÂÆûòðþ
çõÇõðÆòú ÙÆÂÊÄ ÂÁ ÆõòõÁÉþÓâ
æõÉõÆïÇ ÄÆõÇõÁÉðÉûÂÁ ûÁòþÊôõô Âþô ÄúÂÉÂÒ
ùÆðÄúÇ ðÁô ÿðÄÇ Â÷ èðÁôÓê ûÁòþÊôûÁù ð ÇõÆûõÇ
Â÷ ÄÊñþûòðÉûÂÁÇ ðÁô ÌÆûÉûÁùÇ ùÂûÁù ñðòý åÃÃ
ÓõðÆÇ Ìúûòú úðô ÿõÁÉûÂÁõô Éúõ ÉÂÌÁâ
ÝÁ ìàìäê ûÉ ÌðÇ ÆõÄÂÆÉõô ÉúðÉ èðÁôÓ ÛÿðÆýõÉî
ùðÆôõÁõÆÇ Â÷ÉõÁ ÷ÂÊÁô çÂÿðÁ òÂûÁÇ ÂÁ ÉúõûÆ

þðÁôó ìöÉú ÔõÁÉÊÆÓ ÌÆûÉõÆÇ Çðûô ÉúðÉ Éúõ ÇðÁôÓ
ÇÂûþ ûÁ èðÁôÓ ÌðÇ ûôõðþ ÷ÂÆ ùÆÂÌûÁù òðÆÆÂÉÇ ðÁô
òÊòÊÿñõÆÇ ðÁô ÉúðÉ ¿èðÁôÓ ûÇ ôõËõþÂÄûÁù ûÁÉÂ
ð ÉÂÌÁÀ ÛìÈöÃÇîâ
éúõÌõþþÒðÉÉõÁôõôÿõõÉûÁùÌðÇ úõþô ðÉ èðÁôÓ
ØûÆõ èÉðÉûÂÁâ èÚçÙ òúðûÆÿðÁ ßûòý çõÓÁÂþôÇ
Çðûô Éúõ ÄÆõÇõÁÉðÉûÂÁ úðô ñõõÁ ¿õÁÉúÆðþþûÁùâÀ
éúõ ùÆÂÊÄïÇ ÁõÏÉ õËõÁÉ ûÇ ðÁ õÏúûñûÉûÂÁê ÉÂ ñõ
úõþô ðÉ èðÁôÓ ÐðÄÉûÇÉ Úðþþ ÂÁ èðÉÊÆôðÓ ÍÄÆûþ
ÕÎê ììðÿ ÉÂ åâåÃÄÿâ ×ÁÉÆðÁòõ ûÇ ¾ì

üþû ÿôòþö õñùó
õø÷ ôø÷ ÷ô õøúñðý
ãêãòãøç éäöæí ýèì ö ÿèðíáæþ
ùûñûäèéåûæî èý öî äûöíî óóï
ÿèåûí èæ îÿû èðîíâáìîí èý
úáþþäûíôöùû ÿöñû ÷ûûæ èðîü
äáæûù öî öæ ûõÿá÷áîáèæë
ÔõÁÉÆð þ Ðõô÷ÂÆôÇúûÆõ
ÔÂÊÁòûþ ÛÔÐÔî ûÇ òÊÆÆõÁÉþÓ
òÂÁÇÊþÉûÁù ÂËõÆ ð ôõËõþÂÄÒ
ÿõÁÉ ñÆûõ÷ê òÆõðÉõô ûÁ òÂÁÇÊþÒ
ÉðÉûÂÁ ÌûÉú ÐûùùþõÇÌðôõ
éÂÌÁ ÔÂÊÁòûþê ÷ÂÆ þðÁô ÉÂ Éúõ
ÁÂÆÉú Â÷ æÂÉÉÂÁ çÂðôâ
éúõ ÇûÉõ ½ ÂÄÄÂÇûÉõ Éúõ
ÞûÁùïÇ çõðòú ôõËõþÂÄÿõÁÉ ½
òÂÁÇûÇÉÇ ÿÂÇÉþÓ Â÷ ðÆðñþõ
þðÁôê ÌûÉú ð ôõÆõþûòÉ ÁÊÆÇõÆÓ
ÂÁ ûÉÇ õðÇÉõÆÁ ñÂÊÁôðÆÓâ
ÍÉ éúÊÆÇôðÓïÇ õÏúûñûÉûÂÁê
Ìúûòú ÌðÇ úõþô ûÁ Éúõ ÉÂÌÁ
òÂÊÁòûþïÇ Â÷÷ûòõÇ ûÁ èð÷÷ÆÂÁ
çÂðôê Éúõ úøùûýÿüþûý ÇÄÂýõ ÉÂ
Éúõ ÄÆÂüõòÉïÇ ÄÆûÁòûÄðþ ÄþðÁÒ
ÁûÁù Â÷÷ûòõÆ ðÉ ÔÐÔê ÔðÆÆÓ
ßÊÆÄúÓâ
èúõ ÇðûôÑ ¿éúõ ÇûÉõ úðÇ ñõõÁ
ðþþÂòðÉõô ÷ÂÆ ôõËõþÂÄÿõÁÉ

ÇûÁòõ ÕÃìì ðÁô ÉúõÆõ ûÇ ð
ÆõÅÊûÆõÿõÁÉ ÉÂ ÇÊñÿûÉ ð
ôõËõþÂÄÿõÁÉ ñÆûõ÷ ÄÆûÂÆ ÉÂ Éúõ
ÄþðÁÁûÁù ðÄÄþûòðÉûÂÁâ
¿èÂ Ìõ úðËõ ñõõÁ ÌÂÆýûÁù
ÌûÉú ÐõþþÌðÓ ðÁô ÐþÂÂÆ
ÚÂÿõÇ ÇõÉÉûÁù ÂÊÉ ÌúðÉ Éúõ
ÆõÅÊûÆõÿõÁÉÇê òÂÁÇÉÆðûÁÉÇ
ðÁô ÂÄÄÂÆÉÊÁûÉûõÇ ðÆõ ÷ÂÆ
ÌúõÁ Éúõ ÄþðÁÁûÁù ðÄÄþûòðÒ
ÉûÂÁ òÂÿõÇ ûÁâ
¿ëõ ÷ûÁô Éúõ òÂÁÇÊþÉðÉûÂÁ
ÆõðþþÓ ÊÇõ÷Êþ ðÁô Ìûþþ ÷õõô
òÂÿÿõÁÉÇ ñðòýê ÿðýûÁù ðÁÓ
ÁõòõÇÇðÆÓ òúðÁùõÇê ñõ÷ÂÆõ ûÉ
ùÂõÇ ÉÂ Éúõ ÂËõÆËûõÌ ðÁô
ÇòÆÊÉûÁÓ òÂÿÿûÉÉõõ ðÁô ÉúõÁ
Éúõ òÂÊÁòûþïÇ õÏõòÊÉûËõâ
¿ØÂÆ Éúõ ÇûÖõ Â÷ Éúõ ÇûÉõê
ùûËõÁ ðÁ ðÄÄÆÂÄÆûðÉõ ôõÁÇûÉÓê
Ìõ ÌÂÊþô ñõ õÏÄõòÉûÁù ð
ÄþðÁÁûÁù ðÄÄþûòðÉûÂÁ Â÷ ååÃ
úÂÿõÇâ éúûÇ ûÇ ÉÂ ÿõõÉ ÂÊÆ
úÂÊÇûÁù ÆõÅÊûÆõÿõÁÉ ÷ÂÆ òõÁÒ
ÉÆðþ Ðõô÷ÂÆôÇúûÆõâ
¿ëõ úðô ÉÂ ðþþÂòðÉõ ðñÂÊÉ
äêÃÃÃ ÁõÌ úÂÿõÇ Ìúûòú Ìõ
ôûô ðòÆÂÇÇ ðñÂÊÉ øÃ ÇûÉõÇê ñÊÉ
ûÉïÇ ð òúðÁùûÁù ôõþûËõÆÓ ÉúðÉ

Ìõ ðÆõ ÆõÅÊûÆõô ÉÂ ÿðýõ ðÇ
ÉúõÆõïÇ ðÁÂÉúõÆ ôÆð÷É ôõËõþÂÄÒ
ÿõÁÉ ÄþðÁ ÂÁ Éúõ ÌðÓâÀ
ÍÿÂÁù Éúõ òÂÁÇÉÆðûÁÉÇ ÂÊÉÒ
þûÁõô ûÁ Éúõ ñÆûõ÷ Ìúûòú òÂÊþô
ð÷÷õòÉ Éúõ ÇûÉõïÇ ôõËõþÂÄÿõÁÉ
ûÇ Éúõ ÆõÅÊûÆõÿõÁÉ ÷ÂÆ ûÉÇ
òÂÊÁÉÆÓÇûôõ òÂÁÉõÏÉ ½ ðÇ Ìõþþ
ðÇ Éúõ ð÷÷õòÉ Â÷ ðÁÓ ñÊûþôûÁù
ÂÁ ËûõÌÇ ½ ÉÂ ñõ ÉðýõÁ ûÁÉÂ
ðòòÂÊÁÉâ
áÊÿõÆÂÊÇ ÇÊÆËõÓÇ ðÁô
ÇÉÊôûõÇ ðÆõ ðþÇÂ ÆõÅÊûÆõô
ÄÆûÂÆ ÉÂ ôõËõþÂÄÿõÁÉ ÊÁôõÆ
Éúõ ôÆð÷É ñÆûõ÷ê ûÁòþÊôûÁù ð
÷Êþþ õòÂþÂùÓ ÇÊÆËõÓê ð ôÆðûÁÒ
ðùõ ÇÉÆðÉõùÓ ðÁô ð ÉÆðÁÇÄÂÆÉ
ðÇÇõÇÇÿõÁÉâ
ãÄÄÂÆÉÊÁûÉûõÇ ûôõÁÉû÷ûõô ðÉ
Éúõ ÇûÉõ ûÁòþÊôõ Éúõ òúðÁòõ ÉÂ
ôõþûËõÆ ¿ÿÊòú ÁõõôõôÀ úÂÊÇÒ
ûÁù ½ ûÁòþÊôûÁù ð÷÷ÂÆôðñþõ
úÂÊÇûÁù ½ ÂÁ ÉÂÄ Â÷ ÇÄðòõ ÷ÂÆ ð
òõÁÉÆðþ ùÆõõÁ ðÁô ÄÊñþûò ðÆÉâ
éúõ ÄþðÁÇ ðÁô òÂÁÇÊþÉðÉûÂÁ
ÅÊõÇÉûÂÁÁðûÆõ ðÆõ ðËðûþðñþõ
ÂÁþûÁõ ðÉ ÌÌÌâòõÁÉÆðþñõô
÷ÂÆôÇúû ÆõâùÂËâÊýíòÂÁÇÊþÉð
ÉûÂÁÇ ÊÁÉûþ ÍÄÆûþ öâ

ùó çâûà÷þå à÷òâï

ñíúÿøüðîÿøùíõþöÿüøûùüôöíõüôýôò÷óîúòî÷ï

Agenda Item 10
Page 69



Appendix C: Biggleswade Town Council news

section

Agenda Item 10
Page 70



Agenda Item 10
Page 71



Appendix D: Exhibition Boards

Agenda Item 10
Page 72



INTRODUCTION

Þ·¹¹´»­©¿¼» Ý±³³±²

Í·¬»

Ú±±¬°¿¬¸­

Þ®·¼´»©¿§

Û¿­¬»®² Î»´·»º Î±¿¼

DLF PROPOSALS MAP (NORTH) BIGGLESWADE INSET 7 (SOURCED FROM WWW.CENTRALBEDFORDSHIRE.GOV.

A Development Brief has been prepared by

Bellway Homes and Bloor Homes, working

alongside Central Bedfordshire Council. It

has been produced to guide the potential

residential development of a parcel of land

which is located on the north-western side

of Potton Road (B1040), immediately to the

north-east of the town of Biggleswade. The

site is allocated for residential development to

provide a minimum of 330 dwellings.

This brief aims to ensure that a high

quality design is achieved throughout

the development, providing an attractive

environment that complements the existing

built form of Biggleswade and ensuring any

surrounding environment.

PURPOSE

The purpose of the development brief is to:

• Establish an urban design framework for

the site, based on site characteristics and

constraints;

• Provide design guidance for the prepa-

ration of detailed proposals for the site and

assist the consideration of future planning

applications;

• Provide an indication of the likely planning

obligations required to support development

on the site;

required to support any planning application

for the development of the site;

• Provide a mechanism through which

members of the public can have greater

involvement in the development of proposals

for the site; and

• Provide certainty for prospective devel-

opers and members of the public as to the

future development of the site.

It is intended that the draft development brief

will be endorsed by the Central Bedford-

shire Council as planning guidance and

will be a material consideration in guiding

and informing development management

decisions in respect of any future planning

applications for the site.

DEVELOPMENTBRIEFFOR

LANDATPOTTONROAD-BIGGLESWADE

Agenda Item 10
Page 73



SITEANDCONTEXTAPPRAISAL
DEVELOPMENTBRIEFFOR

LANDATPOTTONROAD-BIGGLESWADE

LOCATION

The development site is located on the

north-western side of Potton Road (B1040),

immediately to the north-east of the town of

Biggleswade.

THEDEVELOPMENTSITE

The development site is essentially a

trapezoid shaped parcel, 11ha in size.

USE

Adjacent to the short eastern site boundary is

a derelict plant nursery, comprising a rectan-

gular group of greenhouses. It is otherwise a

TOPOGRAPHY/LANDSCAPEFEATURES

The site is generally level. There are some

mature trees / hedgerows to the northern and

to the south-western section of the Potton

Road frontage. To the north-east of the group

of 3 dwellings, the site boundary is largely

open, other than some sporadic growth. The

western boundary is open.

ACCESS

There are 2 existing gated vehicular accesses

from Potton Road. To the north-east is the

entrance to the aforementioned derelict

nursery, with a further access located

towards the centre of the site immediately

to the north-east of the group of 3 frontage

detached properties abutting the site.

Agenda Item 10
Page 74



CONSTRAINTS

EXISTING STRUCTURES TO BE

CLEARED

INTERMITTENT HEDGE

ROWS AND PLANTING

WHICH LEAVES THE SITE

EXPOSED IN PLACES

P

ATTENTUATION POND

0.4 HA

HEDGES

TREES OF HIGH QUALITY/ ROOT

PROTECTION

TRANSPARENT BOUNDARY

PRIVATE GARDENS AREA FACING

SITE BOUNDARY

CONSTRAINTS NOTATION

VEHICULAR ROUTE

FOOTPATHS

BRIDLEWAYS

EXISTING VISUAL CONNECTION

15 FT RESERVATION STRIP

WATER PIPES

FOUL PUMPING STATION WITH

15M NO-BUILD ZONE

DRAINAGE CONNECTION

DEVELOPMENTBRIEFFOR

LANDATPOTTONROAD-BIGGLESWADE

Agenda Item 10
Page 75



OPPORTUNITIES

LAP

IN
DI
CA
TI
VE

OP
EN

SP
AC
E

IN
DI
CA
TIV
E

OP
EN

SP
AC
E

IN
DI
CA
TI
VE

OP
EN

SP
AC
E

C

EXISTING STRUCTURES TO BE

CLEARED

ATTENTUATION POND

0.4 HA

HEDGES

TREES OF HIGH QUALITY/ ROOT

PROTECTION

VIEWS FROM SITE

OPPORTUNITIES NOTATION
TRANSPARENT BOUNDARY

VEHICULAR ROUTE

FOOTPATHS

BRIDLEWAYS

EXISTING VISUAL CONNECTION

INDICATIVE

OPEN SPACE
INDICATIVE OPEN SPACE

POTENTIAL VISUAL CONNECTION

POTENTIAL VEHICULAR CONNECTION

AREA OF SPATIAL IDENTITY

C

DEVELOPMENTBRIEFFOR

LANDATPOTTONROAD-BIGGLESWADE

Agenda Item 10
Page 76



PROPOSALSANDVISIONS
DEVELOPMENTBRIEFFOR

LANDATPOTTONROAD-BIGGLESWADE

Ð®·²½·°¿´ ®±«¬»

Ø±«­·²¹

Û¨·­¬·²¹ ¸»¼¹»®±©­ ¿²¼ ¬®»»­

Ð«¾´·½ ¿®¬ °®±ª·­·±²

Í»½±²¼¿®§ ®±«¬»

Ì»®¬·¿®§ ´·²µ­ õ ´¿²»­

Ô·²µ­ ¬± º±±¬°¿¬¸ ñ ¾®·¼´»©¿§

Ð®±°±­»¼ ´¿²¼­½¿°»¼ ¿®»¿­ ¿¬

­·¬» »¼¹»­ ¿½¬ ¿­ ¿² ·²¬»®º¿½»

©·¬¸ º±±¬´·²µ­ ¿²¼ ©·¼»®

½±²¬»¨¬

Ð»¼»­¬®·¿² ½®±­­·²¹

Þ·¹¹´»­©¿¼»
Ø±­°·¬¿´

ßÝÝÛÍÍ

ßÝÝÛÍÍ

CENTRAL

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

LEAP

NEAP

LEAP

LEAP

ATTENUATION

AREA

SQUARE

INDICATIVE LAYOUT FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSESONLY

Ð®·²½·°¿´ ®±«¬»

Ø±«­·²¹

Û¨·­¬·²¹ ¸»¼¹»®±©­ ¿²¼ ¬®»»­

Ð«¾´·½ ¿®¬ °®±ª·­·±²

Í»½±²¼¿®§ ®±«¬»

Ì»®¬·¿®§ ´·²µ­ õ ´¿²»­

Ô·²µ­ ¬± º±±¬°¿¬¸ ñ ¾®·¼´»©¿§

Ð®±°±­»¼ ´¿²¼­½¿°»¼ ¿®»¿­ ¿¬

­·¬» »¼¹»­ ¿½¬ ¿­ ¿² ·²¬»®º¿½»

©·¬¸ º±±¬´·²µ­ ¿²¼ ©·¼»®

½±²¬»¨¬

ö

Agenda Item 10
Page 77



DEVELOPMENTBRIEF

A Development Brief has been prepared for

this site.

The development brief is currently out for

public consultation and will remain available

as follows.

Visit the website:

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/consultations

View the document at the following locations:

• Biggleswade Library, Chestnut Avenue,

Biggleswade

The Old Court House, 4 Saffron Road,

Biggleswade

Priory House, Chicksands

Paper copies of the document are available

on request:

Contact the Local Planning and Housing

Team on Tel. 0300 300 4353.

A questionnaire will be available to allow

members of the public, groups and organisa-

tions to comment on the draft development

brief.

All comments and completed questionnaires

should be received by 5pm Wednesday

9th April 2014. Written comments may be

emailed to ldf@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk or

posted to the following freepost address:

FREEPOST RSJS GBB2 SRZT

(you do not need a stamp)

Potton Road development brief

Central Bedfordshire Council, Priory House

Monks Walk, Chicksands

Shefford, SG17 5TQ

Following this consultation period, the draft

development brief will be updated, taking

account of any relevant suggestions or

comments received. The revised devel-

opment brief will then be considered by the

Executive Committee of Central Bedford-

shire Council for endorsement as technical

guidance to inform any future planning appli-

cations for the site. Further consultation will

be required in advance of the submission of

any planning applications on more detailed

proposals for the site as they evolve.

INDICATIVE VIEWS

INDICATIVE VIEWS

DEVELOPMENTBRIEFFOR

LANDATPOTTONROAD-BIGGLESWADE

Agenda Item 10
Page 78



Appendix E: Central Bedfordshire Council

communications

1: Consultations page

2. Planning page (Have your say)

3. Online survey front page

4. Consultation letter sent out

5. Reminder email sent to those signed up for alerts

6. Tweet on Twitter page

7. Post on Facebook

Agenda Item 10
Page 79



Consultations

Have your say
watch our video about the
proposed closure of
Dunstable Middle Schools

•

sign up for email alerts to
keep informed of all our
consultations

•

view our consultations
database

•

Consultations - find out about

Consultations - stay informed

Consultations database

Residents Telephone Survey

Children's Services Feedback form

Draft Public Protection Service Plan 14-15

Dog Control Orders Consultation with Town
and Parish Councils

Houghton Regis Expansion - land west of
Bidwell

Special Educational Needs and Disability
Mainstream survey

Potton Road Consultation and Exhibition

Central Bedfordshire council is working with Bellway and Bloor
homes on a draft development brief for land off of Potton Road,
Biggleswade. You can have your say in the public
consultation 13 March - 9 April 2014 and also view the draft plan
at Biggleswade Library - Chestnut Avenue and Central
Bedfordshire Council offices, Chicksands.

The public exhibition was held on Thursday, 13 March 2014 at
Biggleswade Town Hall with 85 attendees. We received some
great feedback from this exhibition. If you were unable to attend

you can view the exhibition boards online (PDF 2.1MB).

If you received a letter notifying you of the exhibition and
consultation, you may have noticed that the freepost return
address states Gypsy and Traveller plan consultation. If you
respond to this address, your response will still reach the same
team and will be accounted for.

Special Educational Needs and Disability
survey

Discretionary Housing Payments

Sheltered Housing Standard

Superfast Broadband Survey

A-Z of services:

A
B
C
D

Current consultations

our latest consultations are listed below•
find key dates and have your say•
register to hear about consultations by
email

•

Page 1 of 1Consultations | Central Bedfordshire Council

08/04/2014http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say/

Agenda Item 10
Page 80



Consultations

Taking part in
consultations
find out how to comment on
a consultation

•

check what we are currently
consulting about

•

read about recent
consultations which are now
closed

•

How you can take part

How to make comments

What can you comment on?

Information about submitting comments

Potton Rd, Biggleswade Development Plan
Consultation 13 March - 9 April 2014

The draft Development Brief (PDF 5.7MB) is being published
for comment starting on Thursday 13th March 2014 for four
weeks until Wednesday 9th April 2014. The easiest way to
have your say is to complete the online questionnaire.

This site has been allocated for residential development under
policy HA1 of the Site Allocations Development Plan Document
(North) which was adopted by the Council in 2011. The
development site is located on the north-western site of Potton
Road (B1040), immediately to the north-east of Biggleswade.

Policy HA1 requires a minimum of 330 dwellings to be provided
on the site and there is also a need to produce a development
brief. A development brief is a document which is produced for a
site with the intention of being adopted as technical guidance for
any future development of that site. Once finalised, the
development brief will guide and inform management decisions
in respect of any future planning applications for the site.

The development brief is to provide design guidance on the aims
for the development and indicate likely planning obligations
required. It also identifies the particular constraints and
opportunities of the site, and confirms the range of technical
work which any subsequent planning application must address
to support any planning application for the development site.

The production of the brief provides an opportunity for members
of the public to have greater involvement in the development of
the site, and provides certainty for both members of the public
and prospective developers as to the future development of the
site.

This development brief is being produced by developers Bellway
Homes and Bloor Homes working alongside the Council.

How to have your say

You are invited to view plans and have your say on the emerging
development proposals for the land off Potton Road in
Biggleswade. The easiest way to have your say is to complete
the online questionnaire. If you would rather complete a paper
copy of the questionnaire they will be available, along
with copies of the draft document, by:

1) Visiting the Public Exhibition:

A public exhibition is taking place on Thursday 13th March
2014 (between 2pm-8pm) at Biggleswade Town Hall, The
Old Court House, 4 Saffron Road, Biggleswade.

A-Z of services:

A
B
C
D

Current consultations

Our latest consultations are listed below•
Find out key dates for our consultations•
Have your say today•

Page 1 of 2Strategic planning | Consultations | News | Central Bedfordshire Council

08/04/2014http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/planning/strategic-planning/consultation-and-n...

Agenda Item 10
Page 81



2) Viewing the document and picking up a paper
questionnaire at the following locations:

3) Requesting paper copies of the document and questionnaire
by contacting the Local Planning and Housing Team on Tel.
0300 300 4353.

All comments and completed questionnaires should be received
by Wednesday 9th April 2014, please post to the following
freepost address or email to ldf@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

FREEPOST RSJS GBB2 SRZT (you do not need a stamp),
Potton Rd Biggleswade Consultation, Central Bedfordshire
Council, Priory House, Monks Walk, Chicksands, Shefford,
SG17 5TQ

What happens next

Following this consultation period, the draft Development Brief
will be updated, taking account of any relevant suggestions or
comments received. The revised Development Brief will then be
considered by the Executive Committee of Central Bedfordshire
Council for endorsement as technical guidance.

Biggleswade Library, Chestnut Avenue, Biggleswade•
Biggleswade Town Council Offices, The Old Court House, 4
Saffron Road, Biggleswade

•

Central Bedfordshire Council Offices, Priory House,
Chicksands

•

Page 2 of 2Strategic planning | Consultations | News | Central Bedfordshire Council

08/04/2014http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/planning/strategic-planning/consultation-and-n...

Agenda Item 10
Page 82



text only

The draft Potton Road Development Brief will become planning guidance for residential development on the site in the future.
The site has been allocated for a minimum of 330 dwellings. We would like to hear your views on the draft Development Brief.

Please review the draft Development Brief and provide your feedback by completing this questionnaire by Wednesday 9th April
2014.

1. Are you responding as a:

Resident of Biggleswade

Resident of Central Bedfordshire

Local Business

Community/Voluntary Organisation

Town/Parish Council

Landowner/Developer/Agent

Other

Page 1 of 1Online

08/04/2014http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/surveys/pottonroad/development.htm

Agenda Item 10
Page 83



Central Bedfordshire Council

Priory House, Monks Walk

Chicksands, Shefford
Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ

Telephone 0300 300 8000

Email customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Your ref:

Our ref: LP/CM/POTTONRD

Date: 7 March 2014

Dear Sir or Madam

Consultation on Development Brief for Land off Potton Road in Biggleswade.

The draft Development Brief is being published for comment starting on Thursday 13th

March 2014 for four weeks until Wednesday 9th April 2014.

This site has been allocated for residential development under policy HA1 of the Site

Allocations Development Plan Document (North) which was adopted by the Council in

2011. The development site is located on the north-western site of Potton Road

(B1040), immediately to the north-east of Biggleswade.

Policy HA1 requires a minimum of 330 dwellings to be provided on the site and there is

also a need to produce a development brief. A development brief is a document which

is produced for a site with the intention of being adopted as technical guidance for any

future development of that site. Once finalised, the development brief will guide and

inform management decisions in respect of any future planning applications for the site.

The development brief is to provide design guidance on the aims for the development

and indicate likely planning obligations required. It also identifies the particular

constraints and opportunities of the site, and confirms the range of technical work which

any subsequent planning application must address to support any planning application

for the development site.

The production of the brief provides an opportunity for members of the public to have

greater involvement in the development of the site, and provides certainty for both

members of the public and prospective developers as to the future development of the

site.

Agenda Item 10
Page 84



Central Bedfordshire Council

Priory House, Monks Walk

Chicksands, Shefford
Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ

Telephone 0300 300 8000

Email customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

This development brief is being produced by developers Bellway Homes and Bloor

Homes working alongside the Council.

You are invited to view plans and have your say on the emerging development

proposals for the land off Potton Road in Biggleswade. There are a number of ways in

which to view and comment on the draft document:

1) Visit the Public Exhibition:

• A public exhibition is taking place on Thursday 13th March 2014 (between

2pm-8pm) at Biggleswade Town Hall, The Old Court House, 4 Saffron Road,

Biggleswade.

2) Visit the website:

www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/consultations

3) View the document at the following locations:

Biggleswade Library, Chestnut Avenue, Biggleswade

Biggleswade Town Council Offices, The Old Court House, 4 Saffron Road,

Biggleswade

Central Bedfordshire Council Offices, Priory House, Chicksands

4) Paper copies of the document are available on request by contacting the Local

Planning and Housing Team on Tel. 0300 300 4353.

All written comments should be submitted by Wednesday 9th April 2014, and posted to

the following freepost address or emailed to ldf@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

FREEPOST RSJS GBB2 SRZT (you do not need a stamp), Gypsy and Traveller Plan

Consultation, Central Bedfordshire Council, Priory House, Monks Walk, Chicksands,

Shefford, SG17 5TQ

Following this consultation period, the draft Development Brief will be updated, taking

account of any relevant suggestions or comments received. The revised Development

Brief will then be considered by the Executive Committee of Central Bedfordshire

Council for endorsement as technical guidance.

Yours sincerely

Richard Fox,

Head of Development Planning and Housing Strategy

Agenda Item 10
Page 85



1

Ashleigh Hall

Having trouble viewing this email? View it as a Web page.

Potton Road
Development
Brief - Have
Your Say

Consultation on the draft
development brief for
the land off of Potton Road,
Biggleswade.
Consultation is open until 9
April 2014.
Find out more and have your
say on the draft development
brief.

Potton Road Development Brief Consultation

Central Bedfordshire council is working with Bellway and Bloor homes
on a draft development brief for land off of Potton Road,
Biggleswade. You are invited toview the plans and have your say

Agenda Item 10
Page 86



2

on the emerging development proposals.

You can see the plans and consultation questionnaire online, or paper
copies can be viewed at:

Biggleswade Library, Chestnut Avenue, Biggleswade
Biggleswade Town Council Offices, The Old Court House, 4
Saffron Road,Biggleswade
Central Bedfordshire Council Offices, Priory House, Chicksands

Residents can also request a paper copy by contacting the Local
Planning and Housing Team on LDF@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk or
calling 0300 300 4353. The consultation will be open until 9 April
2014.

Questions for Central Bedfordshire Council? Contact us

Stay connected:

Subscriber services:
Manage Preferences | Unsubscribe | Delete Profile | Help
| Unsubscribe All

This email was sent to carry.murphy@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk using GovDelivery, on behalf of:
Central Bedfordshire Council · Priory House, Monks Walk, Chicksands, Shefford, Bedfordshire,
SG17 5TQ · 0300 300 8301

______________________________________________________________________

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.

For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

Agenda Item 10
Page 87



Agenda Item 10
Page 88



Agenda Item 10
Page 89



Appendix F: Potton Road Poster

Agenda Item 10
Page 90



Central Bedfordshire Council
www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

You are invited to view emerging plans for a development situated
north-west of Potton Road, Biggleswade. This allocated site will
provide a minimum of 330 residential dwellings.

To view the draft Development Brief and ask any questions, come
along to the public exhibition on Thursday 13

th
March at

Biggleswade Town Council Offices, The Old Court House,
4 Saffron Road between 2-8pm

You can comment on the plans from 13 March to 9 April. Find out
more at: www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/consultations

Alternatively, you can view copies of the document at Biggleswade
library, Biggleswade Town Council Offices or CBC
Priory House office, Chicksands

on the proposed Potton
Road development

For further information and requests contact CBC Local
Planning & Housing Team

Tel: 03003004353 @: ldf@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 10
Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 08 May 2014  

Subject: Provisional Work Programme & Executive Forward Plan  

Report of: Richard Carr, Chief Executive 

Summary: The report provides Members with details of the currently drafted Committee 
work programme and the latest Executive Forward Plan. 

 

 

Contact Officer: Jonathon Partridge, Corporate Policy and Scrutiny Manager 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

The work programme of the Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee will 
contribute indirectly to all 5 Council priorities.  Whilst there are no direct implications arising 
from this report the implications of proposals will be detailed in full in each report submitted 
to the Committee.  

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. that the sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 (a) considers and approves the work programme attached, subject to any 
further amendments it may wish to make; 

 (b) considers the relevant items of the Executive Forward Plan; and 

 (c) considers whether it wishes to add any further items to the work 
programme and/or establish any Task Forces to assist it in reviewing 
specific items. 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 

1. Appended is the currently drafted work programme for the Committee.  

2. The Committee is now requested to consider the work programme attached and 
amend or add to it as necessary.  

Overview and Scrutiny Task Forces 

3. In addition to consideration of the work programme, Members may also wish to 
consider how each item will be reviewed i.e. by the Committee itself (over one or a 
number of Committee meetings) or by establishing a Member Task Force to review 
an item in greater depth and report back its findings. 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 93



Executive Forward Plan 

4. Listed below are those items relating specifically to this Committee’s terms of 
reference contained in the latest version of the Executive’s Forward Plan to ensure 
Members are fully aware of the key issues Executive Members will be taking 
decisions upon in the coming months.  The full Executive Forward plan can be 
viewed on the Council’s website at the link at the end of this report. 

Ref  Issue Indicative Exec 
Meeting date 

1.  Central Bedfordshire Development Strategy 27 May 2014  

2.  The Plan-Making Programme (Formally the Local Development 
Scheme) 

27 May 2014 

3.  Planning Guidance for Solar Farms 27 May 2014 

4.  Local Development Order for the Woodside Estate and 
surrounding area in Dunstable 

27 May 2014 

5. * Wixam Park Masterplan 27 May 2014 

6.  Development Brief for Site Allocations Policy HA1, Potton Rd, 
Biggleswade 

27 May 2014 

7. * Delivery of superfast broadband in Central Bedfordshire  27 May 2014 

8.  Community Infrastructure Levy 15 July 2014 

9.  Draft Planning Obligations Strategy  15 July 2014 

 

Those marked (*) are not presently on the Committee work programme 

Conclusion 

5. Members are requested to consider and agree the attached work programme, 
subject to any further amendments/additions they may wish to make and highlight 
those items within it where they may wish to establish a Task Force to assist the 
Committee in its work.  This will allow officers to plan accordingly but will not 
preclude further items being added during the course of the year if Members so wish 
and capacity exists. 

Appendix – Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme  

Background reports:  

The Executive Forward Plan (can be viewed at any time on the Council’s website) at the 
following link:- 
http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/modgov/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=577&RD=0  

Agenda Item 11
Page 94



NOT PROTECTED      Last Update:  24 April 2014  

Appendix A 
 

Work Programme for Sustainable Communities Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 2014 - 2015 

 

 

Ref Indicative OSC meeting 
date 

Item title Description 

1.  12 May 2014 (Special) Draft Development Strategy  To consider the draft Development Strategy, 
which sets out the broad approach to new 
development across Central Bedfordshire to 
2031, including new housing and employment 
targets and new large-scale development sites. 

Executive: 27 May 2014 

2.  12 May 2014 (Special) Plan-Making Programme To consider the plan-making programme for the 
local development framework. 

Executive: 27 May 2014 

3.  19 June 2014 South East Midlands Local Enterprise Partnership 
(SEMLEP)  

Item included at the request of Members of the 
Committee 

4.  19 June 2014 Revised Planning Obligations Strategy  

5.  19 June 2014 Community Infrastructure Levy Executive: 15 July 2014 

6.  24 July 2014 Q4 budget report To receive a presentation on the relevant Q4 
revenue and capital budgets  

7.  24 July 2014 Q4 performance report To receive the relevant Q4 performance 
information 

8.  04 September 2014 Climate Change Strategy To receive a progress report on the 
implementation of the Strategy 

9.  04 September 2014 North Luton Framework Plan  

A
genda Item

 11
P

age 95



NOT PROTECTED      Last Update:  24 April 2014  

10.  16 October 2014 (TBC) Housing SPD  To consider the outcomes of consultation in 
regard to the draft SPD prior to its consideration 
by Executive 

Executive: TBC 

11.  16 October 2014 (TBC) Quarter 1 budget report To receive a presentation on the relevant Q1 
revenue and capital budgets 

12.  16 October 2014 (TBC) Quarter 1 performance report To receive the relevant Q1 performance  
information 

13.  11 December 2014 (TBC) Quarter 2 budget report To receive a presentation on the relevant Q2 
revenue and capital budgets 

14.  11 December 2014 (TBC) Quarter 2 performance report To receive the relevant Q2 performance  
information 

15.  22 January 2015 (TBC) Draft Capital Programme – 2015/16 to 2018/19 To consider the draft budget for the Directorate. 

Executive: TBC 

16.  22 January 2015 (TBC) Draft Revenue Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2015/16 – 2018/19 

To consider the draft budget and Medium Term 
Financial Plan 

Executive: TBC 

17.  22 January 2015 (TBC) Draft Fees and Charges  To consider the draft revised fees and charges 
schedules 

Executive: TBC 

18.  19 February 2015 (TBC) Community Safety Plan and Priorities (2014/15)  To consider the Community Safety Partnership’s 
plan and priorities for 2014/15 and to provide 
recommendations prior to consideration by 
Executive.  The PCC and other statutory partners 
to be invited. 

Executive: TBC  

19.  02 April 2015 (TBC) Quarter 3 budget report To receive a presentation on the relevant Q3 
revenue and capital budgets 

A
genda Item

 11
P

age 96



NOT PROTECTED      Last Update:  24 April 2014  

20.  02 April 2015 (TBC) Quarter 3 performance report To receive the relevant Q3 performance  
information 

21.  11 June 2015 (TBC)   

 

A
genda Item

 11
P

age 97



P
age 98

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	10 Potton Road Development Brief
	Appendix A to OSC report on Potton Rd
	Appendix B to OSC report on Potton Rd

	11 Work Programme and Executive Forward Plan
	OSC Work Programme (App A)


